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CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

To shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (“the Board”), we are
pleased to present the annual report and annual results for the
year ended 31st December 2015 of China Star Entertainment
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively as
“the Group”) to the shareholders.

The year of 2015 represented a challenging period for the
Group in which results of the year were generally reduced
in splendor as compared with last year. Among them, the
revenue and income of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau went
down with the slack in the gaming industry of Macau; Nam Pei
Hong operations get by with effort to maintain its performance
in last year clouded by a slowdown in economic growth and
a slump in the number of tourists visiting Hong Kong; The film
production business was glad to have its newborn “League
of Gods #f##{&%”, has reached its 3D post production stage,
and hopefully scheduled to be on screen in the forthcoming
summer vacation of 2016; The blueprint for the development
project in Macau has eventually finalized and submitted for
approval by relevant government authorities of Macau.

Looking back on last year generally, both the real economy
and the stock investment were rife with unfavorable factors. In
respect of Macau, the Group’s stronghold contributing 85% of
the revenue in terms of geographical segment, the policy to
crack down on decay and corruption being implemented by
the Central Government of China is undoubtedly conducive
to cleansing of governance of officials, but has inevitably
dampened the stream of tourists as well as flow of funds
heading for this number one destination for business and
leisure trips in Asia. This, coupled with a recent slowdown in
economy in the Mainland, has plunged the gaming industry
of Macau into a severe winter, or, as termed by some
scholars, an “in depth adjustment” for almost 20 months,
which elucidates itself in particular the change in the ratio of
revenue contribution by VIP rooms table and mass market
table from the previous “ eight to two” to the present “half-half”,
the closing down of VIP rooms table as big gamblers moving
back, the drop in gross revenue of the gaming industry in
consecutive months, resulting in a domino effect of recession
in industries in Macau like real estate, hotel and tourism and
retailing, etc.
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As to Hong Kong, the neighboring harbor of Macau and
accounting for 15% of the Group’s revenue in terms of
geographical segment, the year of 2015 represented also
a difficult and eventful time. In the year, the political and
economic situation of Hong Kong was relatively tranquil as
compared to 2014 when the territory was overwhelmed by the
“Occupy Central Movement”, and the number of participants
in the “1st of July” demonstration recorded a marked drop in
the same year. However, the ensuing serious of campaigns
and actions directed against mainland tourists and parallel
traders, as well as the veto of the proposal for election of
Chief Executive by universal suffrage, had unsettled many.
Moreover, Hong Kong as a small open economy is subjected
to influences of international political and economic situation,
which, in particular, center on the need for the majority of the
developed countries to undergo in-depth structural reforms
in the aftermath of the Financial Crisis, but in vain owing to
obstacles in the way of implementation of such reformative
measures to witness a prolonged recovery in the global
economy as European Union and Japan, the two major
economic systems, stagnating. What makes it worse were
the refugee issue baffling EU in the second half of 2015, the
rise of international terrorism (IS and etc), the slippage of
international oil prices starting from the end of June, 2015 from
US$60 to US$30/barrel, all put uncertainties on the economic
recovery and cloud the course of it. Amid the downturn of
the gaming industry, the government of Macau even had to
put into practice stringent measures to curb fiscal and public
expenses.

Against a backdrop of the bedeviling macro environment as
elaborated above, segmental business of the Group across
Macau and Hong Kong were thus ineluctably affected in some

way.
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CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Hotel and gaming service operations remained the Group’s
major source of income and profit, but both recorded a double
digit drop for the year. As discussed above, the fact that the
decrease in revenue from mass market tables was far less
than that from VIP room tables had, however, manifested the
correctness of our initiative to spend resources expanding
market share in the mass market table gaming operations and
targeting the high end customers in the mass market table
gaming in years before, which may include an appropriate
adjustment of the ratio of the number of mass market tables to
that of VIP room tables, or even the number of slot machines.
Besides, in order to tap into the trend of diversification of
revenue from non-gaming industries in Macau, the Group
will endeavor to enhance such functions of the prize-winning
Hotel LKF as restaurants, flower shop, retail shop, spa and
medical clinic and other complementary facilities and auxiliary
services, and will intensify the promotion of an experience of
premium tour and vacation that can be entertained by non-
gaming facilities and services of Hotel LKF, with an aim to
expand its source of revenue and recoup part of the loss from
gaming revenue.

The fact that Nam Pei Hong operations managed to maintain
its performance in last year with comparable revenue and
income in spite of the unfavorable factors as mentioned above
epitomizes a remarkable task that can be achieved by this
highly recognised old brand name, and we can expect it to
shine again and generate revenue as well as profit for the
Group once the present economic downturn in the Mainland
and Hong Kong is over as mainland tourists revisiting this
metropolis with their confidence in quality of products of Hong
Kong as ever.

Our new film “League of Gods ##{Z%"” has reached its 3D
post production stage, and hopefully scheduled to be on
screen in the forthcoming summer vacation of 2016. This film
cost a good few of 100 millions of Hong Kong dollar of the
Group in production, featured a strong casting of movie stars
and produced in collaboration with a 3D special effect team
from Hollywood, such that we expect it to generate brilliant box
office receipts riding on the recent fervor for Chinese legend-
themed movies in the Mainland with a number of blockbuster
films coming to the fore.
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With regard to property development operations, the blueprint
for development of the properties in Macau (located in Lot 6B,
Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E at Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior
(ZAPE)) that has veered to be developed by the Company on
its own has eventually finalized and submitted to the Land,
Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau for approval.
As for properties in Hong Kong, situated at G/F, C/F and 1/F,
Kam Tak Building, 20, 22 and 24 Mercer Street, Hong Kong,
the Group contemplates to provisionally hold the properties
and await realization opportunities in view of the sluggish real
estate market in Hong Kong for now.

Both the Board and we attribute the troughs in business last
year to an external unfavorable macro environment, and we
are convinced that the economic haze will eventually go by
and peaks will follow. In the light of the active implementation
of the State’s economic initiative of “the Belt and Road” that
bodes well for unlimited business opportunities, the Group
also believes in a hopeful and promising prospect in the
foreseeable future. In this regard, on behalf of the Board, we
would like to extend our appreciation to the shareholders for
their relentless support, our staff force for their unremitting
spirit, and our business partners for their cooperation and

support.

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March 2016
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December 2015, the Group’s
revenue decreased by 19% to HK$1,044,506,000 (2014:
HK$1,283,597,000).

Profit from operations decreased by 40% to HK$136,891,000
(2014: HK$226,720,000). Profit for the year decreased by 49%
to HK$107,864,000 (2014: HK$210,011,000).
is mainly attributable to (i) 29% decrease in the figure of gross
profit to HK$462,722,000 from HK$650,142,000 in the previous
year due to significant decrease in revenue from service

Such decrease

income from gaming operations as a result of the recession in
gaming industry in Macau; and (ii) the incur of share-based
payment expenses of HK$51,986,000 related to share options
granted in this year. The effect of such decrease is partially
offset by (1) substantial increase in gain arising on change
in fair value of financial assets classified as held for trading
investments to HK$99,638,000 from HK$8,110,000 in the
previous year; and (2) increase in interest income represented
in other revenue to HK$95,910,000 from HK$37,584,000 in the
previous year.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31st December 2015 amounted to HK$107,871,000
representing a decrease of 49% as compared to
HK$209,665,000 in the previous year.

DIVIDEND
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2015 (2014: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has five reportable segments - (1) hotel and
gaming service operations; (2) gaming promotion operations;
(8) film related business operations; (4) property development
operations; and (5) Nam Pei Hong operations.

HK$877,909,000 or 84%
was generated from hotel and gaming service operations,

Of the total revenue for the year,

HK$4,748,000 or 1% was generated from gaming promotion
operations, HK$1,217,000 or 0% was generated from film
related business operations, HK$180,000 or 0% was generated
from property development operations and HK$160,452,000 or
15% was generated from Nam Pei Hong operations.
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Hotel and Gaming Service Operations

Hotel and gaming service operations included the hotel
operation in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau (“Lan Kwai Fong”)
which was recorded in an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Limited (“Hotel
LKF"); services provided to the casino situated in Lan Kwai
Fong (“Casino LKF”) which was recorded in an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Classic Management &
Services Company Limited (“Classic”) and other ancillary
services provided in Lan Kwai Fong. Lan Kwai Fong presents
a total of 209 guest rooms, casino situated in the ground, first
and 18th floor, restaurants, flower shop, retail shop, spa and
medical clinic.

Casino LKF is run by license holder Sociedade de Jogos de
Macau, S.A. (“SIM”). Classic has entered into service and site
license agreements with SUM. Under the agreements, Classic
has granted to SUM a right to occupy and use spaces in Lan
Kwai Fong to operate Casino LKF and Classic is responsible
for the provision of marketing, promotion, publicity, customer
development and introduction, co-ordination of activities and
other services as agreed between Classic and SJM from time
to time in Casino LKF. In return, Classic will shared a fixed
percentage of service income from SJM based on the monthly
gross gaming wins of the mass market and VIP table gaming
and slot machines in Casino LKF. Casino LKF operates a total
of 84 gaming tables, targeting both for the VIP rooms table
gaming and the mass market table gaming. It also operates a
total of 70 slot machines.

Lan Kwai Fong has been awarded with several international
accolades, which included the “5th China Hotel Starlight
Awards 2009 — Best Designed Boutique Hotel of China” and
the “2012 TripAdvisor Travelers’ Choice — Top 25 Trendiest
Hotels in China”. In respect of promoting the notion of
environmental protection, Lan Kwai Fong has won the “AHF
Asia Awards 2010 — Leading Green Hotel of Asia” and the
“Macao Green Hotel Award 2010 — Bronze Award”.
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The Group had shared revenue and segment profit of
approximately HK$877,909,000 (2014: HK$1,169,474,000)
and HK$62,279,000 (2014: HK$236,528,000) from the hotel
and gaming service operations, decrease of 25% and 74%
respectively. Revenue in the hotel and gaming service
operations mainly comprised of hotel accommodation income
of HK$115,069,000 (2014: HK$114,203,000), food and
beverage sales of HK$38,239,000 (2014: HK$38,782,000),
service income received from (i) mass market table
gaming of HK$684,740,000 (2014: HK$917,930,000)
representing decrease of 25%, (ii) VIP rooms table gaming
of HK$32,584,000 (2014: HK$82,695,000) representing
decrease of 61% and (iii) slot machines of HK$7,277,000
(2014: HK$15,864,000) representing decrease of 54%. During
the year, the average monthly revenue received from (i) mass
market table gaming is HK$57,062,000 (2014: HK$76,494,000)
and (ii) VIP rooms table gaming is HK$2,715,000 (2014:
HK$6,891,000). Besides, the occupancy rate of Hotel LKF
during the year was about 99% (2014: 98%).

Mass market table gaming operations are more profitable than
VIP rooms table gaming operations and thus Casino LKF had
spent resources to expand its market share in the mass market
table gaming operations and targeted the high end customers
in the mass market table gaming in years before. For the year
ended 31st December 2015, the total casino revenue gross
win in Macau market was approximately MOP230.84 billion,
decreased of 34.3% from the corresponding period in last
year. The scale of drop in revenue from this segment is 25%
which has outweigh the casino market performance in Macau
generally.

Gaming Promotion Operations

The Group had shared revenue and segment profit of
approximately HK$4,748,000 (2014: HK$4,740,000) and
HK$2,947,000 (2014: loss of HK$9,629,000) from the gaming
promotion operations, increase of 0% and 131% respectively.
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Since years before, the revenue in sharing of profit streams
from investments in the profit receiving company, Ocho
Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada (“Ocho”), one of the gaming
promoters at one of the VIP rooms at the Grand Lisboa
Casino in Macau had apparently decreased. One of the
characteristic of the VIP rooms table gaming is that the
majority of the business volume is highly volatile. Ocho had
lost its competitive advantage as it cannot offer a better than
market commission to its quality sub-junkets or customers
as they were attracted by other large and well equipped
new hotels and casinos in Macau. The decrease in revenue
sharing also impact and decrease the expected cash inflow
from this operation and thus impairment loss in respect of the
intangible assets of HK$587,000 (2014: HK$13,177,000) was
recognised. This impairment was based on the recoverable
amount of intangible asset by reference to the valuation report
issued by a firm of independent qualified professional valuers
using discounted cash flow method each year. The increase
in segment profit was due to decrease in impairment loss
recognised in this year.

Film Related Business Operations

Film related business operations included production and
distribution of films and television drama series, investment in
film and provision of other film related services including artist
management services.

In year 2015, revenue from film related business operations
amounted to HK$1,217,000 (2014: HK$2,267,000) and
its segment loss amounted to HK$4,959,000 (2014:
HK$3,702,000). The segment loss was mainly attributable to
impairment loss recognised in respect of film related business
of HK$2,405,000 (2014: HK$4,635,000). During the year, the
Group did not distribute any new film. The new production of
the Group, “League of Gods” has completed shooting in June
2015 and is in it post production period and will planned to be
on screen within the year 2016. In this year, the Group also
has investment in production of film which is co-financing with
other production companies and will shared revenue from the
invested film according to the investment percentage in the
relevant agreement.
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Property Development Operations

Property development operations included investing and
development of properties in Macau and Hong Kong.
Development of properties in Macau represented properties
located in Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E at Zona de
Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (the “Sites”).
enhance the commercial value of the Sites, the Group has

In order to

decided to build a luxury residential and commercial complex
with spacious apartment units, which will have higher selling
prices than the existing development plan of the individual
Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E. The Group submitted the
architectural design and drawings of the Sites to the Land,
Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau for approval.
Therefore, the Sites have remained undeveloped.

In year 2015, revenue from property development operations
amounted to HK$180,000 (2014: HK$173,000) and its segment
loss amounted to approximately HK$6,439,000 (2014:
HK$2,732,000).

Nam Pei Hong Operations

Nam Pei Hong operations included sales of Chinese and
other medicines pharmaceutical products, health products,
ginseng and dried seafood products to wholesalers and
retailers as well as Chinese clinical services which held by the
group headed by NPH Holdings Limited. One of the group’s
subsidiary, Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs Company Limited
(“Nam Pei Hong”) has engaged in the business of trading and
retail of “Sum Yung” and dried seafood products since 1977
and the brand name of “Nam Pei Hong” is highly recognised in
Hong Kong and Southern Mainland China.

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015
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According to the figure released by the Census and Statistics
Department of Hong Kong, for 2015 as a whole, the value of
total retail sales was HK$475.2 billion, decreased by 3.7% in
value compared with 2014. Nam Pei Hong’s revenue and gross
profit declined as compared with those for the corresponding
period in 2014 as a result of the adverse market. It had
struggled to survive by lower its margin in order to maintain
higher turnover.

In year 2015, the Group had shared revenue of approximately
HK$160,452,000 and segment loss of approximately
HK$8,519,000. The revenue and segment profit for the year
ended 31st December 2014 (excluding period from 11th
June 2014 to 20th November 2014) shared by the Group was
HK$106,943,000 and HK$361,000 respectively. The segment
loss this year was mainly attributable to impairment loss
recognised in respect of the intangible assets on trademarks
and exclusive distribution rights of HK$4,901,000 and
HK$1,377,000 respectively. During the year, the retail shops of
Nam Pei Hong increased from 10 to 12.

Geographical Segments

For the geographical segments, revenue of HK$885,504,000
or 85% (2014: HK$1,175,980,000 or 92%) was sourced from
Macau, HK$158,762,000 or 15% (2014: HK$106,043,000 or
8%) was sourced from Hong Kong and HK$240,000 or 0%
(2014: HK$1,574,000 or 0%) was sourced from other territories,
of which revenue from hotel and gaming service operations
and gaming promotion operations are mainly sourced from
Macau and revenue from Nam Pei Hong operations are mainly
sourced from Hong Kong.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31st December 2015, administrative
expenses amounted to HK$383,065,000 (2014:
HK$397,562,000), representing a 4% decrease. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in casino management
fees paid by Casino LKF during the year. Such management
fees decreased because it was based on a fixed percentage
of service income from VIP rooms table gaming that had
decreased by 61% from the previous year.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December 2015, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$4,791,461,000 and a net current assets
of HK$3,359,979,000,
(2014: 5.5). The Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$1,051,692,000 (2014: HK$323,939,000).
As at 31st December 2015, the Group had total borrowings of
HK$925,747,000 which comprised a secured bank term loan
with remaining balance of HK$910,000,000 (the “Term Loan”),
import trade loans in aggregate amount of HK$14,928,000

representing a current ratio of 8.4

(the “Import Loan”) and obligations under finance leases of
HK$819,000.

The Term Loan was secured by the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings with carrying amount of HK$578,370,000,
interest bearing at 1.75% per annum below the Hong Kong
Prime rate quoted by the bank and repayable by remaining of
28 equal consecutive quarterly installments of HK$30,000,000
each and a final repayment for the remaining balance of
HK$70,000,000. The Import Loan was interest bearing at 2%
per annum over one month HIBOR, repayable on demand
and guaranteed by an ex-shareholder of a subsidiary of the

Company.

As at 31st December 2015, the Group had banking facilities
amounting to HK$1,066,000,000 which were utilised to
the extent of HK$1,014,928,000. The Group’s gearing was
acceptable during the year with total debts of HK$925,747,000
against owners’ equity of HK$3,466,190,000. This represents
a gearing ratio, calculated in the basis of the Group’s total
borrowings over owners’ equity of 27% (2014: 11%).

As the majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, Macau
Pataca, United States Dollar and Renminbi, the exposure to
fluctuation in exchange rates was considered to be minimal
and no hedge activity were considered necessary. As at 31st

December 2015, the Group had no material contingent liability.
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As at 31st December 2015, outstanding commitments by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$92,377,000, of which
HK$29,737,000 was professional fees for the preparation
of the development plan of the Sites and HK$6,098,000 as
purchase and renovation of property, plant and equipment
and HK$56,542,000 for film rights, films in progress and film
deposits.

On 31st December 2013, the Company and Eternity Investment
Limited entered into a supplemental agreement pursuant to
which both parties agreed to extend the completion date of
the second tranche subscription for convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$300 million from 31st December 2013
further extend to 31st December 2015. This supplemental
agreement lapsed on 31st December 2015.

The net proceeds from the issue and allotment of
1,500,000,000 new shares at a subscription price of HK$0.09
per share on 14th November 2014 of approximately HK$134.30
million which were intended to be used for the production of
new film and general working capital of the Group. As at 31st
December 2015, the net proceeds were used in film production
and general working capital of the Group as intended.
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On 11th May 2015, a second loan agreement was entered
into between Classic Champion Holdings Limited (“Classic
Champion”) as lender and the junket company | as borrower
pursuant to which Classic Champion has conditionally agreed
to grant the junket company | an additional loan of HK$75
million (“Loan 1”) for a term of 24 months from the date of
drawdown at the interest rate of 12% per annum in addition
to the loan agreement dated on 4th April 2014 and the first
loan drawn on 8th April 2014 by the junket company |. On
the same date, another second loan agreement was entered
into between Classic Champion as lender and the junket
company Il as borrower pursuant to which Classic Champion
has conditionally agreed to grant the junket company Il an
additional loan of HK$75 million (“Loan I1”) for a term of 24
months from the date of drawdown at the interest rate of 12%
per annum in addition to the loan agreement dated on 17th
April 2014 and the first loan drawn on 28th April 2014 by the
junket company Il. On the same date, an other second loan
agreement was entered into between Classic Champion as
lender and the junket company Ill as borrower pursuant to
which Classic Champion has conditionally agreed to grant
the junket company Il an additional loan of HK$75 million
(“Loan IlI”) for a term of 24 months from the date of drawdown
at the interest rate of 12% per annum in addition to the loan
agreement dated on 17th July 2014 (the “First Loan”) and
the First Loan drawn on 21st July 2014 and 29th September
2014 respectively by the junket company Ill. Loan |, Loan Il
and Loan Il were drawn on 19th May 2015 and the Group
considers the loans can provide stable interest income to the
Group. On 18th September 2015, the junket company Il had
repaid all outstanding loan (including First Loan and Loan Ill)
and accrued interest thereon due to the Group in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$281.16 million upon the written
demand of the Group pursuant to the loan agreements.
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On 1st June 2015, Heung Wah Keung Family Endowment
Limited (“HWKFE"), the Company and a placing agent entered
into a placing and subscription agreement pursuant to which
HWKFE agreed to place, through the placing agent on a best
effect basis, up to an aggregate of 2,887,900,000 existing
shares of HK$0.01 each (nominal value being HK$28,879,000)
to not fewer than six independent investors at a price of
HK$0.12 per share and HWKFE has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for up to an aggregate of 2,887,900,000 new shares
at a price of HK$0.12 per new share. The closing price per
share was HK$0.13 as at 1st June 2015 and the net price per
new share was approximately HK$0.116. The placing and
subscription was completed on 9th June 2015 upon HWKFE
placed 2,887,900,000 shares to independent investors on 4th
June 2015 and the Company allotted and issued 2,887,900,000
new shares of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.12 per
share under the general mandate obtained at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 26th June 2014 to
HWKFE on 9th June 2015 respectively. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$336.27 million were intended to be used for
film production and/or general working capital purpose. As at
31st December 2015, approximately HK$180 million were used
in film production and the general working capital of the Group
and the remaining net proceeds of approximately HK$156.27
million were unused.

On 10th June 2015, a loan agreement was entered into
between Classic Champion as lender and an individual (the
“Borrower”) as borrower pursuant to which Classic Champion
has conditionally agreed to grant the Borrower the loan of
HK$275 million (the “Loan IV”) for a term of 24 months from the
date of first drawdown at the interest rate of 12% per annum.
The Loan IV was drawn on 12th June 2015 and was financed
by the internal resources of the Group.
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On 9th November 2015, the Company completed a capital
reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) comprising (a)
share consolidation: that every twenty-five (25) existing
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the issued and
unissued share capital of the Company be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of par value of HK$0.25 each
(“Consolidated Share”); (b) capital reduction: that the par
value of each of the issued Consolidated Shares be reduced
from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up capital of
the Company to the extent of HK$0.24 on each of the issued
Consolidated Shares, the credit arising from such reduction be
credited to the contributed surplus account of the Company
and any fractional Consolidated Share in the issued share
capital of the Company arising from the Share Consolidation
will be cancelled; and (c) Share Sub-division: that each of the
authorised but unissued consolidated shares of par value of
HK$0.25 each be sub-divided into twenty-five (25) new shares
of par value of HK$ 0.01 each. The board lot size for trading in
the shares also changed from 50,000 existing shares to 10,000
new shares subject to and upon the Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective.

During the year ended 31st December 2015, 1,443,000,000
share options were granted on 4th May 2015, 401,961 share
options and 10,288 share options were expired on 3rd
February 2015 and 29th December 2015 respectively and no
share options of the Company were exercised or lapsed.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Termination of the Proposed Acquisition of Protective
Capital Group Limited

On 25th February 2014, Classic Champion and Mr. Kam Lap
Sing, Kelvin, an independent third party of the Company
(the “Vendor”) entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which Classic
Champion has conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued share capital
of Protective Capital Group Limited (“Protective”) and a sale
loan (amounted to HK$20 million at date of Agreement) owned
by Eight Elements Entertainment Limited (“Eight Elements”)
upon completion for aggregate consideration of HK$800 million
(the “Proposed Acquisition”). The major assets of Protective
is its entitlement to the economic benefits of Eight Elements.
Eight Elements is a company incorporated in Macau with
limited liability and carrying on gaming promoter operations
(being activities undertaken to promote casino games by
way of offering transportation, accommodation, food and
beverage and entertainment) in exchange for a commission
or other compensation paid by the gaming concessionaire
in respect of the casino premises of Casino LKF and related
businesses in Macau. Particulars of the Proposed Acquisition
are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 25th
February 2014. The Proposed Acquisition constituted a major
transaction of the Company pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and is subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company. Total deposits of HK$600
million were paid on 25th February 2014 and 24th April 2014.

On 22nd May 2015, the parties to the Agreement entered into
a deed of termination, pursuant to which, the parties mutually
irrevocably and unconditionally agreed that, on and with effect
from 22nd May 2015, the Agreement shall terminate and cease
to have any effect. The Vendor has refunded the deposits paid
to Classic Champion without interest in accordance with the
terms of the Agreement.
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Termination of the Proposed Disposal of Triumph Top
Limited

On 21st November 2014, the Group entered into a legally
binding letter of intent for the proposed disposal (the
“Proposed Disposal”) of the entire equity interest of Triumph
Top Limited (the “Target Company”) and a sale loan
amounted to approximately HK$573,876,000 at an initial
consideration of HK$2,230,000,000 less accruals and other
liabilities at completion and a bonus consideration based
on the total permissible construction floor area on the Sites.
China Star Creative Development Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Target Company, owns the property
leasehold right granted by the Macau Government over the
Sites. On 12th December 2014, the parties have entered into
formal conditional agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”).
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 21st
November 2014 and 12th December 2014 for details of the
Proposed Disposal. The Proposed Disposal constituted a very
substantial disposal transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

On 25th March 2015, the Company announced that the
parties to the Disposal Agreement entered into a deed of
termination (the “Deed”), pursuant to which, the parties to the
Disposal Agreement mutually irrevocably and unconditionally
agreed that the Proposed Disposal be terminated and cease
to have any effect. The reason for the termination of the
Disposal Agreement is the anticipated inability to fulfill one
of the conditions precedent of the Disposal Agreement. The
Company considers that the termination of the Proposed
Disposal would not have any material adverse effect on the
financial position or business operation of the Group.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st December 2015, the Group employed 794
staff (2014: 780 staff) with employee benefit expenses of
HK$221,278,000 (2014: HK$169,919,000) which included
approximately HK$36,927,000 share-based payment expenses
related to share options granted to employees of the Group.
The directors believe that the quality of its employees is
the single most important factor in sustaining the Group’s
reputation and improving its profitability. The staffs are
remunerated based on their work performance, professional
experience and prevailing industry practices. Apart from basic
salaries, pension fund, housing allowances, meal allowances,
medical schemes and discretionary bonuses, share options
are awarded to certain staff according to the assessment of

individual performance.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no significant event took place subsequent to end of
the reporting date.

PROSPECT

Hotel and gaming service operations in Lan Kwai Fong is
still the core profit and cash contributor of the Group this
year. The successful transformation of Lan Kwai Fong to a
boutique hotel that embraces gaming, recreation and tourist
accommodation has solidified our role in Macau’s hotel and
gaming industry. However, Macau gaming industry has been
facing unprecedented challenges with unfavourable market
conditions which are notably anticipated to remain difficult in
the short term. The hotel and gaming service operations in
Lan Kwai Fong is unavoidable influence by the market trend
of Macau gaming industry. Those unfavourable factors include
full smoking ban in casinos and restriction on visitation to
Macau from the Mainland China and have inevitably affected
the overall gaming revenue and caused the short term
recession in the gaming industry. Being a boutique size hotel,
we can response efficiently to the changing market condition
by shifting the number of gaming tables between mass market
and VIP operations and therefore strengthen our performance
in the mass market. In addition, we have implemented more
stringent cost control measure on operation expense and
marketing expense. Marketing plan is implemented to develop
a close relationship with our customers in order to secure the
return rate of them.
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Nam Pei Hong operations are expected to adversely influence
by the downturn trend in the retail market in Hong Kong. Nam
Pei Hong will utilize its strength by shifting back to its core
business, the sale of “Sum Yung” products. Being one of the
famous brand name shop in the product of “Sum Yung”, Nam
Pei Hong will actively develop our wholesale business by
utilizing our staff's expertize in the products and network in
the market. All our staff will stay alert, gather business data
and market information and hope to maintain our revenue and
profit margin in this adverse market condition.

The Group will continue its furtherance and development of its
already well established film production business. Recently,
the film industry in the Mainland China has entered a golden
phase of rapid development, continuously breaking records
of box office receipts. In fact, the Group has allocate more
resources to film production in years before and has producing
a film which is tentatively known as “League of Gods #ffii{#
#1”. The film has completed shooting in June 2015 and is in
its post production period and will tentatively planned to be on
screen within year 2016. The Group is studying and preparing
for any new production once we have satisfied with the initial
feasibility study. Given our extensive experience in production
and the strong distribution network in the film industry, the
Group is confident in capture this golden opportunities in the

film industry and maximizing our value and return.

Given the superb location of the Sites, the current condition
of the Macau properties market, the Group’s solid experience
in renovation of Lan Kwai Fong and the comparatively
lower purchase cost of the Sites, the Group is confident in
development of the Sites.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain strong financial position
in order to capture suitable opportunities. Looking forward,
the Group will continue to strive to achieve healthy and stable
growth by enhancing profitability, maximize its investment
return and diversify its business when suitable opportunity
arises.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. HEUNG Wah Keung, aged 67, is the Chairman and
executive director of the Company. He is the husband of Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, Vice Chairman and executive director
of the Company. He has over 30 years of experience in the
entertainment and multimedia industries. He was the founder
of Win’s Entertainment Limited (“Win’s”) and One Hundred
Years of Film Company Limited (“One Hundred Years”), which
produces films recommended by audiences and distributors
around the world. He is also the honorable chairman and
director of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited. He was the chairman and
executive director of China Star Cultural Media Group Limited
(formerly known as China Media and Films Holdings Limited) (a
company listed on the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) during the period
from 28th March 2014 to 6th October 2014. Mr. Heung was
appointed as an executive director of the Company in 1996.

Ms. CHEN Ming Yin, Tiffany, aged 59, is the Vice Chairman
and executive director of the Company. She is the wife of
Mr. Heung Wah Keung and has over 25 years of experience
in the entertainment and multimedia industries. Ms. Chen
has produced a number of blockbuster films for Win's and
One Hundred Years. In 2003, she was selected as one of
2003 Women in Entertainment — International Power by The
Hollywood Reporter. Ms. Chen was responsible for all planning
and monitoring of the purchase of Macau Kingsway Hotel
in 2007 and then renovated and designed it into two years
later’s Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau that launched in August
2009. Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has been awarded with
several international accolades, which included the “5th China
Hotel Starlight Awards 2009 — Best Designed Boutique Hotel
of China” and the “2012 TripAdvisor Travelers’ Choice 2012
Winner — Trendiest”. In respect of promoting the notion of
environmental protection, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has won
the “AHF Asia Awards 2010 — Leading Green Hotel of Asia”
and the “Macao Green Hotel Award 2010 — Bronze Award”.
The result has been obvious and encouraging. Ms. Chen was
appointed as an executive director of the Company in 1996.
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Ms. LI Yuk Sheung, aged 48, is an executive director of
the Company. She has more than 20 years experience of
management in the entertainment and multimedia industries.
She is responsible for the overall operations, and is familiar
with the Group’s system. Ms. Li was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 2001.

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 75, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. He has been the
chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited since 1991 and was the
chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards Association from 1992 to
1995. He was also appointed as a consultant of the China Film
Association. Mr. Hung is also a member of the 1,200-member-
HKSAR Election Committee and a vice-chairman of the
Cultural Profession Committee of the Guangdong, Hong Kong
and Macau Cooperation Promotion Council (BXR& E#HRE
EfREe X {tEEZE@RE(EZLE). Mr. Hung was awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the HKSAR Government
in 2005 in recognition of his contribution to the Hong Kong
film industry. Mr. Hung was appointed by the HKSAR as a
member of the Working Group on Manufacturing Industries,
Innovative Technology, and Cultural and Creative Industries
under the Economic Development Commission on an ad
personam basis for a term of two years on 17th January 2013,
and renewal for a term of two years from 2015. Mr. Hung
was a non-executive director of Capital VC Limited and an
independent non-executive director of Mascotte Holdings
Limited, both companies are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, during the period from 15th September 2011
to 29th January 2014 and 22nd January 2013 to 26th October
2015 respectively. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Freeman Financial Corporation Limited
and Unity Investments Holdings Limited since 9th January
2013 and 10th October 2014 respectively, and was appointed
as an executive director of Universe International Holdings
Limited since 16th October 2013. All these companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung
was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company in
1996.
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Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 64, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is the managing
partner of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), and is an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited and Ngai
Hing Hong Company Limited, both companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company in 1996.

Mr. TANG Chak Lam, Gilbert, aged 65, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1987 and is a senior partner
of Messrs. Gilbert Tang & Co.. He was a director of Pok Oi
Hospital in 1993 and a member of the Kowloon West Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Bank Foundation District Community
Programme between July 1991 and November 1995.
Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the University
of Buckingham in the United Kingdom, and a Diploma in
Chinese Law from the University of East Asia in Macau.
He was an independent non-executive director of Eternity
Investment Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange) during the period from 6th February 2002 to
30th August 2011. Mr. Tang was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2011.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Cheuk Fai, aged 58, is the general manager of the
Company. Mr. Ng is well versed in the Macau gaming market
and is responsible for providing updated market information as
to the trend, the move as well as the performance of various
market practitioners in Macau. Mr. Ng joined the Group in
2008.

Ms. LI Yee Mei, aged 53, is the Talent and PR Controller of the

Group, has 30 years of experience in entertainment business
and culture industry. Ms. Li joined the Group in 1996.
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Ms. TSANG Anna,
Administration Department of the Group. She has over 15

aged 51, is the Manager-Legal
years of experience in the TV and film industry and with
extensive knowledge and expertise in all legal aspects relating
to production, distribution and copyright enforcement. Ms.
Tsang joined the Group in 1999.

Mr. WAI Kai Fai,
Consultant since 2000. He has produced and directed films

aged 53, has served as the Group’s Film

and television drama series for more than 20 years, many
of which earned awards and were screened at international
Wai’'s “Look Back with Anger” and “The
Greed of Man” were hugely popular television drama series

film festivals. Mr.

attracting over 100 million viewers when they were on air. The
feature films that has been made as director and producer
“Love On A Diet”, “Fat Choi Spirit”,
“My Left Eye Sees Ghosts”, “Love For All Seasons”, “Running
“Mad Detective”,

include “Needing You”,

On Karma”, “Fantasia”,

“Written By” etc.

“The Shopaholics”,

Ms. WONG Shuk Han, Dorothy, aged 50, is the Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company. She
graduated from the City Polytechnic University with a bachelor
degree in Accountancy in 1990. She is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Prior to her employment with the Group, she
worked with an international accounting firm for over 10 years.
Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for the supervision of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting procedures and
internal control system. She joined the Group in 2001,

Ms. YEUNG Porlin, age 50,
Company.

is the Regional Director of the
She has over 15 years experience in TV and
film industry and as of 2006 she has extend her scope of
services to serviced residences, hotel operations and pre-
In 2013, Ms. Yeung
was appointed as the Executive Director of Hotel Lan Kwai

opening projects in Beijing and Macau.

Fong Macau. She graduated from the University of Leicester,
UK with a MBA and is an Advanced Certification holder
in Hospitality Management at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Ms. Yeung joined the group in 1997.
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Mr. TODD Evan, aged 50,
of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. He graduated from Cornell

is the Chief Operating Officer

University in the U.S. with a bachelor degree in 1989. Over
the years, he has worked for Andersen Consulting and
Swire Pacific Limited. He first joined our Group in 1995 and
worked over five years in the area of film distribution in the
PRC.
the operation of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. Mr. Todd was

In 2009, he rejoined our Group and began involved in

appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong Macau in 2013.

Mr. LEl Weng Cheong, William, aged 40, a senior gaming
industry participant, is the Vice President of the Marketing
Department, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. He has over 15
years experience in marketing strategic planning and has a
thorough understanding in Macau gaming industry. At the
present moment, he focuses mainly in the market planning and
the operation of marketing department. Mr. Lei was appointed
as the Vice President of Marketing Department, Hotel Lan Kwai

Fong Macau in 2012.

Mr. LEONG Heng Seong, Antonio, aged 68,
Consultant of Casino Operations, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau.

is the Senior

He has over 48 years experience in gaming industry. He has
thorough knowledge in gaming operations and customer
behavior. Mr. Leong was appointed as the Vice President of
Casino Operations in 2008 to 2013.
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INTRODUCTION

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company and the management of the Company are committed
to establishing good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The maintenance of high standard of business
ethics and corporate governance practices has always
been one of the goals of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”).
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective

The Company believes that good corporate
management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the
Group believes that its accountability and transparency will
be improved thereby instilling confidence to shareholders
and the public. Throughout the financial year ended 31st
December 2015,

and complied with all the applicable code provisions laid

the Company has applied the principles

down in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) save for
certain deviations, details of which will be explained in the
section “Deviations from the Code” in this report. The Board
has, since the amendments to the Listing Rules regarding
corporate governance practices were first proposed by the
Stock Exchange, continued to monitor and review the Group’s
progress in respect of corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance. Meetings were held throughout the year
and where appropriate, circulars and other guidance notes
were issued to directors and senior management of the
Group to ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate
governance practices.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performances and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes
responsibility for decision making in all major matters of the
Company including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, the setting of objectives, annual budgets and overall
strategies, material transaction, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the senior executives. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day operation
and management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by these senior executives
and the Board has the full support of them to discharge its
responsibilities.

Composition

As at 31st December 2015, the Board comprises six Directors:
including three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Heung Wah
Keung (Chairman), Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (Vice Chairman,
performing the role of chief executive as stated in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules) and Ms. Li Yuk Sheung and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Hung Cho
Sing, Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert.

One of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The number of
independent non-executive Directors is more than one-third
of the Board. Biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 23 to 27.
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The presence of three independent non-executive Directors is
considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance between
executive and non-executive Directors. The Board is of the
opinion that such balance can provide adequate checks and
balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders and of
the Group. The independent non-executive Directors provide
to the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience
so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised
as well as ensuring that the interests of all shareholders are
taken into account. They are also responsible for participating
in Board meetings, dealing with potential conflicts of interest,
serving on audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee, scrutinising the Group’s performance
and reporting. Through their active participation, they provide
their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and
the committees on which they serve so that the management
process can be critically reviewed and controlled.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field
of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal
and professional ethics and integrity. All the Directors give
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The
Board believes that the ratio of executive to non-executive
Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide checks and
balances that safeguard the interest of the shareholders and
the Company as a whole.

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of
new director and nomination for re-election by shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Under the
Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”), the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any new director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the next following annual general meeting. Any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting

of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Pursuant to bye-law 99(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Hung Cho

Sing will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015
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CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

The roles of Chairman and Vice Chairman (performing the
role of chief executive) are separate and not performed by
the same individual to ensure that there is a clear division of
responsibilities at the board level to entail a balance of power
and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, for
ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and for ensuring
communication of the views of the Board to the public. In
performing this role, the Chairman’s responsibilities include
chairing meetings of the Board; ensuring the board meetings
receive accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors;
formulating for discussion and decision, questions which
have been moved for the consideration of the Board; ensuring
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings; acting as liaison between the Board and
management; in consultation with the Vice Chairman and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at least
annually hold meetings with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of the executive Directors.

The Vice Chairman is primarily responsible for recommending
policy and strategic directions for Board approval;
implementing the strategies and policies adopted by the
Board; and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENCE

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management
expertise, in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Group
has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence. The Company
considers these Directors to be independent under the

guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such
in all corporate communications containing the names of the
Directors. In addition, there is no material relationship among
members of the Board except that Mr. Heung Wah Keung, the
Chairman, is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the
Vice Chairman of the Company.

DEVIATIONS FROM THE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31st December 2015, the Company
complied with the Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
except for the following deviations:

(a) Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-

executive Directors should be appointed for a specific
all the
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed

term and subject to re-election. However,

for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of
the Bye-laws. The Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the Code; and

(b) Under the code provision A.6.7 of the Code, all the
independent non-executive Directors should attend
general meetings. Mr. Hung Cho Sing, an independent
non-executive Director, was not able to attend the

special general meeting of the Company held on 23rd

October 2015 due to another business engagement.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
remunerated at HK$120,000 per year.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times every
year to determine overall strategic direction and objectives
and approve interim and annual results, and other significant
matters. At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meeting
are given to all Directors, who are all given an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for discussion.
Apart from regular meetings, senior management from time
to time provides Directors with information on activities and
development of the businesses of the Group. The company
secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the
meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
in connection with the meetings are observed and complied
with. The finalized agenda and accompanying board papers
are then sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior to the
meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed minutes
of the meetings and keeps records of matters discussed and
decision resolved at the meetings.

REBEEERN DEFIN EEeeZ - 8EHEA During the year under review, 14 board meetings were held.
& BEeRAAUSEe ey HENT Details of the attendance of the Directors at the general
meetings, meetings of the Board and its respective committees
are as follows:
HEE RN
Number of meetings attended
R R B F PR 3R 4% Bl Exeg3 BREES FMEES REZES
rE e =k e e
Annual Special Audit Remuneration Nomination
EEHNSR General General Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director Meeting_; Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BITES
Executive Directors
) = 58 11 11 14/14* iE A i@ A 1/1
Heung Wah Keung N/A N/A
FER N B N N N
(RZE—RFAA—HET) 36 A 36 A 4/4 TEA i@ A T iE A
Mung Kin Keung
(resigned on 1st May 2015) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
PR AR & 11 11 13/13 T iE A 1/1 TiE
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany N/A N/A
= 11 1/1 13/13 i A i A NiEHM
Li Yuk Sheung N/A N/A N/A
BYKHTES
Independent Non-Executive Directors
HEE 1/1 01 14/14* 2/2 11 11
Hung Cho Sing
falfE & 1/ 1/1 14/14 2/2 T A TE M
Ho Wai Chi, Paul N/A N/A
EDZ AR 11 1/1 14/14* 2/2 11 11

Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert

- Hh - REZReZRmESEIRERBRTESRY
BzERT RBIEMITERET -
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Included a Board meeting where the Chairman of the Board
met with independent non-executive Directors, without the
presence of the executive Directors.
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During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performances and discuss the annual and interim
results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and decide on
other significant matters. The execution of daily operational
matters is delegated to management of the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each
board meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including the
record of all decisions by the Board together with concerns
raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts of
board minutes are circulated to all directors for comment and
approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by
any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information
at all times as the Chairman ensures that the management
will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant
information in a timely manner. They may make further
enquiries if in their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to
request for further information.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the company secretary, who is held responsible for
providing Directors with board papers and related materials
and ensuring that all proper Board procedures are followed
and that all applicable laws and regulations are complied with.
If considered necessary and appropriate by the Directors, they
may retain the service of independent professional advisers at
the Group’s expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a
substantial shareholder or a director, such matter will be
discussed in a physical meeting and will not be dealt with
by way of written resolutions. Independent non-executive
Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

The board committees, including the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee, have
all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in
board meetings for all committee meetings.

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015
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The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are the primary forum for communication by
the Company with the shareholders and for shareholders’
participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at meetings on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
must keep breast of their collective responsibilities as
directors and of the business of the Group. As such, the
Group provides a comprehensive and formal induction to each
newly appointed director upon his/her appointment. Briefings
and orientations are provided and organised to ensure that
the new Directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their
legal and other duties as a director as well as the business
and governance practices of the Group. Such programmes
are tailored to each individual director taking into account
their background and expertise. The company secretary will
continuously update all Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors.

All Directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes provided or procured by the Group,
such as external seminars organised by qualified professionals
update materials regarding laws and regulation and the Listing
Rules, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
relation to their contribution to the Board. A record of the
training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.
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The participation by individual director in the continuous
professional development programme with appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a
listed company in 2015 is recorded in the following table.

MEEERE SHEMRHEEN
EHEHR mEE EE
Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/
EEHE Name of Director updates programmes
HITES Executive Directors
[DE: Heung Wah Keung v
SRBEW-_ZT—AFAA—HB&HMD Mung Kin Keung (resigned on 1st May 2015) v
R A 2 Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany v
TR Li Yuk Sheung v
BYkHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
HEE Hung Cho Sing v
RS Ho Wai Chi, Paul v v
BE M Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert v/ v

REFEREEREZERBREFALAEEREALRN
MBMETZBUBERNEE  UREME

AN=""IVAN

N /NTDSS

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter
on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the number and

R -
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nature of offices held by such Director in public companies
and organizations and other significant commitments.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was formed with specific
written terms of reference. As at 31st December 2015, the
remuneration committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang
Chak Lam, Gilbert, and an executive Director, namely, Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. Mr. Hung Cho Sing is the chairman of
the committee.

The remuneration committee is responsible for formulating
and recommending to the Board the remuneration policy,
determining the remuneration of executive Directors
and members of senior management of the Group. This
committee consults with the Chairman on its proposals and
recommendations and has access to professional advice
if deemed necessary. The remuneration committee is also
provided with other resources enabling it to discharge its
duties.

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015
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The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee
are posted on the Company’s website. The remuneration
committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee
held 1 meeting to determine the remuneration package for the
staff of the Group. No Director is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2015 by band is set out below:
Remuneration band Number of individuals
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000

- N A~ N

Further details of the executive Directors’ remuneration for the
year ended 31st December 2015 are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee was formed with specific written
terms of reference. As at 31st December 2015, the nomination
committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Hung
Cho Sing, and an executive Director, namely Mr. Heung Wah
Keung. Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert is the chairman of the
nomination committee.

The duties of the nomination committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting individuals nominated for directorship,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the vice
chairman.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee
are posted on the Company’s website. The nomination
committee meets at least once a year.
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During the year under review, the nomination committee held
1 meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the

Board and to review the Board Diversity Policy.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) in
2013. The key terms of the Policy are set out as follows:

Purpose

The Policy aims to set out the approach to diversity on
the Board.

Scope

The Policy applies to the Board. It does not apply to
diversity in relation to the employees of the Company,
nor the board of directors and the employees of any
subsidiary of the Company.

Policy Statement

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
the Company’s competitive advantage.

The nomination committee will review annually the
structure, size and composition of the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. In relation to reviewing and assessing the
Board composition, the nomination committee will
consider a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
industry and regional experience.

Measureable Objectives

The nomination committee will discuss and agree on
the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance
of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant
to the Company’s business growth.

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015
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Monitoring and Reporting

A summary of the Policy and where applicable, the
measureable objectives that the Board has adopted
for implementation of the Policy should be disclosed
annually in the Company’s Corporate Governance
Report.

Review of the Policy

The nomination committee will review the Policy
annually and where appropriate, recommend revisions
to the Board for consideration and approval.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written

terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Rule

3.21 of the Listing Rules requires that the audit committee

must comprise a minimum of three non-executive directors

only, at least one of them should be independent non-

executive directors with appropriate professional qualifications

or accounting or related financial management expertise. The

main duties of the audit committee include the followings:

(a)

To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
external auditor before submission to the Board.

To review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,

re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated

procedures.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific

terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s

website. The audit committee is provided with sufficient

resources enabling it to discharge its duties.
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As at 31st December 2015, the audit committee has three
members, namely Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul (chairman of the
audit committee), Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang Chak
Lam, Gilbert, all being independent non-executive Directors.
No member of the audit committee is a former partner of
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the existing auditing firm of the Company within one year on
the date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any financial
interest in the auditing firm. The audit committee has reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
with the management team of the Company. During the year,
the audit committee held two meetings to review the Group’s
annual report and interim report.

The audit committee has also reviewed the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes as well as
the re-appointment of the external auditor. There is no material
uncertainty relating to events and conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. There is no disagreement between the Board
and the audit committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Group’s external auditors is HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has written to
the Audit Committee confirming that they are independent
with respect to the Company and that there is no relationship
between HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and the
Company which may reasonably be thought to bear on their
independence. In order to maintain the external auditors’
independence, it would only be employed for non-audit
work if the work does not compromise the external auditors’
independence and has been pre-approved by the Audit
Committee. During the year, the external auditors provided
audit services and non-audit services to the Group. Audit
services include services provided in connection with the audit
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Non audit
services include services such as issuance of special audit
reports or interim review or other regulatory purposes, and
reviews of internal control systems, where the external auditors
is best placed to undertake in its capacity as auditors.
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The Company’s annual report for the year ended 31st
December 2015 has been reviewed by the audit committee.
The financial statements for the year were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit
committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for appointment as the
auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

For the year ended 31st December 2015, the fees paid and
payable in respect of audit services and non-audit services
provided by the auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited,
amounted to approximately HK$891,000 and approximately
HK$420,000 respectively.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit
committee meetings. In line with practices consistent with
Board meetings and other committee meetings, draft and final
versions of audit committee meeting minutes are circulated to
all members of the audit committee for comments, approval

and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. All the members of
the Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31st December 2015. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.

The directors’ interests in shares of the Company and its
associated corporations are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Report” on pages 46 to 56.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group. The auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the
financial statements prepared by the Directors and report the
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company.
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The Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 57 to 59 set out
the reporting responsibilities of the auditors of the Company
for the consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. The company secretary reports to the
Board, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and for facilitating information flows and
communications among Directors as well as with shareholders
and the management. Ms. Wong Shuk Han has been
appointed as the company secretary of the Company with
effect from December 2001 and Ms. Wong has complied with
the training requirement of the Listing Rules during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board will therefore be responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc.

During the financial year ended 31st December 2015, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, with the audit committee, is responsible for
overseeing and maintaining sound and effective internal
control systems for the Company to safeguard its assets
and shareholders’
effectiveness of such systems. The Board from time to time
conducts a review of the Group’s internal control systems. The
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions during the year under
review.

interests, as well as for reviewing the

In such review, the Board has considered factors such
as changes since the last review, scope and quality of
management’s monitoring of risks; incidence of significant
control failings and weaknesses identified; and effectiveness
relating to financial reporting and compliance with the

applicable laws and regulations including the Listing Rules.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. All Directors
have formal letters of appointment setting out key terms and
conditions relative to their appointment. Due to the diversity
and volume of the Group’s business, responsibility in relation
to the daily operations and execution of the strategic business
plans are delegated to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, have specific terms
of reference clearly defining the authorities and responsibilities
of the respective committees. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to
their decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain
specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking

any actions.

The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the
Board to different committees to ensure that such delegations
are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Company
as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability to provide adequate cover, as determined
by the Board, in respect of the Board members and senior
management members of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders. The
commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can be
reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with

shareholders, the annual general meeting provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
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The Chairman was also actively involved in organizing, and
personally held the annual general meeting in 2015 in order
to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated to the
Board. A separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each separate issue at the annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed
from time to time to ensure the Company conforms to the best
practices regarding corporate governance. The annual general
meeting circular, which is circulated to all shareholders at least
21 days prior to the holding of the annual general meeting,
sets out the details in relation to each resolution proposed,
voting procedures (including procedures for demanding
and conducting a poll) and other relevant information. At the
Company’s 2015 annual general meeting, all the resolutions
were put to the vote by poll and Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the
votes were properly counted. The rights of shareholders
and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at
shareholders’ meeting are contained in the Bye-laws.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through
its annual and interim reports. The Directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
also respond promptly to inquiries from shareholders and
investors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special General
Meeting (the “SGM”)

The Board shall,
shareholders of not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital

on the requisition in writing of the

of the Company upon which all calls or other sums then due
have been paid, forthwith proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of
the original deposit.
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PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 3409, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2313 1888

Email: mail@chinastar.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to shareholders and
investors. The Company updates shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through its
annual and interim reports and notices, announcements and
circulars. The Company’'s website (www.chinastar.com.hk)
provides a communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31st December, 2015, there had
been no significant change in the Company’s constitutional

documents.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerable effort
to strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate
governance of the Group.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Group is principally engaged in film production,
distribution of films and television drama series, provision of
artist management services, sales of health products, investing
in operations which receive profit streams from the gaming
promotion business, property and hotel investment, food and
beverage operations and property development.

The activities of its subsidiaries and joint ventures are set out
in notes 51 and 52 to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2015 are set out in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 60
and 61 respectively.

The financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2015
is set out in the consolidated statement of financial position on

pages 62 and 63.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2015.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review, discussion and analysis of the
development, operating performance and financial position
and particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31st December
2015 are set out in sections headed “Chairman Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 4 to 7, pages 8 to 22 and page
247 respectively. Such discussions constitute an integral part
of this report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses are
subject to various important factors, including the relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers. The Board
believes that the employees are one of the Group’s most
important assets. The Company will strive to ensure that the
remuneration level of employees is in line with relevant industry
practices and prevailing market conditions. Remunerations of
employees will be determined based on their performance.
Details of employees benefits are included in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report.

In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a long-
term and stable relationship with the Company’s customers
and suppliers for the continuous success and growth of the
Group’s businesses. Generally, the Group strengthen its
customer service by providing superior quality service to the
users, and strive to achieve the fastest response times and
highest customer satisfaction levels in the relevant industry. In
the hotel and gaming service operation business, the Group
has a team of well-trained marketing employees which will
develop good relationships with each customer and ensure
their return rate and satisfaction. In Nam Pei Hong operation
business, membership system is maintained which will offer
special discounts to those members in order to facilitate
communication and connection with those customers.
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Supply chain is a critical part of all our operations. Our
suppliers must meet our selection criteria, which include
security, safety, cost, quality, delivery and reliability. The
Group will enter into suppliers’ agreements with qualified
suppliers in order to secure our services and products are
being supplied to our standard within our budgeted costs. One
major supplier of the Group is the licence holder in the service
agreements with Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau, the Group has
maintained close working relationship and contact with their
management and employees to help us perform better in
the hotel and gaming service operation, to comply with the
relevant rules and regulations and to access our marketing
strategy in the hotel.

The Group’s continuous effort to build trust and emphasise
mutual benefits with its customers and suppliers has
contributed to the long-term relationships with them.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The possible business risks and uncertainties, interest rate
risk and foreign exchange risk facing by the Group are set
out in section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 8 to 22. The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operating its various business
segments in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Group
also educates its employees on their awareness in promoting
a “green” environment. The Board believes that operating
the Company’s businesses in an environmentally-friendly
manner is crucial to fulfilling the Company’s corporate social
responsibilities.

Green initiatives and measures have been adopted in the
hotel, retail shops and offices of the Group. Such initiatives
include energy saving measures and water saving practices,
use of recycling papers, recycling of used papers and
encourage paperless environment.
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In respect of promoting the notion of environment protection,
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has won the “AHF Asia Awards
2010 - Leading Green Hotel of Asia” and the “Macao Green
Hotel Award 2010 — Bronze Awards”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Board, during the year ended
31st December 2015,
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the Group has complied with the

the business and operation of the Group. Furthermore, as the
shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Company is also subject to the rules and requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Securities and
Futures Ordinace (the “SFQO").

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31st December
2015 is set out on page 247.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment, interests in leasehold land and investment
properties of the Group are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to
the financial statements respectively.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in stock of properties of
the Group are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of movements during the year in bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases of the Group are set out in
notes 36 and 37 to the financial statements respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

As at 31st December 2015, the total issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 753,104,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 64 to 66. Movements during the year in the reserves of
the Company are set out in note 53 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,662,664,000 as at 31st December 2015
(2014: HK$2,253,606,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2015, revenue attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 71% of the Group’s revenue and revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 69% of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31st December 2015, purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 60% of the Group’s purchases
and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 32% of the Group’s purchases.

None of the directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interests in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Heung Wah Keung

Mr. Mung Kin Keung (resigned on 1st May 2015)
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

Ms. Li Yuk Sheung

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Hung Cho Sing
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert

Mr. Mung King Keung resigned as executive director of the
Company with effect from 1st May 2015 due to his other
business commitments which require more of his time and
dedication.

Under Bye-law 99(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Hung Cho Sing shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for
re-election.

The term of office for each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 23 to 27.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting
principles. These mainly relate to transactions entered into
by the Group in the ordinary course of business, negotiated
on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis.
Particulars are set out in note 50 to the financial statements.

These transactions do not constitute “connected transaction”
or “continuing connected transaction” of the Group that need
to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
which requires the Company to give a period of notice of
more than one year, or to pay compensation or make other
payments equivalent to more than one year’s emolument.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations and other donation
during the year of approximately HK$124,000.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31st December 2015, the interests of the directors
and their associates in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register (“Register
of Interests”) maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

FAREBRER Interests in ordinary shares of the Company
RS
ERal=g )
FrERa#E Approximate
Expgs 14 Number of percentage of
Name of director Capacity shares held interests held
A28 58 5 A REEE R 186,448,146* 24.76

Mr. Heung Wah Keung Interest of controlled corporation

BRAF S 2 £ REEE 2 B 186,448,146* 24.76

Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

LESERER o

52

Interest of controlled corporation

All interests stated above represent long positions.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

*

These shares are held as to 186,446,502 shares by Heung
Wah Keung Family Endowment Limited (a company owned
as to 50% by Mr. Heung and as to 50% by Ms. Chen) and
as to 1,644 shares by Dorest Company Limited (a company
beneficially owned as to 60% by Ms. Chen and as to 40% by
Mr. Heung).

Other than as set out above, as at 31st December 2015, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the Register of Interests or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company or their respective close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2015, the register of substantial

BBEIHARRIATHEFZIERREZLMA uaﬁ‘ ﬁf shareholders maintained by the Company under Section 336 of
EXFBEBEETES RN UTRREELRR the SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed above
BEITIRAE %A v A in respect of certain directors, the following shareholders had
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the
Company:
FEEREEI LAY
FEROXEEARGEE Approximate
£ L Number of shares percentage of
Name Capacity or underlying shares held interests held
Heung Wah Keung Family ExlEAA 186,446,502 24.76
Endowment Limited Beneficial owner
Long Joy Investments Limited ExmAA 60,000,000 7.97
Beneficial owner
MESEARAT REEEz A 60,000,000 (#/it) 7.97

Well Way Group Limited
LiigsmE RTR -

Hfat - WERD fLong Joy Investments Limited3F A ©

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

Interest of controlled corporation

(note)

All interests stated above represent long positions.

Note: These shares are held by Long Joy Investments Limited.
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Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other interests or short positions representing
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31st
December 2015.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2015.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to their duties
and responsibilities in the Company. Details of the emoluments
of the directors are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
share option schemes of the Company are set out in note 49
to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year, except as disclosed
below:

(a) the share option schemes of the Company as set out in
note 49 to the financial statement; and
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(b) On 1st June 2015, Heung Wah Keung Family
Endowment Limited ("HWKFE”), the Company and a
placing agent entered into a placing and subscription
agreement pursuant to which HWKFE agreed to place,
through the placing agent on a best effect basis, up to
an aggregate of 2,887,900,000 existing ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each (nominal value being HK$28,879,000)
to not fewer than six independent investors at a price
of HK$0.12 per share and HWKFE has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for up to an aggregate of
2,887,900,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.12 per
new share. The closing price per share was HK$0.13 as
at 1st June 2015 and the net price per new share was
approximately HK$0.116. The placing and subscription
was completed on 9th June 2015 upon HWKFE placed
2,887,900,000 shares to independent investors on
4th June 2015 and the Company allotted and issued
2,887,900,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each at a price
of HK$0.12 per share under the general mandate
obtained at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 26th June 2014 to HWKFE on 9th June 2015
respectively. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$336.27 million were intended to be used for film
production and/or general working capital purpose.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2015 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Company has undertaken and
maintained a collective liability insurance policy covering,
among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated
companies” (as such term is defined under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the directors of the Company or their respective close
associates had any interest in a business which competes with
or may compete with the business of the Company.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
28 to 45.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public float
during the year and up to the date of this report as required
under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company have been audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent
year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th March 2016
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

B&E 31st Floor
PIREITH115R Gloucester Tower
BihEi5 The Landmark
ERTITKE3E 11 Pedder Street

Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Star Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 60 to 246, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31st December 2015, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries at 31st December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 29th March 2016
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—E-—I1F —E-MEF
2015 2014
HaE FERT FHET
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Ik &= Revenue 7 1,044,506 1,283,597
HER AR Cost of sales (581,784) (633,455)
EM Gross profit 462,722 650,142
H At U &= Other revenue 108,382 50,889
H A Other income 915 3,279
THHX Administrative expenses (383,065) (397,562)
TISHE « HE RBEITHX Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (85,515) (69,938)
DERFHIEERREZ Gain arising on change in
CREECATEEY fair value of financial assets
FrEE A& 2 % 7 classified as held for trading investments 99,638 8,110
Hi g Emx Other operating expenses (66,186) (18,200)
KERA Profit from operations 136,891 226,720
BE KA Finance costs 10 (29,314) (16,339)
BiEaELEES Share of results of joint ventures 138 (530)
B i A & A Profit before tax 11 107,715 209,851
PRI R Income tax credit 12 149 160
FEEER Profit for the year 107,864 210,011
RMTATEGEEERT Profit for the year attributable to:
ZIN/NETE SN Owners of the Company 107,871 209,665
FEIERE Non-controlling interests (7) 346
107,864 210,011
—E—-AfF —E—F
2015 2014
A P
HK cents HK cents
(E7)
(restated)
BRER Earnings per share
AR Basic 14 15.25 40.25
e Diluted 14 14.31 40.25

BEM 2 MY EE AR UL F M B wR 2 — B0
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financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that will not reclassified to profit or loss:

Gain on revaluation of property

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
consolidated income statement:

Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations:
Exchange differences arising during the year
Reclassification adjustments relating to
foreign operations disposed of during the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

financial statements.

—E-HF —ZT -
2015 2014
THERT TET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
107,864 210,011
48,171 -
(103) (71)
- (79)
48,068 (150)
155,932 209,861
155,939 209,495
(7) 366
155,932 209,861

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

WZZ—HE+-A=+—H At 31st December 2015
—E-RE — g F
2015 2014
iz FERT FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
IRBEE Non-current assets
W - B R Property, plant and equipment 17 426,633 513,929
e s Interests in leasehold land 18 418,455 441,613
"EME Investment properties 19 116,060 6,190
[EES Goodwill 21 - _
EREE Intangible assets 22 17,911 25,353
REERERER Interests in joint ventures 23 251 113
979,310 987,198
REEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 24 70,209 73,073
MERFE Stock of properties 25 567,973 566,363
B hRIE Film rights 26 12,545 14,591
BHER B Films in progress 27 380,606 79,390
BREE Investment in film 28 11,325 -
2 5 W IR Trade receivables 29 119,427 115,636
e BRREKR Deposits, prepayment and
H 4th fE Uk 5K A other receivables 30 67,068 662,033
BIEEBEKRE Held for trading investments 31 305,812 36,332
FEU & R Loan receivables 32 1,225,000 600,000
JE Wi SE 4 iR 4 2R SR IE Amounts due from non-controlling interests 33 329 -
Ul —EaELEREA Amount due from a joint venture 33 12 -
TEHBIIE Prepaid tax 153 240
Re MRITE R Cash and bank balances 34 1,051,692 323,939
3,812,151 2,471,597
HEE Total assets 4,791,461 3,458,795
BAR#E Capital and reserves
N Share capital 35 7,531 159,397
& Reserves 3,458,659 2,762,686
AATEBAEMER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 3,466,190 2,922,083
IR Non-controlling interests (433) (426)
ERER Total equity 3,465,757 2,921,657
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MN-ZE—RF+-_A=+—H At 31st December 2015

—E-—I1F —E-MEF
2015 2014
Mt FB T FiET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FREBAE Non-current liabilities
IRITIEE Bank borrowings 36 790,000 -
MEBEER Obligations under finance leases 37 584 819
AR A F Convertible bonds 38 - -
BERIARE Deferred tax liabilities 39 82,948 83,270
873,532 84,089
REEE Current liabilities
RITEE Bank borrowings 36 134,928 315,819
RMEHEER Obligations under finance leases 37 235 247
B I ENERR Trade payables 40 39,648 39,136
BUWEE S - FEFTIEE Deposits received, accruals and
N H A FE S F0E other payables 41 277,336 97,528
ERNEERERIE Amounts due to joint ventures 33 25 25
FEA FEAE R 25 5R0B Amounts due to non-controlling interests 33 - 294
452,172 453,049
BEHE Total liabilities 1,325,704 537,138
EEREEAR Total equity and liabilities 4,791,461 3,458,795
RBEEFE Net current assets 3,359,979 2,018,548
BREERRBESR Total assets less current liabilities 4,339,289 3,005,746

FARBBRERN _BE-—RFA-_thHHEFTSHE

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

REEFBETHTIEEREES

B #3% Heung Wah Keung

BEF 2 MY SERE AR UL F RIS R 2 — 881D ©

Z & Director

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th March
2016 and signed on its behalf by:

FR B Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
# % Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.
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BE-_ZE—FRF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2015

f % 5% B) % Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ADEREAEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
PYUES TER
ke RHERE  HABH ENiGRE TERE  2HERR BERE ATHERRE DREMRBE  2HEE Nt FERER EL
Share-based  Convertible Capital Property Non-
Share Share  Contributed ~ Exchange  Statutory payment bonds  reduction  revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses ~ Sub-total interests Total
T ThEL ThEL T T Tin T T T ThEL ThEL T T
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
(Hista) () (k) (Hita) (fiite) (i) (i) ()
(note 8) (note b) (note ¢) (note @) (note 6) (note f) (note g) (note h)
RZZ-mE-A-H At 1st January 2014 65,673 112,929 1,744,694 1,006 291 61,881 7905 316,008 - (675,673)  1,634714 (2208) 1,632,486
340 Proitfor the year - - - - - - - - - 9665 20066 6 210011
EEERZERA/(BE)  Other comprehensive
income(loss) for the year - - - (170) - - - - - - (170) 20 (150)
SERENAEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (170) - - - - - 209,665 20949 366 209,861
WENBLAF Acquisition of additional interests
BivEs in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (770) (770) 770 -
SRTHRES Conversion of convertible bonds 2455 209,150 - - - - 8.339) - - - 201,267 - 221,267
HEHELA Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - 1,090 1090
BREER Expiry of share options - - - - - (7.841) - - - 7841 - - -
EffakEs Issue of bonus convertible bonds - - - - - - 43 - - - 943 - 43
RRRSRLAHRG Issue of new shares by subscription 15,000 120,000 - - - - - - - - 135,000 - 135,000
RARSEREAHRA Issue of new shares upon open offer 26,269 302,006 - - - - - - - - 328,365 - 328,365
WEREEZFRRER  Non-controllng interests arising
on acquisition - - - - - - - - - - - (424) (424)
EERD Placement of shares 32,000 368,000 - - - - - - - - 400,000 - 400,000
RERTRRERE Released of deferred tax upon
HRELHE conversion of convertible bonds - - - - - - 622 - - - 622 - 622
BRBRER Share issuing expenses - (7.553) - - - - - - - - (7.553) - (7,559)
RZE-REFZA=F-H At 31st December 2014 and
k¥-%-1%-A-R at 1st January 2015 159,397 1,104,622 1,744,694 836 291 54,040 1,182 316,008 - (458,937) 2,922,083 (46) 2,921,657
EREH Proft for the year - - - - - - - - N F A4 7 M 07
FEENZE Other comprehensive
(E8) /A (loss)fincome for the year - - - (103) - - - - 817 - 48,068 - 48068
FERENAEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (103) - - - - B 0781 155999 n 1559
ERHlE Capital recuction (180,745) - 180,745 - - - - - - - - - -
BREDS Expiry of share options - - - - - (17,192) - - - 17,192 - - -
EERH Placement of sheres 288719 317,669 - - - - - - - - 346,548 - 346,548
B EREENRR Recognition of equity-settled
X 23R share-based payments - - - - - 51,986 - - - - 51,986 - 51,986
LGS Share issuing expenses - (10,366) - - - - - - - - (10,366) - (10,366)
RZF-BEFT-A=T-H  At31st December 2015 7531 1411925 1,925,439 3 291 88,834 1,132 316,008 48,11 (333,874) 3,466,190 (433) 3,465,757

64
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Notes:

(a)

HE+=A=+—HAILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the share premium of the Company can be used in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to members of

the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Group brought forward
represents the amount transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002 and
various capital reduction subsequently.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot make a distribution out of the contributed
surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the realisable value of

its assets would thereby be less than its liabilities.

Exchange reserve represents exchange differences relating
to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in
the exchange reserve shall be reclassified to profit or loss on

disposal of the foreign operations.

In accordance with the article 377 of the Macau Commercial
Code, the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Macau are
required to transfer a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits
to a statutory reserve until that reserve equals 50% of the
nominal value of their capital. The statutory reserve may not be
distributed in the form of cash dividends or otherwise, during

the life of the companies.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
services estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of
the relevant share options over the relevant vesting periods,
the total of which is based on the fair value of the share options
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting period (if any) and is recognised in other operating
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share-based

payment reserve.
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i HE i 5% B) & Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—HFE+=-A=1+—HItFE For the year ended 31st December 2015

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation, convertible bonds issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial recognition
by recognising the liability component at its fair value which
is determined using a market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts and attributing to the equity component
the difference between the proceeds from issue and the fair
value of the liability component. The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity component
is recognised in the convertible bonds reserve until the
convertible bonds are either converted (in which case it is
transferred to share premium) or the convertible bonds are
redeemed (in which case it is released directly to accumulated
losses).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 25th October
2012 in relation to the bonus issue of shares (with a right for
shareholders to elect to receive bonus convertible bonds
(“Bonus CBs”) in lieu of bonus shares), Bonus CBs convertible
into ordinary shares at initial conversion price of HK$0.01 per
share (subject to adjustment) were issued by the Company.
The Bonus CBs are recognised as equity and are presented
in “convertible bonds reserve”. The Bonus CBs are unlisted
and irredeemable but have conversion rights entitling the
bondholders to convert into an equivalent number of shares
as the number of bonus shares which the bondholders would
otherwise be entitled to receive under the bonus issue had the
shareholder not elected for the Bonus CBs. The Bonus CBs do
not carry voting rights at any general meeting of shareholders
of the Company. The bondholders can exercise the conversion
rights at any time after the issue of Bonus CBs, subject to the
terms and conditions of the applicable deed polls constituting
the Bonus CBs.

The capital reduction reserve represents the amount arising in
relation to the reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the directors
pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the Company’'s Bye-laws, the
capital reduction reserve shall be applicable for meeting claims
on or liabilities of the Company or contingencies or for paying
off any loan capital or for equalising dividends or for any other
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly
applied.

Property revaluation reserve relates the property transferred
from owner-occupied to investment properties. The excess
amount between the fair value and the carrying amount of
the property at the date of transfer is included in the property
revaluation reserve, and will be transferred to accumulated
losses upon the retirement or disposal of the relevant property.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs
Interest income
Dividend income
Amortisation of film rights
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
Bargain purchase gain recognised
in a business combination
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of financial assets
classified as held for trading investments
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of deposits, prepayment and
other receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
film rights
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of films in progress
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets
(Gain)/loss arising on change in fair value
of financial assets classified as
held for trading investments
Loss on fair value change of
investment properties
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Share-based payment expenses
Share of result of joint ventures
Write-down of obsolete inventories

—E-AfF
2015

FTHET
HK$°000

107,715

29,314

(95,910)

(134)
241
577
23,158

70,256

(21,991)

2,405

6,865

(77,647)

4,930

(392)
51,986

(138)
10

—E-MEF
2014
FiHET
HK$'000

209,851

16,339
(37,584)

337

610
22,928
(3,072)

74,291

(18,798)

1,656

2,939

40

13,177

10,688

699
388

530
171
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Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease in inventories

Increase in stock of properties

Increase in films in progress

Increase in film rights

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

Increase in deposits, prepayment and
other receivables

Increase in investment in film

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
non-controlling interests

Increase in amount due from a joint venture

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase in deposits received, accruals and
other payables

Increase in amounts due to joint ventures

Decrease in amounts due to
non-controlling interests

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

—E-AF —ET—OF
2015 2014
FB T FiET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
101,245 295,190
2,854 15,720
(1,610) (2,621)
(301,216) (60,953)
(600) -
(3,791) 163,374
(2,827) (1,456)
(11,325) -
(329) 19
(12) -
512 (59,895)
179,279 5,898
- 25
(294) (917)
(38,114) 354,384
(86) (61)
(38,200) 354,323
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—E-_AHEF —Z—mF
2015 2014
k=3 FExT FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
REERZHEESHRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
HET WD ZAE Additions to interests in leasehold land - (2,916)
MEEENZES Deposit paid for investment - (600,000)
B B Dividend received 134 -
2 W F & Interest received 93,702 22,330
RETFTE=ZFZEK Loan advanced to third parties (900,000) (600,000)
WEMBRARMES 2EE  Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
it R of subsidiaries 42 - (45,102)
HEMBARMEE Y Net cash inflow arising on disposal
BEeRANFE of subsidiaries 43 - 68,453
GELERRMEEZ Net cash inflow arising from interests
REMAFE in joint ventures - 27,675
EEDHEARIEFEERE Y Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
SREEFSHRE classified as held for trading investments 176,659 28,288
HEWE - HER Proceeds from disposal of property,
BT IA plant and equipment 473 4
BADHEARBEERRE Purchases of financial assets classified
ZERMERE as held for trading investments (346,501) (2,360)
BAYE HERZE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (49,670) (18,286)
RERLED RS Refund of deposit paid for investment 600,000 =
BERHETFE=ZHAZER Repayment of loan advanced to
third parties 275,000 -
REXEB A Net cash used in
ReFHE investing activities (150,203) (1,121,914)

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015
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CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

—E—fFE — a4
2015 2014
H st THET FHET
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries - (80,000)
Interest paid (28,785) (24,877)
New bank borrowings raised 1,065,750 35,942
Proceeds from issue of new shares 346,548 863,365
Proceeds from issue of new bonus
convertible bonds - 943
Repayment of obligations under
finance leases (247) (131)
Repayment of bank borrowings (456,641) (86,328)
Share issuing expenses (10,366) (7,553)
Net cash generated from
financing activities 916,259 701,361
Increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 727,856 (66,230)
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the reporting period 323,939 390,241
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (103) (72)
Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the reporting period
Cash and bank balances 34 1,051,692 323,939

financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

b EEBEAGRADQ

Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—RE+=-A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

—REE
RARRBFEEFMKN I 2B R ERAF -
HROEBBHERSMARAR ([BXFAT))
Em e ARAIZEMMERERTECEME 2
4k 5 Bl ACanon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermudal & & T & & 1 168-
20057 {52 /0 P E 341209 o

WERBHRRIABTLINE BT RARRZY
EEE -BRERBEIN MEBEAHEER
2 TRE(TET) -

AEBZIBXEBRETEE BOEYRER
BER EYRE RUEEBATERY BHER
RER RENBFETHREBREENZE5% -
MERBERE RaRAREEERBARNE
G

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and Unit 3409, Shun Tak
Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong respectively.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$’000) except otherwise indicated.

The principal activities of the Group are film production,
distribution of films and television drama series,
investment in film, provision of artist management
services, sales of health products, investing in
operations which receive profit streams from the
gaming promotion business, property and hotel
investment, food and beverage operations and property
development.
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2.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs -
effective 1st January 2015

In the current year, the Group has applied, for
the first time, the following new and revised
standards and interpretations (collectively
referred to as the “new and revised HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
from 1st January 2015. A summary of the new
and revised HKFRSs adopted by the Group is
set out as follows:

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce
the complexity of accounting for certain
contributions from employees or third parties
under defined benefit plans. When the
contributions are eligible for the practical
expedient provided by the amendments,
a company is allowed to recognise the
contributions as a reduction of the service
cost in the period in which the related service
is rendered, instead of including them in
calculating the defined benefit obligation. The
amendments do not have an impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the Group does
not have any defined benefit plans.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) ERFITRKEITEBMBHEEEN-=
B-AF-A-RER#E)
BB BHERR —E-FFZT_F—
FRHR-—E——FE_FT-—ZFHHZ
FEXNE
WMEBE s FESERBENRER 2 &
AINEREMAERNZREER - 2P &
BERERFE24RHHA L HKED T IA
B BUASTHBALINERRRAR
BRUEIEEEABRE TE2HRERNE
EERE YERKERESEREEREHR
MEIREEBEABREMELNESE AN
FEBEYEREEERESIREREAR
MRS BMZFETHARENEBA LR
BUEEATE -

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

2.

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs -
effective 1st January 2015 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements
contain amendments to nine standards with
consequential amendments to other standards.
Among them, HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
has been amended to expand the definition
of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity and to require the
disclosure of the amounts incurred for obtaining
the key management personnel services
provided by the management entity. These
amendments do not have an impact on the
Group’s related party disclosures as the Group
does not obtain key management personnel
services from management entities.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective
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CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

The Group has not early applied the following

new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle!

Financial Instrument

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1st January 2016, with earlier application

permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial

statements beginning on or after 1st January

2016, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1st January 2018, with earlier application

permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after a date to be determined.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
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(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment prohibit entities from using
a revenue-based depreciation method for
items of property, plant and equipment. The
amendments to HKAS 38 /ntangible Assets
introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue
is not an appropriate basis for amortisation
of an intangible asset. This presumption can
only be rebutted in the following two limited
circumstances:

(a) when the intangible asset is expressed as
a measure of revenue; or

(b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue
and consumption of the economic
benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January 2016.
Currently, the Group uses the straight-line
method for depreciation and amortisation for its
property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets respectively. The directors believe that
the straight-line method is the most appropriate
method to reflect the consumption of economic
benefits inherent in the respective assets and
accordingly, the directors do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments to HKAS
16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and
HKFRS
9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to

measurement of financial assets.

include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 mainly to include (a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and (b)
limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a
‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
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(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirement of HKFRS 9 are described
below:

° all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent reporting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that
give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally
recognised in consolidated income
statement.

d
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

with regard to the measurement of
financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
consolidated income statement. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to consolidated income
statement. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated at fair
value through profit or loss is presented
in consolidated income statement.

in relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at the end of
each reporting period to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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ﬁ%;’ﬁ—/ﬁ\u (r%%,\jﬁﬁ%i;ﬁ_ HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
EUJ) /{"j\é STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) EHEAEERERZFITIRLEITEEBY (b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been
BREER (Z) issued but not yet effective (Continued)
BB BHEEREISSHBT A (£) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
. H—REPeHERERB =S . the new general hedge accounting
Hregs Az #E BRI BRA requirements retain the three types of
B EBIEIN - REE S Y hedge accounting mechanisms currently
HHREERBFEIN - ZeAmA available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
EEHEH IR GERSIAERXR greater flexibility has been introduced
BEE LERERAENKESR to the types of transactions eligible
R TAZTEBERRAES for hedge accounting, specifically
it cEeREE ZRES B2 broadening the types of instruments
BAlo i BPEERTE 2 A that qualify for hedging instruments and
AEHUE - WE S| AFREER the types of risk components of non-
RERES CHERE financial items that are eligible for hedge

accounting. In addition, the retrospective
quantitative effectiveness test has
been removed. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been

introduced.
EFEEHARRERAS AN B RELEDE9 The directors anticipate that the application of
SR EAASEcREELEREAE HKFRS 9 in the future may have a significant
JEREBEEATE - KM EFRE impact on the amounts reported in respect of the
TRGMENAELIREZTENSEMG Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
it e However, in the opinion of the directors, it is not

practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of that effect until a detailed review has been

completed.
BB EREERFISHEREEFL LA HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Wz Customers
ERETHREENEIEEEM - EFE HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a
EpzmEXNEEEREEERFALAM single comprehensive model for entities to use
EEMREAR RAEBVBREENE in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
155R AR5 HIEMAR RSN EE S with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
HERIFE18 Mz - BREGTEAF1HREZ current revenue recognition guidance including
HEARIBERERRES - HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction

Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer
o Step 2: ldentify the performance

obligations in the contract(s)

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price
to the performance obligations in the
contract(s)

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or

as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required

by HKFRS 15.
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2.

—RE+=RB=1+—BI4%E For the year ended 31st December 2015

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures
made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed

review.

Except disclosed above, the directors do not
anticipated that the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on
the financial statements.

81



P ESEBEAGRADQ

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

BF B #t 7 fi} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—HE+=-A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

3.

3.

82

TESTHRME

REZEVBERRARBZ T ESHHEHIIM

Te-BaBHRAEIN

ZERKCRMAZWMEF

EEHER -

(a)

BEHEH
RERBRRIBREFAERERUB
HER(EERER B St MRS mEM
ZHABARERNEEMBRERER  FE
G ER(EBEF L)) K2 (7
BD)RBEBAARZGTRAMMBR - 1t
O RERBHRRBIEBIMES LTH
AITETHRAD REZEBRRE KRR
BERBMEDIZHBERTE -

HMEBDAED (F622F) (AR
DI EAREVBRRREFRERSE
A2 ENRARRHE-_E—AF+=A
St—BIEBMBREEER - o £
s BT EVBRE 2 BBRED S
E R FHEBIVE S B #5 i B & B B TS
BEEURBE—B - Al BE-T—H
FHZA=+—BHUEMBFEZHEHH
HEZERZV RBERCIEESUATA %
EHRTE - BE_E—WNE+_RA=+—
BIEMBFEZERERBRIEFRER
ZEMBHREZINNERE - TAIREBERA
BlE Gk 748 Bl i FEAR 5 T =) 60l s
BB EMARANBERE ZEMUENRZS
ISR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the

preparation of the financial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently applied to

all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
is a collective term that includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (“Ints”)
issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The provisions of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (“new CO”")
regarding preparation of financial statements
and directors’ reports and audits became
effective for the Company for the financial
year ended 31st December 2015. Further, the
disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual financial statements
have been amended with reference to the new
CO and streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the
presentation and the disclosure of information
in these financial statements for the financial
year ended 31st December 2015 have been
changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31st December 2014
are presented or disclosed in the financial
statements based on the new requirements.
Information previously required to be disclosed
under the predecessor Companies Ordinance
or the Listing Rules but not under new CO or
the amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in
these financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain
properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs
for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.
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HE+=A=+—HAILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

TESHEBE(E)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in the consolidated income statement
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are presenting
ownership interests and entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in other HKFRS.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by
the Group in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
the

contingent consideration is measured at its

contingent consideration arrangement,

acquisition-date fair value and included as
part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the ‘measurement period’ (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed

at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in
the fair value of the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting periods
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting periods in accordance
with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as

and Measurement,
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its
acquisition-date fair value (i.e. the date when the
Group obtains control), and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest

were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are
adjusted during the measurement period, and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that,
amounts recognised at that date.

if known, would have affected the

Business combinations achieved in stages
were accounted for as separate step. Goodwill
was determined at each step. Any additional
acquisition did not affect the previously
recognised goodwill.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in consolidated statement of the

financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) (or groups of CGU) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
On disposal of the relevant CGU, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of the gain or loss
on disposal.
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(f) REELEZESR (f) Interests in joint ventures
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the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint

AZETHERE - BEERE REED ventures are incorporated in these financial
R %H*FHZEZ$EA@/\@HRH)K/R2%EE statements using the equity method accounting.
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consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in a joint venture. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be a joint venture, or when the
investment is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the joint venture
at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in
the joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that joint
venture on the same basis as would be required
if that joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if
a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that joint venture
would be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(9)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to the
consolidated income statement the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to the
consolidated income statement on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for good and
services supplied, net of value-added tax,
gaming tax, returns, rebates and discounts.

. Artist management service income
is recognised when the services are
rendered.

° Consultancy service income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

° Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

° Film distribution fee income is recognised

when the master materials have been
delivered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Income from investment in film is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement
to such payment has been established,
which is subject to the terms of the
relevant agreements.

Interest income from financial asset is
accrued on a time basis by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount.

Management fee income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Receive profit streams from the gaming
promotion business is recognised when
the right to receive profit is established.

Rental income, net of any incentives
given to the lessee, is recognised over
the periods of the respective leases on a
straight-line basis.

Revenue from hotel accommodation, food
and beverage sales and other ancillary
hotel services are recognised when the
relevant services have been rendered.

Revenue from sales of health products
are recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the products
are delivered to customers and title is
passed.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

o Service income from mass marketing
table gaming operations, VIP rooms table
gaming operations and slot machines
operations are recognised over the
periods for which right to occupy and
use spaces are established according to
the license and site agreements and are
based on certain percentage of monthly
gross gaming wins in the mass market,
VIP table gaming and slot machines in
the casino.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives that are acquired in
a business combination are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired in a business combination are
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gain or loss
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
is measured at the difference between the net
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the asset is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of the property, plant and equipment, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on
the same basis as owned assets. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives.

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

b EEBEAGRADQ

Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—RE+=-A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

3. TESTHRRBMEE)

()

M- BERRE(E)
WEERMERNEREREE (KEAILH
MAAAGR MERRENME  %AHA
ZEEEEERERAN I AFERME
MEERAEMEEBARTER - LR E
EfEFHBRT - EREZBEEHEXEFER
B ZERNEEHREFERERER
FHEE

WEDABBEEEZRARBE ZRHE
EREMGHERFHMUNERET AR -
EtAERFES  RMREERFTET AR
EMEPRRT AR BB EFE
B ERRAKR  ZTEFEMT:

EF 2% — 5%
HEWHEEE 20% — 33%
b HEREZE 10% - 50%

A8 15% — 20%

ME - BERRERERLERREHA
BETEERELREERGREBEN AR
RIbHER - A% HERREBABLE
HEMMEE 2 EFENRERBHEN
BRERZEERAEZZR  UNEAR
WAR AR

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(M

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If an owned-occupied property becomes
an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the property revaluation reserve will
be transferred directly to accumulated losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates are
as follows:

2% — 5%
20% — 33%
10% - 50%
15% - 20%

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furnitures, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

(k)

Interests in leasehold land

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “interests in
leasehold land” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. All of the Group’s
property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are accounted for as investment properties and
are measured using the fair value model. Gain
and loss arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which they arise.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

M

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the CGU to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU)
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.
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Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible

in other years and items that are never taxable

Ho or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

ELHE Deferred tax
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets

are generally recognised for all deductible

Efiﬁﬁ%lﬁzﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ NN EERT temporary differences to the extent that it is
mAREESH RN MZEEEHIEE probable that taxable profits will be available
ERBEBETNTHER - I HMEBENS against which those deductible temporary
MREATHZH JECHBAERT differences can be utilised. Such deferred

B -
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tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of

goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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(m)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amount of such properties
is presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The

mommERzs (MYESBEE)  ZRB presumption is rebutted when the investment
MR E o properties are depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale.
FERNFHRELHE Current and deferred tax for the year
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Current and deferred tax are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties, which are held for trading,
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost and net realisable value are
determined as follows:

Properties under development held for sale

The costs of properties under development
held for sale comprises specifically identified
costs including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, borrowing
costs capitalised, material and supplies, wages,
other direct expenses and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sale proceeds of
properties sold in ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.

Properties under development are classified
as current assets when the construction of
the relevant properties commences unless the
construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to be
completed beyond normal operating cycle.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on first-in-first-out or weighted
average basis as appropriate. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs to completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as cost of
sales in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as cost of sales
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is offset against the cost of sales in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Film rights

Film rights represent films and television drama
series produced by the Group or acquired by
the Group. Film rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The Group begins
amortisation of the capitalised costs of film
rights when a film is released and it begins to

recognise revenue from that film.

The Group reviews and revises estimates of total
projected revenue and total production costs of
film rights at the end of each reporting period.
If estimates are revised, the Group adjusts the
amount of total projected revenue from the
period when such changes in estimates take
place and re-calculated the ratio for amortisation
of film rights. The effect from changes in
estimates is recognised on a prospective basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(r

Film rights (Continued)

Amortisation expense is charged to the
consolidated income statement based on the
proportion of actual income earned during the
year to the total estimated income from the sale
of film rights. The amortisation of film rights will
not exceed twenty years. In the case where there
is any impairment in value, the carrying amount
is written down to its estimated recoverable
amount.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal
and external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
film rights are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
estimated recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Films in progress

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated
at cost at the date incurred, less any identified
impairment losses. Cost includes all costs
associated with the production of films including
remuneration for the film director, casts and
production crew, costumes, insurance, makeup
and hairdressing as well as rental of camera
and lighting equipment. Films in progress
is transferred to film rights when the film is
released.

At the end of each reporting period, both
internal and external market information are
considered to assess whether there is any
indication that films in progress are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the carrying
amount of such assets is assessed and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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1Tt & ° E&Em%ﬁ”%ﬁ&% TERBE initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
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that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair
(“FVTPL") and
The classification

value through profit or loss’
‘loans and receivables’.
depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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3. E\Eggﬁﬂzﬁmg (/Z/ég) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) SRMIEB(E) (s) Financial instruments (Continued)

EHEE (&) Financial assets (Continued)

BEBRFEE Effective interest method
EBRMNEERNEBANRAFTERESIAZ The effective interest method is a method
BERARDEMBRAZFE - BEEF of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
RN EENEERER T A AHNE instrument and of allocating interest income
HABREHBE (MER) Bt RRKBE2 W over the relevant period. The effective interest
F(BREEBRERANEAA S mgrGn 2 — rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
PENSIEWREREFEZRE  XHKA future cash receipts (including all fees and
REMGEESIE) 2V EERE K@ points paid or received that form an integral part
B2 F%E - of the effective interest rate, transaction costs

and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

FEWATNRERFEEERER DM Interest income is recognised on an effective
REBERAATEBY R eEER interest basis for debt instruments other than
Hh o those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.
FEBBEm UL FEEIRZzEHEE Financial assets at FVTPL
SREENUTERGEABEBIERIUAR Financial assets are classified at FVTPL when
FEEME : VHAREABEEARA the financial asset is (i) contingent consideration
BEXNERT AN B REENEIRER that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a
ZEBEH o (HFEEE (i) business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies,
BEABBEBEZEUAFERBIERER - (i) held for trading, or (iii) it is designated as at
FVTPL.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset
held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally
on that basis; or
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

o it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to
be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in note 5 to the financial

statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
investment in film, trade receivables, deposits
paid, other receivables, loan receivables,
amounts due from non-controlling interests,
amount due from a joint venture and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any

identified impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default

or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
for impairment on a collective basis even if they
were assessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 60-90
days, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets that are carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income
statement to the extent that the carrying amount
of the financial assets at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including bank
borrowings, obligations under finance leases,
convertible bonds, trade payables, deposits
received, accruals and other payables
(excluding receipt in advance), amounts due
to joint ventures and amounts due to non-
controlling interests) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of convertible bonds
issued by the Company are classified separately
as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest rate of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the
gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity,
is included in equity under the heading of
“convertible bonds reserve”.

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component will remain in convertible
bonds reserve until the conversion option is
exercised (in which case the balance recognised
in convertible bonds reserve will be transferred
to share premium). Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of
the convertible bonds, the balance stated in
convertible bonds reserve will be released to
the accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortised over the lives of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between
the part it continues to recognise, and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in consolidated income
statement. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to
be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

()

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting financial instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short
term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use,
which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those
foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions
entered into in order to hedge certain
foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to
accumulated losses on repayment of the
monetary items.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in the consolidated income
statement. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the leases transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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3. iggﬁﬂz%m; (/IZ/E_) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

vy ®HE#E) (v)  Leasing (Continued)
AEFERRBA The Group as lessee
ERmEHEMBECEENHERKRKE Assets held under finance leases are initially
BEZAFEES (WHRE) REHEN recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
R EVNEERERNER ZEE o A value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
MABTZEBREERGAUBEHKARA at the present value of the minimum lease
FIATHERSEERIET - payments. The corresponding liability to the

lessor is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position under the heading of
“obligations under finance leases”.

HENZATERERARBVHEERER Lease payments are apportioned between
ZE UEEEHBRETHEITE - & finance expenses and reduction of the lease
BRI GEARARFPENEHER - BRIER obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
LEERRAEREER  RILBART - interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
BEDRBEAEEBSAEERAZ —REK Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
BT ABEARLE - AR EEHEA the consolidated income statement, unless they
ERAEMRS - are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in

which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are

incurred.
EERO 7 MR IRBOFHRNE G ARE Operating lease payments are recognised as an
REMEZ - BRIESHRHAMELE TR expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
RHEMEEENKBENRE AR KEE term, except where another systematic basis
X EEHEMEENIREAERELE is more representative of the time pattern in
EABIERI S which economic benefits from the leased asset

are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

B UKLHERWIHESER  ZSE In the event that lease incentives are received
EREERR FBEHESNERER to enter into operating leases, such incentives
REEREEAX KRIESHERERUE are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
£ FRREEHEEENLCHEN =B benefit of incentives is recognised as a
FoREER - reduction of rental expense on a straight-line

basis, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

Employee benefits
Annual leave

Employee entitlement to annual leave is
recognised when it accrues to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees during the year. Employee
entitlements to maternity leave and sick leave

are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”), pension fund schemes
and state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)
Under the MPF Scheme,
its employees are each required to make
of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers’

the employer and

contributions to the scheme at 5%

contributions subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior
to 1st June 2014).
to the scheme are expensed as incurred and

The Group’s contributions

vested in accordance with the scheme’s vesting
scales. Where employees leave the scheme prior
to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The Group’s subsidiaries operate a defined
contribution scheme for eligible employees in
Macau. The pension fund scheme is established
and managed by an independent management
company. Both the Group and the employees
make equal share of monthly contributions to the
scheme.

The employees employed by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes operated by the government of the
PRC is to make the specified contributions under
the schemes.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group are covered
by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and
paid by the Macau government. Contributions
are generally made by both employees
and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security
Fund Contribution managed by the Macau
government. The Group funds the entire
contribution and has no further commitments
beyond its monthly contributions.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long
service payment to its employees on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefits that the employees
have earned in return for their services in the
current and prior periods.

Share-based payment expenses

For grants of share options that are conditional
upon satisfying specified vesting conditions,
the fair value of services received is determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserve.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment expenses (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share-based payment reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to the
consolidated income statement.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Share-based payment expenses granted to
consultants

Share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair
value of services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the counterparty renders the service. The
fair values of services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase
in share-based payment reserve, when the
counterparties render services, unless services
qualify for recognition as assets.
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(v) #B#HE (y)  Provisions
MALEBERBEEHMBARERBETE Provisions are recognised when the Group has
SHTET BASERAEARTZE a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
£ Wher Sesfh et FRBRIEZ &% - B a result of a past event, it is probable that the
AREREE - Group will be required to settle the obligation,

and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
ERRBEZBRERBSHKRET The amount recognised as a provision is the
BREEMBREFEL 2 RIEMRTE best estimate of the consideration required to
Wt hEHETZRBRETHRERE - & settle the present obligation at the end of the
BERBETREEIETEZESRE reporting period, taking into account the risks
HER HEHEAFHReR=ECHRE and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
(MEEHEEAEZTZEEAX) - When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).
EREEREMBE 2B MR ILENRTE When some or all of the economic benefits
HART B B = YR BB - il KB E S T required to settle a provision are expected to
BN RERFESEERSAE B be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
EWHERRREE ° recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
(20 PEES (z)  Segment reporting
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Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical

locations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2

(aa)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ab)

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a

third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ab)

Related party transactions (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of a person are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th 2 % (FI A

Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—RE+-A=1—HAIL%E For the year ended 31st December 2015

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

TESHHERMAEFIEE 4

2 FERIR

RERPBERERM M ARE 2 ST RRE
EXRABUEMRRIBEMB R cEERBER
EEfEHH B hEt kR - ZFHFRERR
3 BLA@EZ‘“%ﬁ&mﬁfﬁFEZEﬁﬂl%ﬁf’ﬁﬁ
ERERAREANRZEMET -

et RAERREBEEERMN - WESHHE
CHESZ =30 H'Jﬁ?ﬁfz Al G EEAT fhEH
BHER - WEBBEITFZEERRARKAR - A
BRAEFT BT MR LR KRR R -

RS BRRZEEHEK

BREhhEtEN EENEATEESHBERLZ
BETEFHREHRMBREABRZRESR
REAFEZIRHAMHNT

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3 to the financial
statements, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred tax on
investment properties, the directors have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment
properties as the Group is not subject to any income
taxes on disposal of its investment properties.

Classification of China Star Film Group Limited
(“China Star Film Group”) and Sparkle Star
Entertainment Limited (“Sparkle Star”) as joint
ventures

China Star Film Group and Sparkle Star are limited
liability companies whose legal form confers separation
between the parties to the joint arrangements and
the companies themselves. Furthermore, there are
no contractual arrangements or any other facts and
circumstances that specify that the parties to the joint
arrangements have rights to the assets and obligations
for the liabilities of the joint arrangements. Accordingly,
China Star Film Group and Sparkle Star are classified
as joint ventures of the Group (see note 23 to the financial
statements).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill are reviewed for impairment at the end of each
reporting period or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of the asset is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. An estimation of the
value in use of the asset involves estimating the future
cash flows expected to arise from its continuing use
and applying the appropriate discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset.

Trade receivables and loan receivables

The aging debt profile of trade receivables and loan
receivables is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure
that the receivables are collectible and follow up
actions are promptly carried out if the agreed credit
periods have been exceeded or the repayment date
is due. However, from time to time, the Group may
experience delays in collection. Where recoverability of
receivables are called into doubts, specific provisions
of trade receivables are made based on credit status
of the customers, the aging analysis of the trade
receivables balances and written-off history, and
specific provisions of loan receivables are made based
on credit status of the debtor, its historical record
and its financial background. Certain receivables may
be initially identified as collectible, yet subsequently
become uncollectible and result in a subsequent
written-off of the related receivables to the consolidated
income statement. Changes in the collectability of
receivables for which provisions are not made could
affect our results of operations.
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Assessment of economic useful lives of fixed assets
and intangible assets with finite useful life other than
goodwill

Fixed assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives other than goodwill are depreciated or amortised
over their economic useful lives. The assessment of
estimated useful lives is a matter of judgement based
on the experience of the Group, taking into account
factors such as technological progress, changes in
market demand, expected usage and physical wear
and tear. Useful lives are periodically reviewed for
continued appropriateness. Due to long lives of assets,
changes to the estimates used can result in variations

in their carrying amounts.

Impairment of films in progress

The directors review films in progress at the end of
each reporting period, and identify the slow-moving
films in progress that is no longer suitable for use in
production. The directors estimate the net realisable
value for such films in progress primarily based on
the latest available market prices and current market
conditions. In addition, the Group carries out review
on each film at the end of each reporting period and
makes allowance for any films in progress which no

longer proceed.

Impairment of film rights

Impairment assessments on film rights are performed
at the end of each reporting period with reference
to both internal and external market information, for
example, sales forecast based on expected popularity
of the respective titles, the expected production, sales
and distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude
the sales, and the general economic condition of the
relevant markets. Changes in assumptions used in this
assessment, including the forecasted revenue, may
result in additional provision being made in the financial
statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining provision for taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development classified as stock of properties

In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group’s properties under development, the Group
considers the current market environment and the
estimated market value (i.e. the estimated selling price
less estimated costs of selling expenses) less estimated
costs to completion of the properties. An allowance
is made if the estimated market value is less than the
carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value on
properties under development is less than expected as
a result of change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, material
provision for impairment loss may result.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience on selling goods
of similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of change in market condition. The directors will
re-assess the estimations at the end of each reporting

period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on investment in film

In assessing the recoverability of investment in film, the
directors assessed the credibility of the counterparties,
the progress of the related film and the market
condition. The directors determines the provision for
impairment of investment in film taking into account the
estimation of future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments:

—E-E1fF —ET-EF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
SEMEE Financial assets
FEREBEZAAFEMEIEE  Financial assets at FVTPL
ZERMEE 305,812 36,332
B el skE Loans and receivables
(BRERE MIBITEH) (including cash and bank balances) 2,457,837 1,680,562
cREE Financial liabilities
85 Amortised cost 1,242,748 452,733
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investment in film, trade receivables, deposits
paid, other receivables, loan receivables,
amounts due from non-controlling interests,
amount due from a joint venture, cash and
bank balances, bank borrowings, obligations
under finance leases, trade payables, deposits
received, accruals and other payable (excluding
receipt in advance), amounts due to joint
ventures and amounts due to non-controlling
interests. Details of the financial instruments for
the Group are disclosed in respective notes to
the financial statements.

The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign
exchange risk, equity price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of
the Group’s exposure in respect of financial
instruments or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

5.

142

SRMIA (=

(b) SHREREEBEERMEE)
5
(i) IME 7l B

AKBEXEERE R -TH
EhBlgex®s BRBHRS
TyABTT - & BP% BTk
ARBFE -SMERBRRARK
BERS CHIBEERAGBNU
AEBEDREER NI ZEMBER
AHEMESE

REBTMHARE T AP S
B ARBERBAAEBTEE
TERORPIEE 2 SNE B

WBERARBHEZXHRE
WEEGD HARERALE
ERBTRARSE 2 EASNER,
B -

4 o5 B BB 3 M AE (O OV E e B
ERAEZNEESEHHTA-
ARBBEENEEHNEERR -
AR B R E AN,
B -

policies (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong, Macau, Netherlands and the
PRC and majority of transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”), US dollar (“US$"), Macau Pataca
(“MOP”), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”).
from future commercial transactions,

Foreign exchange risk arises

recognised assets and liabilities, which
are denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency of the Group.

The Group is not exposed to foreign
exchange risk in respect of HK$ against
the US$ and MOP as long as these
currencies are pegged.

The transactions and monetary assets
in EUR and RMB is
minimal, the Group consider there have

denominated

no significant foreign exchange risk in
respect of EUR and RMB.

The Group currently do not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currency. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through listed securities of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
classified as held for trading investments
which are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The
management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles.
The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities listed
in Hong Kong. In addition, the Group
will monitor the equity price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure when
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/
lower, the Group’s pre-tax profit for the
year ended 31st December 2015 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$15,291,000 (2014: HK$1,817,000).
This is mainly due to the changes in fair
value of financial assets classified as held
for trading investments.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk
relates primarily to variable rate of bank
borrowings (see note 36 to the financial
statements for the details of bank
borrowings). The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of each reporting
period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2014: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended
31st December 2015 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$4,625,000
(2014: HK$1,579,000).
attributable to the Group’s exposure to

This is mainly

interest rates on its variable rate of bank
borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables, loan receivables and cash
and bank balances. At 31st December 2015,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

At 31st December 2015, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as 93% (2014: 95%)
of the trade receivables of the Group were
due from 2 customers (2014: 2 customers).
Management of the Company considered the
credit risk is limited since the Group only trade
with customers with an appropriate credit
history and good reputation. The management
monitored the financial background and
creditability of those debtors on an ongoing
basis.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The management has reviewed the credit
quality of loan receivables on an individual and
collective basis on an ongoing basis and at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that
loans receivables are being close monitor and
appropriate and timely action are taking when
there is a change in their credit qualities.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debtor or borrower at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group deposited its cash and bank
balances with approved and reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may
cause the Group’s right with respect to cash and
bank balances held to be delayed or limited.
Management of the Company monitors the credit
rating of these banks on an ongoing basis, and
considers that the Group’s exposure to credit
risk at 31st December 2015 and 31st December
2014 were minimal.

The Group does not have any other significant
concentrations of credit risk. The exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents, monitoring

forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring
by the management. Reports with maturity
dates of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity
requirement are provided to management
for review periodically. Management of the
Company will raise or refinance bank borrowings

whenever necessary.

The following table shows the details of the
Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in “on demand
or within 1 year” regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are prepared based on the agreed
repayment dates. The amounts disclosed in the
table are based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, are as follows:
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CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

ﬁﬂlﬂ (/IZE 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) CRERETSEBERBE(Z) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
FEELER (1) Liquidity risk (Continued)
R=B-TF+ZB=1-H
At 31st December 2015
BRERIR AR REE
BRTIE -ER  ZEIfR BENLE RemBAH @t
On demand Total Total
Effective or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
TEn TEn TiEn Tén TiEn
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTEeRAR Non-derivative financial liabilities
BfEE Bank borrowings 2.30% - 3.50% 139,482 496,800 320,850 957,132 924,928
HEMEEH Obligations under finance leases  5.00% - 7.52% 28 617 - 865 819
EVTBET Trade payables - 39,648 - - 39,648 39,648
BYERS - E:HER & Deposits received, accruals and
EHEMFE other payables - 277,328 - - 277,328 277,328
BRAELEHNE Amounts due to joint ventures - 25 - - 25 25
& Total 456,731 497,417 320,850 1,274,998 1,242,748
RZE-METZA=t-H
At 31st December 2014
BERAR RER REfAE
ERAx —FR  ZERER LENE RERERH &5t
On demand Total Total
Effective or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cashflows amount
TERL TETL TR TEL TR
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ENELRAE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BiTfeE Bank borrowings 2.32%-3.50% 326,700 - - 326,700 315,819
HEREEHR Obligations under finance leases 5.00%-7.52% 261 865 - 1,126 1,066
BHRAER Trade payables - 39,136 - - 39,136 39,136
BIRE%S  JERHEE R Deposits received, accruals and
EHENFE other payables - 96,393 - - 96,393 96,393
ERAELRHNE Amounts due to joint ventures - % - - % %
JERTIEERERTE  Amounts due to noncontrolling interests - 294 - - 204 294
@ Total 462,809 865 - 463,674 452,733
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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(c)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active
markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;

. the fair values of derivative instruments
are calculated using quoted prices.
When such prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow analysis is
performed using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments
for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives;
and

° the fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding those
described above) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the financial statements
approximate to their fair values.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of each reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified and determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are input for which
market data are not available; and

° Level 3 valuations: fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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5. ﬁﬂ T ﬂ (/,Zéﬁ_ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) EMIBECAFEE(E) (c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
B—EH EEHR E=ZEHR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TER FET FERT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
R-ZE-HEFE+=-HA=+—H At31st December 2015
B R EEZ N FEE Fair value on a recurring basis
BEEBERE Held for trading investments 305,812 - - 305,812
F—EH B FZER BEr
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAET FET FAT FAET
HK$ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
RZT—mF+=-_A=+—H At31st December 2014
AT F I REZ LT EE Fair value on a recurring basis
FEEERE Held for trading investments 36,332 - - 36,332

REBZHRERERREHER 2 FMHK
EREDUR ALREOAFEEER
B o

REZE_Z—hFE+_A=+—RBR=Z
—MFE+ZA=+—HLFE TEES
—ERME_SMEETER  HBEA
FEEE=FR -
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The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers

between levels of fair value hierarchy as at

the end of the date of the events or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years ended 31st December 2015

and 31st December 2014, there were no

transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or

transfers into or out of Level 3.

151



P ESEBEAGRADQ

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

BF B #t 7 fi} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—HE+=-A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

5.

5.

152

EWMIR(E
@ &xEE

AEEEREEAN  UHRASEZES
BRFELE  TEBBIERRERE
REBRREREAER - RKBEFE - &
EECBBERBESIE -

AEBZEXNGRBREKFR(AEHE
RITEERREREREYR) RARAES
AEIEED  HBERARFEE -

BEERELE
EERFREEERMERER - FRUIE
Mz—#fn EEEEEARAREESE
BAEXHEBEZRER ARESREBEEEZ
HBEEBEXMRE  BITHROME
BB A RBEITHESLBELRAEE T
FEHEBBERERS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debts (which includes bank borrowings
and obligations under finance leases) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company
(comprising share capital and reserves).

Gearing ratio

The directors review the capital structure on
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
the recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through
payment of dividends, issue of new shares and
repurchase of shares as well as issue of new
debts or the redemption of existing debts.
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5. ﬁﬁml =1 (/Z/ég 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) EXEHE#E) (d)  Capital management (Continued)
BEBGBHFE (B) Gearing ratio (Continued)
AEEEEHBEERABLEXTEA The Group aimed at maintaining a gearing ratio
50% c RIMEBRCEEBELERNOT ¢ of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at the

end of the reporting period was as follows:

—E-RfF —E—F

2015 2014

FTHExT FHET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

wE (2N ET) Total debt (see note) 925,747 316,885
o Re RIRITAH Less: Cash and bank balances (1,051,692) (323,939)
ReF5E Net cash (125,945) (7,054)

RABER AEGER Equity attributable to owners

of the Company 3,466,190 2,922,083
BEBHEERLE Total debt to equity ratio 27% 1%
B - Note:
EHEBERTEELREREGS (51 Debt comprises bank borrowings and obligations under
BB R EN F365237) © finance leases as detailed in notes 36 and 37 to the

financial statements respectively.
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6. /'\‘,:"S'Eﬁ*il. 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
FEERBEF(AMFELEBARETEZER The Group determines its operating segments based on
ﬁﬁ%J)%FyﬂZ#&%%ﬁﬁ? KSR AR DAY the reports reviewed by the directors, being the chief
EE BRI NEBSEREITANEEIRE operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purpose

of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments and that are used to
make strategic decisions.

AEBERBEATHRESBE-BEREYRBL The Group has five reportable segments — hotel
BEXR BUHELEER SYHBERLSE and gaming service operations, gaming promotion
K O WERERCLEEBRELTTREER 2 operations, film related business operations, property
ENHENBEEBAERKEEER 2 ER (B development operations and Nam Pei Hong operations.
ERAELRE) SIS - The segmentations are based on the information about

the operations of the Group that management uses to
make decisions.

KEBBTRENDENIKETNRAEREE 2 R The Group's reportable segments are strategic business
EBEM -BARNBEEBAETATSEETETR units that operate different activities. They are managed
MMBHEERE  WESHEEYER - separately because each business has different
markets and requires different marketing strategies.
ALEREEBE I TEEMMRBOT : The principal products and services of each of these
operations are as follows:
BERBERE - RRMAEESBEREE Hotel and gaming service - Provision of hotel services, food and
KB JEHW‘? Bin M ER s operations beverage operation services,
¥BRG  BREEES gaming operation services and
B R AR R R M E 2T related gaming promotion
business in Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong Macau
BEHE - REAREBYHEEERIK Gaming promotion operations - Investing in operations which
R TS BUm Al 2 48 & %75 receive profit streams from the
gaming promotion business
ERX-2:1 - BERBTEEZNERE Film related business operations - Production and distribution of films
ES ¥4 BB EEREANIEM and television drama series,
HtEZ ARG EE investment in film and provision
ANEBRRS of other film related services
including artist management services
L E GRS - WERABUNEE KRR Property development operations - Investing and development of
BEER WLk ES properties located in Hong Kong
and Macau
1T - HERHERHMBEER - Nam Pei Hong operations - Sales of Chinese and other medicines
EER REER - 2EEBRER pharmaceutical products, health
THEBRTEFHART products, ginseng and dried seafood
NI products to wholesalers and retailer as

well as Chinese clinical services
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BRAZEEBZOBEMZIMT :

(a) FEERBEIF|HIZHBUEREE

6.

EERBYREELEH Hotel and gaming service operations
EYEELE £ Gaming promotion operations
EYRBEBESER  Fimrelated business operations
NERBERER Property development operations

BRATREER Nam Pei Hong operations

PEEEARHA Reconciliation from segment results to
ki ) profit before tax

AABEEHRA Unallocated corporate income

ABBEEEERAE 2 Gainarising on change in fair value of

SREEZATEE  financial assets classified as held for

BYMEL A7 rading investments

EERELEEE Share of results of joint ventures
APRGEHT Unallocated corporate expenses
BB AR Profit before tax

EXMERZ D BREEREIMEEFZ
Wogg o AFEILEARHE (ZF—MOF:
&) o

NEEEREDBERIEEIANED
XA BT ZEEBITHRAAL - SHORE
PR~ LARRAD 329 2 SRIA B S % B B B
RAZEE  [RoEEERAIRTEH
HiWam R EMRA - D BARKIEERER
BZeRMEEZATEEEYMEL 2
FIA K FEAE & B b 35 R A AT PR ERER, (AT
EAE) 2, (BE) i RMEERE
EBRRELBMIFBRD B RFFHERZE
BNk
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is

presented as below:

(a) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating segments

PERE TERE

Segment revenue Segment results

ZE-1E —E-1f “E-|mE
2015 2014 2015 2014
TAn TiEn TEr TiEn
HKS’ 000 HK$ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS 000
877,909 1,169,474 62,279 236,528
4,748 4740 2,947 (9,629)
1,217 2267 (4,959) (3,702)
180 173 (6,439) (2,732)
160,452 106,943 (8,519) 361
1,044,506 1083597 45,309 220826
94,692 39,342

99,638 8,110
138 (530)

(132,062) (57,897)

107,715 209,851

Segment revenue reported above represents
revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in the current
year (2014: nil).

Segment results represent the profit/(loss)
earned/(suffered) by each segment without
allocation of central administrative costs, partial
finance costs, share-based payment expenses
and loss on disposal of subsidiaries under the
heading of “unallocated corporate expenses”,
partial other revenue and other income under
the heading of “unallocated corporate income”,
gain arising on change in fair value of financial
assets classified as held for trading investments
and share of results of joint ventures. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6.

156

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

AEERECESBED 2 HBMRR DM (b)  An analysis of the Group’s financial position
by operating segments
—E-RF —T—mEF
2015 2014
FHET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BE ASSETS
DB E Segment assets
—BE MER R &L ET — Hotel and gaming service operations 1,033,596 1,097,046
—EHEELEER — Gaming promotion operations 10,689 91,594
—EHBEERKCEEY  — Film related business operations 490,374 104,282
—MERBEEER — Property development operations 700,675 658,580
—MTTREER - Nam Pei Hong operations 117,436 123,026
DIEERT Total segment assets 2,352,770 2,074,528
RABE E Unallocated assets 2,438,691 1,384,267
4,791,461 3,458,795
—Z2-1% —E-MEF
2015 2014
FTER FAET
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
=N LIABILITIES
SIEEE Segment liabilities
—BIERERRBELEEEH — Hotel and gaming service operations 89,810 388,210
—BEHELEER — Gaming promotion operations 5 5
—EYEBAEBLEER - Film related business operations 193,911 16,016
—MERBLEEED — Property development operations 2,700 2,952
— TR TS — Nam Pei Hong operations 30,350 27,537
NEAERR Total segment liabilities 316,776 434,720
AOEEE Unallocated liabilities 1,008,928 102,418
1,325,704 537,138
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

An analysis of the Group’s financial position
by operating segments (Continued)

For the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment between segments:

all assets are allocated to reportable
segments, other than interests in joint
ventures, partial deposits, prepayment
and other receivables, held for trading
investments, loan receivables, amounts
due from non-controlling interests,
amount due from a joint venture, prepaid
tax, partial cash and bank balances,
partial property, plant and equipment
and interests in leasehold land for central
administrative purposes; and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments, other than partial obligations
under finance leases, partial deposits
received, accruals and other payables,
deferred tax liabilities, amounts due to
joint ventures and amounts due to non-

controlling interests.
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6. PEER(E

(c)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
HthoBER (c)  Other segment information
EEREY AVER EVRERE PESES B
fngesg fezg fezg fezg fied 78 &8
Hotel and gaming Gaming promotion Film related Property Nam Pei Hong
service operations operations business operations development operations operations Unallocated Consolidated
Z2-1F 3R e Syt Y C3-1% Wl C2-7E Rty C2-1
2015 214 04 i A1 2015 014 2015 At4 015 014
T T it Thi T A Tht T A AR it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
HAHEAE  Amounts included in the
REAAEEE  measure of segment
LHE: results or segment assels:
SURERE  Amoriseion of mangble
asels - - - - - - 577 610 - 577 610
RELHERRE  Amorisaton of infeests
in'leasehold land 21,25 21,055 - - - - - - - - 1413 1873 2,158 298
HEFAREDZ  Bagah puchases gan
ZEBERT  reoognised na business
combination - - - - - - - - - - 301 - 3012
D2 BER  Depreviaion of poperty,

ECH plant and equipment 62,806 68,114 - - - - 994 2360 213 1126 3 2691 70,256 491
EEEZAEL  Impaimentlossrecognised
ETAEEE  inrespectof fimrights - - - 2405 26% - - - - - 2405 29
BHEREY Impaimentloss recognised

j inrespect of fims in progress - - - - L} - - - - - - - L]
Impairment loss recognised
nrespect of inanglle assets - - 57 1311 - - - - 6,278 - - - 6,865 131
: Impaiment loss recognised
In respect of depostts,
prepayment, and ofher
receivables - - - - - 1636 - - - - - - - 1,636
(Gain)foss on disposal of

i property,

(&H) /88 plantand equipment (389) 699 - E - - - E 1 - 5] - (%) 699
HEMBRTZEE  Loss on disposalof subsidares - - - - - - - - - - 18 - 38
RENENTER  Lossonfar vaue change
BE88 of investment property - - - - - - 493 - - - - - 4930 -

TBAE  Addfions o nor-curent
(SBTARMN) " assels (ober tan
financial instruments)* 2090 17,744 - - - - 1 638 1,220 1718 6,348 1282 49670 2038
EEHEEE Amounts requlary provided

REARHE  tothe CODM but not
TirABAE  included inthe measure
ZEIHREE of seqment results or
2 segment assets:

HREBEZER  Iioress njot ventures - - - - - - - - - - 21 113 2 113
ELON Ineestincone 1] 875 - 0 147 1 U § 1 Looum ORI 1T N £
BERE Finance costs 2268 11524 - - 8 - - A w1 19 255% 4602 8314 1633
EEAEDE  Shweo (gain)lossof

(&H) /88 joitventures - - - - - - - - - (13%) 50 (139) 5%

REFRRDEERBBAEME  HE

BEREE L iR -

Additions to non-current assets consist
of additions to property, plant and
equipment and interests in leasehold
land.
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Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—HRF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2015

6. ﬁ}ﬁﬁ*ﬁl (ﬂ{é’f_ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(d) BBEEXEEFzEH (d) Information about major customers
RIBEFEERAEEAWZE10%U E2 Revenue from customers of the corresponding
BEPpzHmENT years contributing over 10% of the total revenue

of the Group is as follows:

—E-I1f% —TmF
2015 2014
FEx THT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

IR RIEFR R EE %7 Hotel and gaming service operations

EFH Customer A 724,602 1,016,488
RREFE  HEEnEFPEARERK No other customers contributed 10% or more to
#w10% A F o the Group’s revenue for both years.

(e) i EE R (e) Geographical information
TREHNBEBOKREINAZE 7 Uk K The following table sets out information about
ERBEEIWEEYER - BREHE geographical location of (i) revenue from external
S T ERIB MR S XS S 2 B+ customers and (ii) non-current assets. The
B ERHEEYHEREIERZEE geographical location of customers is based on
EvARBEMNE - the location at which the services were provided

or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the assets.

REIAEF 2W G FRBEE
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
—2-1% —F-mF —2-If —T-mF
2015 2014 2015 2014
TERT TERT TERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

&5 Hong Kong 158,762 106,043 208,723 176,715
SR Macau 885,504 1,175,980 770,586 810,482

B ROR P Other than Hong Kong
LASIN b [ and Macau 240 1,574 1 1
1,044,506 1,283,597 979,310 987,198

ANNUAL REPORT % 2015 159



P ESEBEAGRADQ

BF B #t 7 fi} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_ZE—FRF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2015

7

160

i 2

7. REVENUE

BIEEE KA
EmkARmEE
ISR EET ZREEA

EEREBRBRELEEKL
AR5 WA

ATERBEEER ZRBKA

B 18 % & %5 4 AUk A

BERRITERA
SAERRBUKA
T U AR
HEREE M

H s

Hotel accommodation income

Food and beverage sales

Service income from mass market table
gaming operations

Service income from VIP rooms table
gaming operations

Service income from slot machines operations

Receive profit streams from gaming
promotion business

Film distribution fee income

Artist management service income

Gross rental income

Sales of health products

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

8. OTHER REVENUE

JEB 5] AR 75 WL
BB A
HEME  #IRREBZER

FBEA
EEERA
B i L A BT 8 Uk 2

Consultancy service income

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest income

Management fee income

Other ancillary hotel revenue

—E-—RF —E 4
2015 2014
TERT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
115,069 114,203
38,239 38,782
684,740 917,930
32,584 82,695
7,277 15,864
4,748 4,740

18 1,923

1,199 344

180 173
160,452 106,943
1,044,506 1,283,597
—E-—hEF —ET -0
2015 2014
FExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
67 -

134 -

392 -
95,910 37,584
769 559
11,110 12,746
108,382 50,889

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

10.

Her A

b EEBEAGRADQ

Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—HRF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2015

9. OTHER INCOME

—F-1F —T-lF
2015 2014
FTHExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
SN 5 I F EE Net foreign exchange gain - 70
REBE HRER Bargain purchase gain recognised
HEEE R in a business combination - 3,072
Hth Other 915 137
915 3,279
Eﬂﬁﬁf’j& 10. FINANCE COSTS
—E-0F —ET -0
2015 2014
FTExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
HE=N Interests on:
RITIEE Bank borrowings
—HRAFANEHEE — wholly repayable within five years 2,649 11,719
—ARTFREBEREER — wholly repayable after five years 26,629 -
mERE Finance leases 36 20
ATBREESZEET S Imputed interest on convertible bonds - 4,600
29,314 16,339
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11.

162

BR B A1 2t

BREARMEMER,GEA) THI5®|

11.

Profit before tax h
charging/(crediting):

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

as been arrived at after

THE £ b 4 5 B8 55
BV EEHH
ERRERE GTAHERAE)

ZEED B R E AL PR
—E& R
—IREF R

BEEFERA GIAHERAR)

MR R RRENE
EERMA (ZHF15)
FERE BENFER
HAhEURIA 2 B R
MEEE GT AR L)
BHEERRE EHERRE
EiE GTAEMKEMAX)
BERSEPER ZEEARE
EE GFAEMREMX)

FHENEEZCHERARERE
(FREAEMEERX)

HEMR  HERREZ
Ca ) EE
B AR 2 B (Gt A
Hoh 45 2 5 320
REMERAFEEZS 2
BiEGIAEMEER)
HESEARBEEEREZ
EREEZE
DERFHFEEEREZ
CRMEEZATEER
PRE®Z CaF) /&8
BRAMEZREHEERS
BERERBRBARN X F2
732 (R AR MR & RS0

BB 17 SRR
RAWEBERALE

W FRREMERELEZ
HEREMX

Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of film rights

(included in cost of sales)
Auditors’ remuneration and other services:
— audit services
— non-audit services

Cost of inventories sold
(included in cost of sales)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Employee benefit expenses (see note 15)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
deposits, prepayment and other receivable
(included in other operating expenses)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of film

rights (included in other operating expenses)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
films in progress (included in other
operating expenses)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets
(included in other operating expenses)

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
(included in other operating expenses)

Loss on fair value change of investment properties

(included in other operating expenses)

Gain on disposal of financial assets classified

as held for trading investments

(Gain)/loss arising on change in fair value of
financial assets classified as held for
trading investments

Operating lease rental in respect of premises

Share-based payment expenses in respect of

consultancy services (included in other
operating expenses)
Write-down of obsolete inventories

Gross rental income from investment
properties
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred
for investment properties
during the year

—E-1fF —ET-NEF
2015 2014
FHT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
23,158 22,928
577 610

241 337
1,281 1,254
420 413
1,701 1,667
106,743 83,900
70,256 74,291
221,278 169,919

S

- 1,656

2,405 2,939

- 40

6,865 13,177
(392) 699

- 388

4,930 -
(21,991) (18,798)
(77,647) 10,688
21,975 13,068
15,059 -
10 171

(180) (173)
317 39

137 (134)
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Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—RAF+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2015

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT
—EB-AF —TmF
2015 2014
TRER FTHET
HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FrIEHERWOT : The income tax credit is as follow:
BETFERETE Under provision in prior years:

R P PTG # 7 A Macau Complementary Tax (173) -
IEIERLIE Deferred tax:

KEE Current year 322 160
RNEEMBEHEEETE Total income tax credit for the year 149 160
EENGHAMEFTFERAEAERR EN 2 Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
16.5%5T & o P B [ff B A 7] 72 M 8 F JZ 12 25% 5 estimated assessable profit for both years. The PRC
MR BEPERGH - BRFINBRARNWEFER subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income
HETERT S F 2 &m REF E12%H 4R AT Tax at 25% for both years. Macau subsidiaries are
BHER Etai#EEEENREZRER X subject to Macau Complementary Tax at the maximum

R IBITHENE -

progressive rate of 12% on the estimated assessable
profit for both years. Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.

ARASEHETMAREES 2 ERBRFHZ No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
EEAMAEFNE 2 ARG EEIE ) for both years as the Group has no assessable profit
WEREREEEZBEFERERBE - arising in Hong Kong or taxable profits were wholly

absorbed by estimated tax losses brought forward.

AR AEETENRPEERRE RS - thit & No provision for Macau Complementary Tax has been
PZMEFE 2B PIFT1S 1 78 Fl 1F B - made for both years as the Group has no assessable

profit arising in Macau.

HRAEBEWRAPBREERRTGR - BtR No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
MR EFE T EEE P EDERGTREE - made for both years as the Group has no assessable

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

12.

13.

164

FREHER (&

F R EERE WA K ARR AR E R 2 S5

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled

HEWmT : to the profit before tax per the consolidated income
statement as follows:
—E-AfF —ET-WmEF
2015 2014
FTExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

B 75 BT g 7 Profit before tax 107,715 209,851
BEBNEH E16.5%1 1 Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate

(ZZ—UF : 16.5%) of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) (17,773) (84,625)
k% Tax effect of:
JEEEETEER Share of result of joint ventures 23 87
TERBUA Income not taxable for tax purpose 158,770 182,586
DGR 5w Expenses not deductible for tax purpose (131,362) (155,604)
KRR A RIEER Estimated tax losses not recognised (9,629) (3,966)
BERERAIEARIEES Utilisation of tax losses previously

not recognised 528 -
M RMMSEANTEAE Exemption for tax liabilities in
Macau Complementary tax 70 70

BTFERHBETR Under provision in prior years (173) -
EEMAEERLEE 2 Different tax rates of subsidiaries

P8 A a2 TR B operating in other jurisdictions (305) 11,612
FANFREHRER Income tax credit for the year 149 160
HQE\ 13. DIVIDEND

FALEIRMNKEZRTRARE
% BEFENTEZRRNEAKE -

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the

year, nor any dividend been proposed by the board of

directors subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
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14. gﬂﬁ%*” 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
RARBEEABGEBRERNREERFTIEAT The computations of basic and diluted earnings per
HEETE share attributable to owners of the Company are based

on the following data:
—E—EHF —E—UEF
2015 2014
FERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
27 Earnings

AR ESRERNNE#E
BNz &R (AAREAA

Earnings for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share (profit for

FEIEFEEF) the year attributable to owners
of the Company) 107,871 209,665
—E-OF
2014
T
"000
(&)
(restated)
RHEE Number of shares
RARTEGRERZF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary
MEFEH L mRE R shares for the purpose of basic earnings
per share 707,467 520,854
BEEELRR I TE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
B e Share options 46,192 -
RRETEGRESERT 2 Weighted average number of ordinary
NEFHEBREE shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share 753,659 520,854
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HE-T-
14.

166

BREF (&
RBAL R AT EH 2 TR K AR RRE
%H“’ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ/@i@ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ’%zmIﬂ,@

B o B - BRI 58 4)265,0008 0 (ZF
—mi 265,000/ 7T ) 2 1M AR AT AL 7 7] 2 i (B
% #1891,060,3170% (ZF — M4 - 26,507,961
f%) &R EEC.OTE L2 M LM AFRRET
BHE-_T-RAF+-_A=+—BERZZE—NOF
+tZAZ+-BLFESRELARBFZ METFH
TmiREE -

Nt B8R ERNREERN 2 BE_2—NF
A=+T—HLESFEMEFHERRHBECH
ZE-RET-ANABETZRAEAELR

o

H@W—O—E

MARARAMATEZ BREHBRE-S 0
FH-A=t+-BLFEZSREFAHNY
RERESYE HHERE-T-MTTA
=t -BLEEESRESRAELFRRTEL
MR RS -

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

Pursuant to the deed polls of the bonus convertible
bonds, the bonus convertible bonds will confer the
holders with the same economic interests attached
to the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly,
1,060,317 (2014: 26,507,961) fully paid ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each which shall be convertible from an
aggregated amount of approximately HK$265,000
(2014: HK$265,000) outstanding bonus convertible
bonds are included in the weighted average number of
ordinary shares for calculating the basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31st December 2015 and 31st
December 2014.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the year ended 31st December 2014 for the purposes
of calculating basis and diluted earnings per share
have been adjusted for the capital reorganisation which
took place on 9th November 2015.

As the Company’s outstanding share options where
applicable had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic
earnings per share calculation for the year ended 31st
December 2014,
dilutive shares is not assumed in the calculation of

the exercise of the above potential

diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st
December 2014.
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15. EERAIBX

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

EEHM:
—EF8E

—Fra RHEMER
— R IRAE AT B R

¥ READERS
BARBRHNFEAER(TREBEESRZ
XN ER RN )

SHESBHMZARN M2
X GtARMEERX)

B BRI

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

Directors’ remuneration:

— directors’ fees
— salaries and other allowances
— retirement benefits scheme contributions

Salaries and other allowances

Retirement benefits scheme contributions
(excluding directors’ retirement benefits
scheme contributions)

Share-based payment expenses in
respect of employees (included in
other operating expenses)

Staff welfare expenses

—E-—RF —E 4
2015 2014
Fi T FiET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
1,160 1,515
12,690 13,155
36 34
13,886 14,704
149,326 134,338
2,459 1,908
36,927 -
18,680 18,969
221,278 169,919
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15. EERFBEX (&

168

(@)

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)
EEHS (a) Directors’ emoluments
ARG EEGHNABA=-R(ZT—HF : The Company’s board of directors is currently
MEZ)HITEER=Z(ZZE—NF: =%) composed of three (2014: four) executive
BUFHTEFEK - directors and three (2014: three) independent
non-executive directors.
fe FeREMEH ERBRHEHR L
Retirement
Salaries and benefits scheme
other allowances contributions Total
“3-mf Rl -3-nf il “3-5% Emeditd
2014 2015 2014 2015 2015 2014
TERL TER A TER TER TERL
f £3:21 Name of director HK$'000 HK$' 000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
HiEE Executive directors
AERLE Mr. Heung Wah Keung - - 5,900 6,230 - - 5,900 6,230
FREAE(N-F-1F Mr. Mung Kin Keung (resigned on
IA-BEf) 15t May 2015) 800 115 - - - . 800 115
BRELT Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany - - 5,630 5810 18 17 5,648 5,807
FIgLL Ms. Li Yuk Sheung - - 1,160 1,115 18 17 1,178 1,132
EI#H1EE Independent non-executive directors
BEERE Mr. Hung Cho Sing 120 120 - - - - 120 120
fsEE Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul 120 120 - - - - 120 120
BEMEE Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert 120 120 - - - - 120 120
1,160 1515 12,690 13,158 36 34 13,886 14,704

BE-_Z-AF+-_A=t+-BRER_-ZT
—mE+ZA=+—HLEFER A&EH
BERNEEZ NS ERIMAREE LM
B SRR KB 2 E - R ESIM
BAFEHEEERNELRERETAHE -

RERLFREAER - AREH
AVERASRBEEBMETER MRS

BEARBZEARS THREH -

4 52 B

AN

During the year ended 31st December 2015
and 31st December 2014,
were paid by the Group to the directors as an

no emoluments

inducement to join or upon joining the Group
as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in both years.

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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15. EERFBBEX (&

(b) IEEEBREFMAL
AEERFAREER TN ZALTERE
—ZEE(ZZENFE WMELESE)
H B4 15,900,000/ 7T (Z T — M 4F .
12,057,000 7t) + I B B £ X 5E(a)
HIR - RAFERERNERNEALT (ZF
—WE I =F)zHMenT

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include one
director (2014: two directors) whose emoluments
are reflected in note (a) above and amounted
to HK$5,900,000 (2014: HK$12,057,000). The
emoluments payable to the remaining four
individuals (2014: three) during the year were as

follow:
—E-HF —ZT -
2015 2014
FET FH T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
e R E A ER Salaries and other allowances 8,399 7,760
RO zHAE Share-based payment expenses 18,914 -
RRAE R FT I Retirement benefits scheme contributions 68 62
27,381 7,822

mE(Z2-—WNE: ZR)EaFHFMAL
BRER-AH(CE-MOF: —R)NEER
BREBANEBE| —HRELSRER
N =

EHOE (ZTE-MF: =F) &= H
ATEBUZMEAELENT

The four (2014: three) individuals include one
(2014: one) senior management as disclosed
in the section “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management”.

The aggregated emoluments of each of the
remaining four (2014: three) highest paid
individuals fell within the following bands:

A"
Number of individuals

—E—OF

2014

1,000,001 TE HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 1
1,500,000 7T

2,000,001 L2 HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
2,500,000/ 7T

4,000,001 L2 HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - 1
4,500,000/ 7T

6,000,001/ L2 HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 2 -
6,500,000 7T

7,000,001 L2 HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 1 -
7,500,0007% 7T

7,500,001 L2 HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 1 -
8,000,000/ 7T

4 <}
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16. R IKE 5 &

1

/

0

(a)

AEEREAEGEAERETEGA 2R A
REOAEMETEEBERZEER A
EerE - AKERMBERBEEHESM
BESHE - AEEBREREETHK
BE MEEREEGABEBAKAZS%
3 B8 AKA LR AETE 230,000
7T (R =T —MWF /X A— B Al £25,000%8
TT) c MEREEBELRE RARMR -
BESHECEERASEZEED R
B IR EBUEHEESREA -

AREZMBRRAAERMIERZAER
BERLEBEMEKEE - RIKSFHE T
BUBBEARRIMERE -AKBERESR
[ % 5t BIE S50 A R o AR E R
REABARAIIX -

AREZHWBRARNTEMEFER AT
BT A& i 3t R B R E 1 2 R IRAE M ET
AKE -ZEWBRARARFHA A
TEALERKENEBHER - AEE5L
RREBT S RNENE B AaE—&
ETrmZ S BMEL AR - fRTIR
EEBRNEERARAIIK -

16.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(a)

The Group operates MPF Scheme under rules
and regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all its employees
employed in Hong Kong. All employees of the
Group in Hong Kong are required to join the
MPF Scheme. The Group has chosen to follow
the minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ monthly relevant
income but limited to the mandatory cap of
HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to 1st June
2014). The contributions are charged to the
consolidated income statements as incurred. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administrative fund.

The Group’s subsidiaries operate a defined
contribution scheme for eligible employees
employed in Macau. The pension fund scheme
is established and managed by an independent
management company. Both the Group and
the employees make equal share of monthly
contributions to the scheme. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in
PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the government of
the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute
a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits schemes operated
by the government of the PRC is made the
specified contributions under the schemes. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.
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17. W% - BB E 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BENE &R
G 2 %% RERRME "E BE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
T THET THAT TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KA EE Cost or valuation
RZE-m5-A-A At 1st January 2014 455,590 309,542 293,336 9,399 1,067,867
RE Additions - 3,522 15,217 701 19,440
BREBAMNE Acquisition through business
(ZHi42) combination (see note 42) - 3,568 1,458 - 5,026
HENBLRE (ZH7743) Disposal of subsidiaries
(see note 43) (79,973) (3,461) (1,822) - (85,256)
hE Disposals - (320) (1,853) - (2,173)

RZZ—ME+-A=+—H  At31st December 2014

ER-E-RF-F—H and at 1st January 2015 375,617 312,851 306,336 10,100 1,004,904
NE Additions - 2,477 41193 6,000 49,670
ROEER 25 Gain on revaluation

of property 48,171 - - - 48171
BEARENE Transfer to investment properties

(EHit19) (see note 19) (117,216) - - - (117,216)
HE Disposals - 97) (8,192) (236) (8,525)
RZE-R4+ZA=1—H At 31st December 2015 306,572 315,231 339,337 15,864 977,004

Rt E Accumulated depreciation
W-E-mE-F-A A st January 2014 51,540 171,410 193,503 4,944 401,307
FNHE Charge for the year 13,801 40,574 18,495 1,421 74,291
HENBARRE#H(4M743)  Eliminated on disposal of
subsidiaries (see note 43) (2,247) (715) (281) - (3,243)
HERY Eliminated on disposals - (320) (1,150) - (1,470)

WZZE—NF+-A=+—H  At31st December 2014

ER-E-n&—-F—-B and at 1st January 2015 63,094 210,949 210,567 6,365 490,975
H\RENE Transfer to investment properties
(ZHE19) (see note 19) (2,416) - - - (2,416)
FRNE Charge for the year 12,342 42,110 13,282 2522 70,256
&R Eliminated on disposals - (97) 8,111) (236) (8,444)
R-T-RFE+-A=1+—H At 31st December 2015 73,020 252,962 215,738 8,651 550,371
REE Carrying amounts
R-B-E5+-F=1-H At 31st December 2015 233,552 62,269 123,599 7,213 426,633
W-ZE-MmE+-A=1+-8 At 31st December 2014 312,523 101,902 95,769 3,735 513,929
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17.

172

RZZE—HFtA—B BERSHANEEN
PA % 75 BR T {8 466,629,000/ T 2 12 F B ok # A
BREIEEEAMBARENE -MEE[HENL
48,171,000 TE R EEFREEER - HED
HBAEMTETEEBERBRARIRATEE
B114,800,000/8 & (R MK M TE19) ©

R-ZE—AF+-_A=+—H BEFEEEH
218,946,000/ 7T (=T — [ F : 229,997,000/
) EEBERAEEME—RBITEEBZER
(RS REMIE36K%46) °

RZE—HEF+-_A=+—8 GHR EEX
SEEOEREREREROBBEZEED
819,000/ 7T (ZZ — U 4F : 1,066,000/ ) (R
B 75 ¥R 5% BT 5237 % 46) o

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

At 1st July 2015, building located in Hong Kong
under long-term leases with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$66,629,000 was transferred to
investment properties as change of usage by the end
of owner-occupation. A gain on revaluation of property
of approximately HK$48,171,000 was recognised in
property revaluation reserve, which was determined on
the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, JP Assets Consultancy Limited, at fair
value of HK$114,800,000 (see note 19 to the financial
statements).

At 31st December 2015, buildings with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$218,946,000 (2014:
HK$229,997,000) have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (see notes 36
and 46 to the financial statements).

At 31st December 2015, the carrying amounts of
furniture, fixtures and equipment includes an amount
of approximately HK$819,000 (2014: HK$1,066,000) in
respect of assets held under finance leases (see notes
37 and 46 to the financial statements).

EXFREFREEAERE The carrying amounts of buildings shown above
comprise:

—E—EHF —E—UEF
2015 2014
FHET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

URBEREZET Buildings located in Hong Kong under:
— AR A - Medium-term lease 6,296 6,723
—REIEAD - Long-term lease 8,310 75,803

RRM 2T Buildings located in Macau under:

—HEIME LD - Medium-term lease 218,946 229,997
233,552 312,523
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18. *ﬂgiﬂﬂ%é 18. INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
—F-1F —T-lF
2015 2014
FERT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
24N Cost
W—HA—H At 1st January 590,385 587,469
NE Addition - 2,916
Rt+-—_A=+—H At 31st December 590,385 590,385
g £ Accumulated amortisation
Bn—HA—H At 1st January 148,772 125,844
F N Charge for the year 23,158 22,928
R+=ZA=+—H At 31st December 171,930 148,772
REE Carrying amounts
R+—_A=+—H At 31st December 418,455 441,613

EXmRHEL S CREERE

The carrying amounts of interests in leasehold land
shown above comprise:

—F-1F —T-lF
2015 2014
FERT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

REFHENFEZ Leasehold land located in Hong Kong, held
URBENHEE L on medium-term lease 59,031 60,904

REFBEAOREE Leasehold land located in Macau, held on

UABRPMMAE L medium-term lease 359,424 380,709
418,455 441,613

R-Z—RAFE+-_A=Z=+—8B HMELH#E
% FR T {E #£9359,424,0008 7T (=T — /0 4 -
380,709,000/ 7T) BEHE R AR E B FTE — IR
TEEBEZER (R BIREME36K%46) o
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At 31st December 2015, interests in leasehold land with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$359,424,000
(2014: HK$380,709,000) have been pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (see
notes 36 and 46 to the financial statements).
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19. }Qﬁ%* 19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—F-1F —T-lF

2015 2014

FHERT FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

W—HA—H At 1st January 6,190 6,190
HEYE  KRREE Transfer from property, plant and

(ZHFE17) equipment (see note 17) 114,800 -

AT EEEHEEL BB Loss arising on change in fair value (4,930) -

R+-—A=+—H At 31st December 116,060 6,190

—E-HF —E-NE
2015 2014
FTHT FHT

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FFABREMARZYEMBEBELZ Unrealised loss on properties valuation
FERERBGIAEMEERMT)  included in consolidated income
statement (included in other operating

expenses) 4,930 -
AEBRBELSHABEAURDRAS K ERNIEE The Group’s properties interests held under operating
RezMERRDRAAFEERNGTE 1 H leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
BRAREABKEME - purposes are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.
EXPARREYMEZERERSE The carrying amounts of investment properties shown

above comprises:

—E—-8EF —E—UF
2015 2014
FTExT FHEIT
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
RIBERABOFEEZ Investment properties located in Hong Kong
UREBEBNREME held under long-term lease 116,060 6,190
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20. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

#

20. REVE 2 AT EEE

(i) NV EEER
TRENAEEREMERRE R RZEL
FPUHEEGFEVRER-BERATER
ER(EERBTEVBRELIE1BKLD
FEEFZ)WRATEER DFEEFE
DR ERRBEHERMARBE AR
BZABRREERBEEMMEENT

. E-SRHE- ATEEERS
E-FRBABEE ARG
ERMHAEEXABNERMS
ZAREHERE

. E_SRHEE-AFEERAS
“ERBAZE (DRFTEE—F
Mz UBRH AR FERTE
BERTABEGARE T
BRBABBEATAESTHSH
BZzBARE X

. E-FRMHE- AFEEERE
RIAABEHABEE -

(M

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified and determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

F-E8 F-ER EZEH @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHT FHT FHRT FHT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

W-ZZE-R&E+=-H=+—H At 31st December 2015

HEENREZ N FEE Fair value on a recurring basis
NRBEBIRENE Investment properties located in
Hong Kong - 116,060 - 116,060
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BE—%—

20. REMEZLXVEEFE(E) 20

()

AVEERR(E)

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
534 —ER E=%R st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TET TET TET TET

HK$’'000

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

R-E-NFE+-A=t—H
KEFIHREZ N FER

URNBEZRENE

At 31st December 2014
Fair value on a recurring basis

Investment property located in
Hong Kong -

6,190 - 6,190

AEBZBRRBEANERER 2 E1 3k
EREHHRZANAFEEERARS
B-BE—T-RAEt_A=t—HRKZ
E-ME+-_A=+—RILFE ITEXE
FEREE_FRMETER  LBA
REHE=FR-

REE 2 HREWERRERRIGHBE A
EMTRTEEEMERAR(AETIA
BEANEMETEE 2ERK  HHME
MEMEMERFABERNABRHER
HELR) BT REREHR AQF
EEBERRBTEERAEABHERR
RAEEEREASAMEITR ©

BT ATEES ML SERE
HRRBEANAR -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer. During
the year ended 31st December 2015 and
31st December 2014, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3.

The Group’s investment properties were
revalued at the end of each reporting period
by an independent firm of surveyors, JP Assets
Consultancy Limited, who have among their
staff member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The
management of the Company have discussion
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at the end of each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the

highest and best use of the properties are their
current use.

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

b EEBEAGRADQ

Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—RAF+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2015

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

20. REWMEZATFEEFE(E) 20

(i) H-ERAVEEAEREAZGEERN
RBABE
KREME 2R FEEDNRAMSGLEAE
ENAARAGEHSEE2ETLERY
EOHHEBRETHRREE 2 EEF

st
o

(i)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level
2 fair value measurements

The fair value of investment properties are
determined using the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square
foot basis using market data which is publicly

available.
21. ﬁ% 21. GOODWILL
—E—EHF —E—UF
2015 2014
FERT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
2% Cost
Rn—H—H At 1st January 118,589 121,619
P E MR )RR LR Derecognised on disposal of
(2 H1i#43) subsidiaries (see note 43) - (3,030)
Rt+=-—A=+—H At 31st December 118,589 118,589
At EEEE Accumulated impairment losses
R—A—BE+=ZA=+—H At 1st January and 31st December 118,589 118,589
IREE Carrying amounts
W+=—A=+—8 At 31st December - -

RZZT—NFAA+—H  REBHEHERAce
Season Holdings Limited ([Ace Season]) 2%
Ho0% M iE  RABKRIEERAEELEEBILITEE
£ (REBEE R EHTHIRE) 2 B8 493,030,000

AT e

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

On 11th June 2014, the Group had disposed
of entire 50% equity interest in Ace Season
Holdings Limited (“Ace Season”), goodwill of
approximately HK$3,030,000 generated from
Nam Pei Hong operations was derecognised on
the same date, which the Group lost its control.
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21. & (& 21. GOODWILL (Continued)
BEHENR Impairment testing of goodwill
RIEZRREEE  "EERSELENZBHE Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
BREEWDT amounts of goodwill were allocated to the CGUs as
follows:
=E-1f% —TmF
2015 2014
FTHET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BRHEREEEER Gaming promotion operations 8,975 8,975
B IE RIER IR 5 48 & 3 15 Hotel and gaming service operations 911 911
B HEEBLLEER Film related business operations 108,703 108,703
118,589 118,589

HmEMRcABEREEMRRTREBR) HE

The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated

EREEEBNIOT impairment losses) at the end of the reporting period
were allocated to the CGUs as follows:

—E-—hEF —ET -0

2015 2014

FHET FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BRHEECE XD Gaming promotion operations - -

B 5 R AE R AR T 48 & T Hotel and gaming service operations - -

EYHBEBLEXER

178

Film related business operations - -
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292. ﬁﬂ;ﬁé 22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
AMERFZER BE BRIME  EFER H
Rights in Exclusive
sharing of distribution  Customers
profit streams Trademarks right relationship Total
TAL TAL THL TiEx FHL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RA Cost
RZZE-NF-A—-H At 1st January 2014 989,205 7,345 - 2,454 999,004
BREBAMNE (Zhie) Acquisition through business
combinations (see note 42) - 12,483 2,021 - 14,504
RLERE A A& LR Derecognised on disposal of
(Zli243) subsidiaries (see nofe 43) - (7,345) - (2,454) (9,799)
R=E-WE+=A=1+-H At 31st December 2014,
RZZ-hE -A-AR at 1st January 2015 and
RZF-RF+=A=1—H at 31st December 2015 989,205 12,483 2,021 - 1,003,709
R EHERAERR Accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses
RZZE-NF—-A—H At 1st January 2014 965,112 1,600 - 1,069 967,781
FRx Charge for the year - 326 67 217 610
B HERE Impairment loss recognised 13177 - - - 13177
RLERBA RN R LR Derecognised on disposal of
(ZHi#43) subsidiaries (see note 43) - (1,926) - (1,286) (3,212)
RZE-ME+ZA=+-BR At 31st December 2014 and
RZZ-nE-A-A at 1st January 2015 978,289 - 67 - 978,356
FRZH Charge for the year - - 577 - 577
BRRHERS Impairment loss recognised 587 4,901 1377 - 6,865
RZE-1F+=-A=1-H At 31st December 2015 978,876 4,901 2,021 - 985,798
RAEE Carrying amounts
R-E-RFE+-A=1-H At 31st December 2015 10,329 7,582 - - 17,911
RZF-NF+=A=1—H At 31st December 2014 10,916 12,483 1,954 - 25,353
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22,

180

BEEE (&

HEtEBERHER T AERFH

DGR A 2 HE R THETE
L 105,/ T HEE
BER D HE 3.5%F
BEFBE 5%

TREVEAFHZ2EREE ZRENR

AR —ZT—WF+—H =+ HUWEAce Season
FEEZEE(FEE]) (RFBHREMT42) &
DMEEF 2 R AT TR FERE -

SURER AT S - AR EEF Z AR
BREOIEZEMAIAAHENEERGSZREE
EEAL -

EERR THEALAFHZEVEEEET
BEAEASSH REAEENERNERNRS
MAFRE B TeTUEE BEEAERF
HWBEARER AWM ERREFRREHR
BRE MR HBERERETRENR -

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The following useful lives are used in calculation of

amortisation:

Rights in sharing of profit streams Indefinite

Trademarks 10 years/Indefinite
Exclusive distribution right 3.5 years
Customers relationship 5 years

Impairment testing of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives

The trademark generated from acquisition of Ace
Season (the “New Trademark”) on 20th November 2014
(see note 42 to the financial statements) and rights in
sharing of profit streams have indefinite useful lives.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the New
Trademark and rights in sharing of profit streams are
allocated at acquisition to the CGU that are expected to
benefit from such intangible asset.

The intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
considered by the directors as having an indefinite
useful life because it is expected to contribute to net
cash inflows indefinitely and will not be amortised until
its useful life are determined to be finite. Instead they
will be tested for impairment annually and whenever
there are indications that they may be impaired.
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22,

A ﬂ:/ ﬁ E (/:'5’

TRETEAFHZELEEZRENR (F)

RZZE—RAF+ZA=+T—H EE2Z8

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment testing of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives (Continued)

At 31st December 2015, the directors assessed

VEERBEEHREMTPEIHEARARKA the recoverable amount of the New Trademark
BRReREEETZHE THFTHEZRE with reference to the valuation performed by Grant
EEBEMzA B YEETHATREYLY Sherman Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent

4,901,000 7L (ZE— M4 : &) c REMILTT
KEEB R EReESEMN KRB SHED
BRECHAEBENEET  ZTE-FAKEEE
HELAFHUREEAEEZRESREN - AU
REGF18% (ZF—M4F : 12.71% ) 2 H13H L5t
E RAFNUEsBRERTDIER% (ZF—HF :
2%) BRERME - ZEERDREBEHEBELER
A B EBEEMEETORPRE - F
AEBEMEEZEEZREABRSHEAREE
B 2EEMNE EBREFTEE  ZMF K
BRARBRERERMEERE 2TEH -

RBEZT—HAFT-_A=+—BLFEER
ZHEBBETREELTEEER ZNER
HRBEECELAENCARZETRESELY
7,582,000/ 7« METEAME & EABRH 2T
FEZBKEIE—FRERE -

ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ/éﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬂz%ﬂ HER AR
—HRESEEREL Z04% R BB ZEN -
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qualified professional valuers, which valued the New
Trademark by using the discounted cash flow method
and determined that the New Trademark was impaired
by approximately HK$4,901,000 (2014: nil). The
recoverable amount of the CGU of the New Trademark
from Nam Pei Hong operations has been determined
based on value in use calculation, which uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and
discount rate of 18% (2014: 12.71%) per annum and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a zero (2014: 2%) growth rate. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. Key assumptions for the value
in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include gross margin, growth
and discount rate, such estimation is based on past
experience and management’s expectations for the
market development.

The impairment loss recognised during the year
ended 31st December 2015 relates to the Group’s
New Trademark from Nam Pei Hong operations. As
the CGU has been reduced to its recoverable amount
of approximately HK$7,582,000, any adverse change
in the assumptions used in the calculations of the
recoverable amount would result in further impairment
losses.

The intangible asset associated with the rights in
sharing of profit streams from the gaming promotion
business represented the rights in sharing of 0.4%
of rolling turnover generated from a casino VIP room
located in Macau for an indefinite period of time.
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HE-T-
22,

182

A ﬂ:/ ﬁ E (/:'5’

TRETEAFHZELEEZRENR (F)

DAEER 2 ERIERE 2 B RPN AR IRA R R
F?E&ﬁ¢§i§°§$w% AEBEBEENT
BEEBYHNARR Bt  EERRENG
i M 2 EFIAE 2 R AN IR BT R E AT
REH AEBFASERPEMBRESRAFE -

RZE—RF+ZA=1+—B EEC2ZH
VEBREEGEMPETHERRAMET
CHEERBURASCRENLTHRESH
NARKBZE DGR 2 BF) 5T 218 5 5 1
FlzahEl&E TETEREVEERELD
587,000/ 70 (ZZ — U4 : 13,177,000/ L) °

DHREBRHEL2EB RN ENZREE
FEzAREEBENREEREEFEESEE
ZETEAFRERENECTFHNVBEE AR
2B e mIEA Wiﬁzo 43% (=T —P4E
BF17.62%) CTREFE  BFUEZREN

RBEFEDERTERREHAEE - ZER
EDRBEEMEXERTEN  AYBBLERE

EFORPERX -BRABEMEEZZIERR
BR2M/A/ REGHER BFENE #EER
ERFRE - ZEADEREBEERREEREHR

misERZES -

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment testing of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives (Continued)

The junket licences associated with the rights in
sharing of the profit streams is renewable annually
by the Macau government. The directors are of the
opinion that the Group would renew the junket licences
continuously and has the ability to do so. Therefore, the
directors consider that the junket licences associated
will the rights in sharing of the profit streams have an
indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute
to net cash inflow indefinitely.

At 31st December 2015, the directors assessed the
recoverable amount of rights in sharing of profits
streams with reference to the valuation performed by
Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent
qualified professional valuers, which valued the
rights in sharing of profit streams pursuant to the
respective junket representative agreement by using
the discounted cash flow method and determined that
intangible asset associated with it was impaired by
approximately HK$587,000 (2014: HK$13,177,000).

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the rights
in sharing of profit streams from gaming promotion
operations has been determined based on value in use
calculation, which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period and discount rate of 20.43% per
annum (2014:
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using zero

17.62% per annum) and cash flows

growth rate for both years. This growth rate is based
on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include gross margin, growth rate
and discount rate, such estimation is based on past
experience and management's expectations for the
market development.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment testing of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives (Continued)

The impairment loss recognised during the year relates
to the Group’s rights in sharing of profit streams from
gaming promotion operations. As the CGU has been
reduced to its recoverable amount of approximately
HK$10,329,000 (2014: HK$10,916,000),
change in the assumptions used in the calculation

any adverse

of the recoverable amount would result in further
impairment losses.

The Group’s exclusive distribution right is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives. During the year ended 31st December 2015, the
amortisation of exclusive distribution right amounted to
approximately HK$577,000 (2014: HK$67,000).

For the purpose of impairment testing of exclusive
distribution right, its carrying amount was compared
with its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
has been determined based on value in use calculation,
which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 2.5
years period and discount rate of 18% per annum. Key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
gross margin, growth and discount rate, such estimation
is based on past experience and management’s
expectations for the market development. As a result
of the assessment, the recoverable amount of the
exclusive distribution right is estimated to be less
than the carrying amount and an impairment loss of
HK$1,377,000 was recognised during the year ended

31st December 2015 (2014: nil).
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23.
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REELFEER

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

—E-1F —E-F
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
REBEREZRERK Cost of investments in joint ventures,
REE LM unlisted in Hong Kong 2,325 2,325
EReEECEREREEBIER Share of post-acquisition losses and

Ef2mERA - NBRERRE other comprehensive income in
joint ventures, net of dividend

received

AEBZABELERFLEMOEMER  WEXE
BARERAELEESZTIH]E -

REBAECENREBRZABHRUBHRE
MisE52 o

RELENRARDZEZNEEHBEREAALR -

RZB-MELA=+—0B HhBEEEXEER
RAFCHKE#ITRAS SR {71,000,000/%
TLHIRZ § 177,500 7T -

(2,074) (2,212)

251 113

The Group’s joint ventures are unlisted corporate
entities whose quoted market prices are not available.

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures at the end
of the reporting period are set out in note 52 to the
financial statements.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method in these financial statements.

On 31st July 2014, China Star Film Group Limited had

reduced its issued share capital from HK$1,000,000 per
share to HK$77,500 per share.
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23. REELERER (&

BRFEAZEELEZASER

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
individually material

—E-—hEF —ET -0
2015 2014
FERT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

NEBDIEFEEZE %M, (EE) K% The Group’s share of profit/(loss) and

T HEEERE total comprehensive loss for
the year 138 (530)
REBRZEEELERERZ Aggregate carrying amounts of
BLEREE the Group’s interests in these
joint ventures 251 113

24. .T_f_‘é' INVENTORIES
—E-REF —E—UF
2015 2014
FBT F#&IT
HK$’ 000 HK$’' 000
BM RETHE Food materials and supplies 9,146 5,050
2K G Finished goods 61,063 68,023
70,209 73,073

BEHEERN—FAAKE -

FEKKR#106,743,0000 ¢ (= F — /Y 4 -
83,900,000/ 70) R AR X Wat ASHEMA o

BE-_T-—AF+_A=+—HLEE ET7
BEBBK B TEEERREBEMNE - MO B R
17 & #910,000 7T (ZZ — M4 : 171,000/ 7T)
RITHA SR o

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

Inventories are expected to be recovered within one
year.

The cost of inventories of approximately HK$106,743,000
(2014:HK$83,900,000) are recognised as expenses and
included in cost of sales.

During the year ended 31st December 2015, certain
inventories were obsolete that could not generate
future economic benefits and a write-down of
obsolete inventories of approximately HK$10,000
(2014: HK$171,000) was recognised in administrative
expenses.
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NEEFE

STOCK OF PROPERTIES

FEHEZBRTME

held for sales

MEFEMRNRFILRETBEOFE -

RZTE—NF+—A=Z+—8B AEEFTLE%E
BOARNZERAENLENERFE  RELEE
METHRAMMBAQARZITEALER S
ARERERBRERG L2t - RZF—MEF
TZA=+—B HERRZTK KR_T—AF
ZAZ+RAB  ANARFLEIERE R IERTE
HERG - BERERSGZHBIENARRAZA

o

BHEABE—FRERI 2 HELEZERESY
¥BEmEHX A567,973,00008 0 (- T — M &F -
566,363,000/ 7T ) °

Properties under development

—E-—AEF 04
2015 2014

Fi T FiET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
567,973 566,363

The stock of properties is located in Macau and held
under medium-term lease.

On 21st November 2014, the Group entered into a
legally binding letter of intent to dispose the stock of
properties, the disposal constituted a very substantial
disposal transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules which requires shareholders’ approval in general
meeting. At 31st December 2014, the disposal has not
yet been completed. On 25th March 2015, the Company
has entered into a deed of termination to terminate the
disposal transaction. Particular of the transaction is set
out in the Company’s announcement.

Properties under development held for sales with the
carrying amounts of approximately HK$567,973,000
(2014: HK$566,363,000) are expected to be completed
after more than one year.
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26. FILM RIGHTS

AR
w—A—HR
NE
2 53

Rt+-—B=+—H
R #MERRESE
»—A—H
RNEEZH

2 HA
EERZBEER

R+ZA=+—A~
IREME
R+=ZA=+—H
EYREZRENR
SREARANE  BF
BEBCROEEEN -
BE=tF -

RZZ—AF+ZA=+—H EFELEHB
EERBEMEMTHETGOARAREITZIMA
B EETREZReEEEN 2T HES5E
I % 7F B & Wi 4 R 1B 492,405,000 7L (Z 2 — 1Y

£ 2,939,000 7T) °

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

FEEEF AL

W%Z%%%$@

Cost
At 1st January
Additions
Expired

At 31st December

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses
At 1st January
Charge for the year
Expired
Impairment loss recognised

At 31st December

Carrying amount

At 31st December

—E-hF 04
2015 2014
Fi T FiET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
276,138 276,138

600 -
(10,355) -
266,383 276,138
261,547 258,271

241 337
(10,355) -
2,405 2,939
253,838 261,547
12,545 14,591

Impairment testing of film rights

For the purpose of impairment testing, film rights have
been allocated to the CGU of film related business

operations. Amortisation of film rights will not exceed

twenty years.

At 31st December 2015, the directors assessed the
recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights with
reference to the valuation performed by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent qualified

professional valuers, and determined that film rights
was impaired by approximately HK$2,405,000 (2014:

HK$2,939,000).
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HE+=A=+—B1-%E For the year ended 31st December 2015
= =2 Hﬁ*g (/“5 26. FILM RIGHTS (Continued)
ﬁg’mﬂEZ‘ﬁﬁ,ﬁjiﬁ(f‘%) Impairment testing of film rights (Continued)
BEYMECReEESBN 2T B & EHIRE® The recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights has
BEEAELIET  ZTELERAKLEREEIE been determined based on value in use calculation
ZHEMHEREEARE L ESRTEN  UEE which uses cash flow projections based on financial
F2291% (ZZE—UF : §F18.44% ) 2 B X budgets approved by management covering a five-year
HFE CRFUEZHERRMESEENEHAEE period and discount rate of 22.91% per annum (2014:
REE ZERRVEBEEBELXTHRY 18.44% per annum) and cash flows beyond the five-
BEX - FREBAMEEZEFERRARERA year period are extrapolated using zero growth rate
SR RREEESERALER R B for both years. This growth rate does not exceed the
RERIBAER  ZEAAKERILCRRERERE average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
MISERE - Key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, growth rate
and discount rate, such estimation is based on past
experience and management’s expectations of the
market development.
FRNERZBEEEELAAEBE  EFHBEE The impairment loss recognised during the year
R B c AR SELBEMNDERE solely relates to the Group’s film related business
H ATy [0 4 %8 #912,545,00058 T (Z & — @¢ operations. As the CGU has been reduced to its
14,591,000/ 7t) - et & 7 W [0 & 28 AT K A recoverable amount of approximately HK$12,545,000
R a% 2 A A& B 15 3| Bt — £ R ERE - (2014: HK$14,591,000), any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of the recoverable
amount would result in further impairment losses.
Q'ﬂz IZFI %% 27. FILMS IN PROGRESS
—E-—RE — T4
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
Hn—A—H At 1st January 79,390 2,140
mE Additions 301,216 60,953
FHIREGE OHWE (ZHiF42) Acquisition through business
combination (see note 42) - 18,437
BB 2 H M g R IE Transfer to other receivables - (2,100)
B R ZBEEE Less: Impairment loss recognised - (40)
R+-—A=+—H At 31st December 380,606 79,390

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th 2 % S A

Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—RE+-A=1—HAIL%E For the year ended 31st December 2015
27. ;i;z'ﬂzl:l:l EE (/) 27. FILMS IN PROGRESS (Continued)
%{’EEPE%LAEX¢,}@EEE&%W@U§E?T§(ZZDE)%%° The films in progress were measured at cost less
identified impairment losses, if any.
BEIERRMEINZAEBSHEBER A& In accordance with note 3(r) to the financial statements
ERSRERAREBYREEFERY 2 EMLE®R of the Groups’ accounting policy, the Group performed
SREEWE S REMETRENHR - impairment tests at the end of each reporting period by
comparing the attributable carrying amounts of the films
in progress with the recoverable amounts.

NEFRE Eﬁ’lﬁ AEETHRISTEY In light of the stage of film production, the Group
%1@2 HE-BHE-T—WEF+ZA=+—HL regularly reviewed the progress of film production of
FER- %E@?ﬁ?hﬁf‘ﬁ%%{%ﬁkT\ﬁj\ =l each film. During the year ended 31st December 2014,
AMRENTHER ESATEEETERT the directors decided to suspense the production of
FEERER 2 B HEME - WIEHRREE A certain films in different stage of production due to the
= M T R0R B 440,000/ 7T © prevail market circumstances on the relevant topics

or unsatisfactory feasibility study, and determined that
amount of approximately HK$40,000 was impaired and

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

28. %%j&ﬁ 28. INVESTMENT IN FILM

—2-RF — e
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

BEERATEZRE - Investment measured at amortised cost:
—E¥ — Film 11,325 -
Pl BRRREFZEELRE  HEAEMRIE The amount represents investment in production of film

NAHFRME -

EYREBRMAR —FARE -

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

which is co-financing with other production companies.

Investment in film is expected to be recovered within
one year.
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29. EZ AR

RAFE AEEZBEZHERKEHRTIER : (VB

ERBYRS  (VEEHRE i)
(V)R b ITEE E 3T o

EXMHEXS

29.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trade receivables arose from (i) hotel and
gaming service, (ii) gaming promotion, (iii) film related
business and (iv) Nam Pei Hong operations for the
year.

—E—-RE —E—F
2015 2014
FHET FAT

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

XA THEEZE SRR
—BERIER R
—BEHEE

—EXHBER
—HILTTREER

o REREE

Trade receivables from:

— Hotel and gaming service 112,410 110,960
— Gaming promotion 360 368
— Film related business 1,433 2,784
— Nam Pei Hong operations 5,529 3,089

119,732 117,201
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (305) (1,565)

119,427 115,636

ATRREZERAH (RS haEmR A HES)
22 B F YRR RRERE 2 R DT

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the invoice date, which
approximates the respective revenue recognition dates
and net of allowance for doubtful debts:

0%30H

31£60H
61290H
B0 H

190

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
Over 90 days

—E-8F —ZE -4
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’' 000
116,048 112,716
1,245 889

759 92

1,375 1,939
119,427 115,636
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29. BREWEES (£ 29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
BIEFE 7 TFHBREHRAI0EIOETE - The average credit period granted to customers ranges

from 30 to 90 days.

RZE-—RE+-_A=+—0 ZEHEKEZS At 31st December 2015, trade receivables with the
EE#9111,553,000/8 70 (== —PU4F : 109,955,000 amounts of approximately HK$111,553,000 (2014:
BIL) THAEB ZMEZ (ZE—NF  WE) & HK$109,955,000) is due from the Group’s two (2014:
REPHR o two) largest customers.

FRARRBHEZ2EEFOT : The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

during the year is as follows:

—E-1fF —ET-NEF

2015 2014

FERT FAT

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

Hn—HA—H At 1st January 1,565 1,611
R 71 B] Ui [B] i i 88 2 < 58 Amount written off as uncollectible (1,225) -
HNEETE 5, 55 I Foreign exchange translation gain (35) (46)
R+ZA=+—8 At 31st December 305 1,565
X EZESEBERBIERNREHRD B Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts
B (R TXEREDWN)  EAREEW E L (see below for aging analysis) which are past due at the
ERARERE  DENEEELERTESEREH end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
MZELBEMNER ATWRELE  RNEBWERZE recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because
EARF A EERm - there has not been a significant change in credit quality

and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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29.

30.
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ESRWERRN (& 29.

NTREBHERRELE D ERERZRED
1

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired:

—E-—RF —E 4
2015 2014
FET FAET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

HBiE90R Over 90 days

EBEE SRR R TREER A RE S
EHRUERz BEEEATSREABEEH
EMZ EARD -

igﬁz‘iﬁfiﬁuﬁliiiﬁuﬁﬂﬂik 30.

1,375 1,939

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality
of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially
granted up to the end of the reporting period.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

—E-&F —ZE—q4F

2015 2014

TE T T T

HK$’000 HK$' 000

[EENEF:ER Deposits paid 16,560 15,660
RBEENZES Deposit paid for investment - 600,000
TR RIE Prepayment 17,016 21,046
Hth pE Uk R IE Other receivables 33,492 25,327
67,068 662,033

RZZE—NFE+=-A=+—8 BRESH2E
#600,000,0008 THEAEERE -BHEHE
E tp 3 W B Protective Capital Group Limited%®
BRECTKREFEDMIN2REES -

WRZE-—RERAZ+ZH AEEFTY—EBER
EZBARIEWEEE ([KRIEFE]) - RIREM
TR ERKEIEFERREREE - KIEFIE
HBEENARTARA-_E-—RAERA-T-H

ZRE

At 31st December 2014, deposit paid for investment
with amount of HK$600,000,000 represented cash
deposit paid by the Group in respect of acquisition of
the entire equity interest of Protective Capital Group
Limited pursuant to a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (the “Acquisition”).

On 22nd May 2015, the Group entered into a deed
of termination to terminate the Acquisition (the
“Termination”). Deposit paid for investment had been
refunded to the Group upon Termination. Details of the
Termination are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated on 22nd May 2015.
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30. B”iﬁ N fﬁ{q?xlﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁu&%i 30. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER
15 (&) RECEIVABLES (Continued)
BE-_Z-ME+-_A=1+—BLtEERN"H During the year ended 31st December 2014, the
REEEZEHEEERATTRE - HEE Group’s deposits, prepayment and other receivables
e BEAREBREMERKIEERELD are impaired with amounts of approximately
1,656,000/ 7T ° HK$1,656,000 due to change in credit quality and the

directors considered irrecoverable.
%1¢E§}ﬁﬁ 31. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS
=E-1f% —TmF
2015 2014
FET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
EWmES Listed securities:
—-REBLMZEZES — Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
RNFEE at fair value 305,812 36,332

RREHER BREBZINRFEEINREZERE
EYLRAFEENER EMBEHF2AFEEEDZ
EfRoMBRTEMmMERE -

R EZEVHRBRRAY  AEEREBLTZ
B A2 AN FEEL A313,937,0008 7T °

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

At the end of the reporting period, all financial assets
at FVTPL are stated at fair value. Fair values of listed
securities are determined with reference to quoted
market closing prices.

The fair value of the Group’s equity securities listed in

Hong Kong at the date of approval of these financial
statements were approximately HK$313,937,000.
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Eq&ﬁ;—-ﬁk 32. LOAN RECEIVABLES
—E-hF 04
2015 2014
FHERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
EUWTEBEER Fixed-rate loan receivables 1,225,000 600,000
BRERTDZFHNEIEE12E(ZT—MF : F Loan receivables are interest bearing at rates ranging
MZE10E) 5+ 8 WAER HRIREA HIEH24(E from 3% to 12% per annum (2014: 10% per annum)
FEHER EBRETIBRESEENERKEKEE Y and repayable on the date falling 24 months from the

i3k

At %ﬁ \*Eﬁ//\hébéé °

JEUE & %8 5550,000,000/8 7T (ZZF — P 4F ¢
600,000,000 70) U S EFRAZE—BEZER A
REZZ BAERERT -

W, (FEAY) FERER

BELERE

U, (B JFiERiEsn RER
2B RANBREEE -

33.

EFEREER

ReRkBITER

RITERIZDFBF R E  UERRAHETR
EHCBERERT RMTHERZERHR £
HEZ@AATE BIFEENSRSFTEME
TEREEZERERFRAN TEFE0.03EE
3.00E (ZZ—M%F : £H*0.39F F2.6F) KR
FB o

34.

194

33.

34.

first drawdown date. Loan receivables contain a clause
of repayable on demand and thus classified as current
assets.

Loan receivables with amounts of HK$550,000,000
(2014: HK$600,000,000) are secured by the personal
guarantees of the sole beneficial owner and director of
respective borrowers.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS/JOINT
VENTURES

The amounts due from/(to) non-controlling interests/joint
ventures are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and
placed with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. Short-term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one week and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term
time deposit rates ranged from 0.083% to 3.00% per

annum (2014: 0.39% to 2.60% per annum).
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EE%&@E .f-_r o (/“ ) 34. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(Continued)
AR enRERMs e RBETEHBEETF For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
BERe ROBSREHETHER -RZZT—A flows, cash and bank balances include cash on hand
FTZA=+—BERZZE—ME+-A=+—H and cash at banks and short-term time deposits. Cash
EEEReREREVWRZCRE RIRTEA M and bank balances at 31st December 2015 and 31st

BEEE YERNT December 2014 as shown in the consolidated statement
of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items as
follows:

—E—8fF —E—mF

2015 2014

FHET FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FHEBELRRITRS Cash on hand and cash at banks 160,197 132,718
FEETE SR Short-term time deposits 891,495 191,221
1,051,692 323,939

RZE-—RAF+ZA=+—H £AEBZRH
SRIBITHESBP Z 0 RFIE BERAR
# 5 B 5T B 4 A1,907,0008 T (=T — 0 4 -
1,787,000/ 75) * 27,122,000/ 7T (=& — P 4F :
35,273,0005 7T) ~ 520,000 7T (= Z — PO 4F :
712,0007% 7T) 187,108,000/ 7T (=& — M0 4 :
17,112,000 7T) °

ARBEHDELFTEALBZEY  AEHS
BZESRTEBNETHIINEEHIRE - A%
BABOUAARBINEZRE RRITEHRLUNE
BRORPY - ENRINEES o

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

At 31st December 2015, the Group’s cash and bank
balances denominated in US$, MOP, EUR and RMB are
approximately HK$1,907,000 (2014: HK$1,787,000),
HK$27,122,000 (2014: HK$35,273,000), HK$520,000
(2014: HK$712,000) and HK$87,108,000 (2014:
HK$17,112,000) respectively.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the foreign exchange control promulgated imposed
by the PRC government. Majority of the Group’s cash
and bank balances denominated in RMB are located
in Hong Kong and Macau which is not subject to the
foreign exchange control.
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SHARE CAPITAL
ROHE

Number of shares

35.

196

EN

35.

BREE0.O1EBTZ
EER

EERAE

®—HA—H
Bin & Bt (A1 iEb()

BARBIR (2 A1 izb(i)

W15 5 ¥ (ZHTaEbin)

R+=—A=+—H

ERTRARKRE:
m—A—H
BRERD (ZHita)

Bt & bt (ZH7aEb()

BARBIR (2 A1 izb(i)

RAREERET
#t (2 Hatc)

BRUBKRES
(ZHzd)

RARBERET
B (ZHidte)

R+=-—A=+—H

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

Authorised:

At 1st January
Share consolidation
(see note b(i))

Capital reduction
(see note b(ii)
Share sub-division
(see note b(iii))

At 31st December

Issued and fully paid:

At 1st January

Placement of shares
(see note a)

Share consolidation
(see note b(i)

Capital reduction
(see note b(ii)

Issue of new shares upon
open offer (see note c)

Conversion of convertible bonds
(see note d)

Issue of new shares by
subscription (see note e)

At 31st December

g

Amount

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

—E-mE —E-1F% —E-mE

2014 2015 2014

T TER FHT

'000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000

50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
(48,000,000) - - -
- - (480,000) -
48,000,000 - 480,000 -
50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
15,939,688 6,567,309 159,397 65,673
2,887,900 3,200,000 28,879 32,000
(18,074,484) - - _
- - (180,745) -

- 2,626,924 - 26,269

- 2,045,455 - 20,455

- 1,500,000 - 15,000

753,104 15,939,688 7,531 159,397
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

RZE—REXNANLB  ARAEK
FREMoA2B T 2 ER A R E
774 #£2,887,900,000/% & ik @ A&
QOB L ZHMRMD - FTBERIBFEL
336,270,000 T AR EFRIER,/
HAEB-—REEES -

R-ZZE—WNFEFNA-+=H"  AQ7a
BRI 0.125% 7T 2 (B & A 18 7 3%
& % BE % & % 174 $£3,200,000,0000%
FREEOIBITZHBN - FIER
18 7% %8 #9395,470,000/ T B R 4
WEASERMEEEUHEREER -

—AETAZFTZARITZARRARKRRE

BRARE L RERB—HFIRERAIE
IWTARRREAZEE ([EXEMA])

(i)

(iii)

et 8-+ HAE8KREE0NE
TZBRERRITRABRTRHDAMNA
—BEREE.SB T ZAME, ([4
B D)

EARHE  BREHALAMRER (B
BEETA RN FEH248T) -
BREBTAMERN cEER0.25E
TUHIR Z=0.018 7T+ F A B HIR i
EZEREBRARNRZEHER R

Binad: 8- REREME0.5BTZ
EEBRBETEHROAFA-+TE
P & R E{EC.0OVE T Z MR D »

EAEMER-FT-AE+-ARBER
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Notes:

(a)

(i)

(if)

On 9th June 2015, the Company allotted and
issued an aggregate 2,887,900,000 new shares
of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.12 per
share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$336,270,000 were intended to be used for
film production and/or general working capital
purpose.

On 23rd April 2014, the Company allotted and
issued an aggregate 3,200,000,000 new shares
of HK$0.01 each to independent investors
at a price of HK$0.125 per share. The net
proceeds of approximately HK$395,470,000
were intended to be used for the proposed
acquisition of a VIP gaming promotion
operations in Macau.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on
23rd October 2015, a special resolution was passed
to approve the following changes to the capital of the
Company (the “Capital Reorganisation”):

(M

(i)

(iii)

Share consolidation: every twenty-five existing
issued and unissued shares of par value
of HK$0.01 each be consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.25 each of the
Company (the “Consolidated Share”);

Capital reduction: (1) the par value of each of
the issued Consolidated Shares be reduced
from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 by the cancellation
of the paid-up capital of the Company to
the extent of HK$0.24 on each of the issued
Consolidated Shares and the credit arising
from the reduction of issued share capital of
the Company be credited to the contributed
surplus of the Company; and

Share sub-division: the authorised but unissued
Consolidated Shares of par value of HK$0.25
each be sub-divided into twenty-five (25) new
shares of par value of HK$ 0.01 each.

The Capital Reorganisation was effected on 9th
November 2015.
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35. BRA& (&

Mt - (%)

198

(c)

RZZE—NE—A-+=0 AQARERZ
ERMOIBETZRBEUNLAREE AR
%% K 31T AR F)2,626,923,6580% & I E E0.01
BLZEERD  BEEAR-_T—=F+=A
S+ HEREARBERNELEMREE
Be1n o P18 3RIEF 5 49324,470,00078 TLHR R &
BRELERBREER SRPIMERE -
RZZE—NFEMANA  RRAREMHENE
FIB 2 B o A5 ;8% 8 & $1 £9200,000,000
BTEARBEARA-_Z—NENANA 2
BEX i - ek 5K49124,470,0005% 7T % A R 4%
EREY EEEBERR AR RZ R

BEED -

RZE-—WNEF=ZA=+—H RXENBEER
BRAF (EMHS ) S ARERREGR. 1
7S T i K & %A A2 225,000,0007% 7T 2 AT AR &
%85+ 2,045,454, 545[% I 7 18 Bir 3% R 34T o

RZZ-—MFE+—A+H0E  AAREERR
BR0.098 T 2 RIBER — BN REARL
% J» #171,500,000,000% & B E{E0.01/8 7T 2
ARERADT o B 15 FRH % £1134,300,0007
TRARRERRMEY, BEBREEL R
—Z-ME+ZAT=8 RARAISHBEHN
BHREZAEREZRIERAAFZ-REE
&g

35.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

On 22nd January 2014, the Company allotted and
issued 2,626,923,658 offer shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$0.125 per
offer share on the basis of two offer shares for every
five existing shares held on 31st December 2013 by
way of open offer. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$324,470,000 were intended to be used for
property investment in Hong Kong and/or Macau when
suitable opportunity arises. On 4th April 2014, the
Company announced the change in use of proceeds.
The net proceeds were allocated by approximately
HK$200,000,000 to be used for financing a loan
agreement dated 4th April 2014 and the remaining
balance of approximately HK$124,470,000 would be
used for investment in gaming/gaming-related business

and/or general working capital of the Company.

On 31st March 2014, 2,045,454, 545 shares were
allotted and issued upon the conversion of convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$225,000,000 at
the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.11 per share by

Eternity Finance Group Limited (“Eternity Finance”).

On 14th November 2014, the Company allotted and
issued 1,500,000,000 new shares of the Company
of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$0.09
per subscription share to a share subscriber. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$134,300,000
were intended to be used for investment in gaming/
gaming-related business in Macau. On 12th December
2014, the Company announced the change in use
of proceeds to film production and general working

capital of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED th 2 % Bk 24

Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZE—HRF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2015

36. ﬁE ,?T 'ﬁ%ﬁ 36. BANK BORROWINGS
—E—EHfF —E-MEF
2015 2014
FHERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
RITIEE - Bank borrowings:
— /& - Secured 910,000 300,000
— fE A - Unsecured 14,928 15,819
924,928 315,819
—E—EHfF —E-MEF
2015 2014
FHERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
JEEERME Carrying amounts repayable:
—FN Within one year 134,928 314,468
Wil —F  ETBAMFE More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 120,000 -
HAMT  BETEBBRT More than two years,
but not more than five years 360,000 -
iR F Over five years 310,000 r
924,928 314,468
WITEEZRAAE T R Carrying amounts of bank borrowings
BEREMRE-—FANER that are not repayable within
BEREREREERKK one year from the end of the
(REBAaBEETR) reporting period but contain a
repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) - 1,351
924,928 315,819
BRBBEE TR ZHNIE Less: Amount shown under current
liabilities (134,928) (815,819)
EMBBEE TR ZNIE Amount shown under non-current
liabilities 790,000 -
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HE=2-
36.

200

RITEE ()

RZZE—AF+ZA=+—B XEEZHIEF
RITEE ((EHER ) £ £910,000,0007 7T
(ZE—WNF+=ZA=+—8 &)  HUKEHE
iR T 18 9 Bl #1218,946,0007% 7T [.359,424,000/8
TZEBFRBEE T iR - ARRPIBESEE
RS ERREERAR ([KARER) 2 THEE
AAEER - EEERINERR R REREERM
BER THERRFNEISE (BEREEN X
5.25[E R B E1.75/E) 5 B - WAR A T EE28
18 2= /€ 4% £ 830,000,000 T D HiE E R & 18 —
HAPA TE B B FR B H B (238 #2%870,000,0007% T ©

RZZE—AF+ZA=+—H AEEAFEHEF
#OE 5 EFK414,9280008 ¢ (Z T — M4 -
14,468,000/ 7T) - ME I 0 B 5 B R HNPH
Holdings Limited— % ﬁfﬁﬁﬂ/\ﬁgﬁ CR—1E
REBRITAERS (FERTAEFLS]) MF
Ao B /,jﬁ%é/\E% o

RZZ—MF+=ZA=+—H AEEAZEHA
RITEE ([T HE ) 8% A300,000,0007%
JC o Bl AR & B Bk E B 49229,997,0007%8 7T &
380,709,000/ T 2 F R E + i m (EHE T
THERIRE R RI5E (F5RE B X525
EREEITE)HE - EHERIERBE=ZT
—HF+-_A=Z+—BUEFERNBUEE -

36.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31st December 2015, the Group had secured bank
borrowing (“Term Loan |”) with remaining balance
of HK$910,000,000 (31st December 2014: nil) which
is secured by the Group’s buildings and interests in
leasehold land with carry amounts of approximately
HK$218,946,000 and HK$359,424,000 respectively,
quota capital of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Limited
and Classic Management & Services Company Limited
(“Classic Management”). The Term Loan | is also
guaranteed by the Company and Classic Management.
The Term Loan | is interest bearing at 3.5% per annum
(Hong Kong Prime Rate 5.25% less margin 1.75%)
and repayable by remaining of 28 equal consecutive
quarterly instalments of HK$30,000,000 per quarter and
a final repayment of HK$70,000,000 at the maturity date
of the Term Loan |.

At 31st December 2015,
import trade loans of approximately HK$14,928,000
(2014: HK$14,468,000).
loans are personally guaranteed by an ex-shareholder
of NPH Holdings Limited,
annum over one month Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered

the Group had unsecured

The unsecured import trade

interest bearing at 2% per

Rate (“HIBOR”) and repayable on demand.

At 31st December 2014, the Group had secured bank
borrowing (“Term Loan II") with remaining balance of
HK$300,000,000 which was secured by the Group’s
buildings and interests in leasehold land with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$229,997,000 and
HK$380,709,000 respectively. The Term Loan Il was
interest bearing at 3.5% per annum (Hong Kong Prime
Rate 5.25% less margin 1.75%). The Term Loan Il was
fully settled during the year ended 31st December
2015.
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RITEE (&)
R-ZZE-—NE+-A=+—8B AEEHFEKHE
RITIEE 41,351,000 - BABEDRESES
FRIATEE ([ EA%RIITHE ) BUR 5 R B 5z
RETEIF L - BIEHIRITHEEBO%H BB RRIT
B (& B #E 4R e 100% B AR 2 &) XNPH Holdings
Limited— & AT R R AL RER - EEARITEE R
—EABERITAERSMENK25EF S °
ZEERROTEEEANEBEE-_ZE—RF+ =R
=t HIEFEREHES -

FrBRTBIRITIEEGNEBITEE °
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36.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31st December 2014, the Group had unsecured
bank borrowings of approximately HK$1,351,000 that
granted under the Special Loan Guarantee Scheme of
the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR”).
is 80% guaranteed by the government of HKSAR and

The unsecured bank borrowings

100% personally guaranteed by the Company and an
ex-shareholder of NPH Holdings Limited respectively.
The unsecured bank borrowings is interest bearing
at 2.5% per annum over one month HIBOR. The
unsecured bank borrowings was fully settled during the
year ended 31st December 2015.

All interest-bearing bank borrowings are denominated
in HKS.
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MEHEEHK

AEEREREMERRAELE TEE - RRESF
B FHASMYART FARAREEEZH
BAHEREEZEHNBHMETE N TFEFE5.00
BE752B2E (ZZ—F :5.00BE7.52E) -
FIERENATHESE MYETLRABEM
bl

37.

37.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE
LEASES

The Group leased certain of its equipments under
finance leases. The average lease term is 5 years for
both years. Interest rates underlying all obligations
under finance leases are fixed at respective contract
dates ranging from 5.00% to 7.52% (2014: 5.00% to
7.52%) per annum. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

BiEfHS BREHEZHE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments

“E-HE —E-mE —E-FF —EmE
2015 2014 2015 2014
TR TR TER THT

HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000

RREREEN 2 HE Amounts payable under
finance leases:
—FR Within one year
FZEREN In the second to fifth year
B RREBER Less: Future finance charges
MERBZRE Present value of lease obligations

B AR 2B ANEE
FE(RBEER

Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months

THR) (shown under current
liabilities)
W12ERBREE 2B Amount due for settlement after
(FERBEABETHAT) 12 months (shown under

non-current liabilities)

202

270 282 235 247
673 943 584 819
943 1,225 819 1,066
(124) (159) - -
819 1,066 819 1,066

(235) (247)

584 819
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37. MEMERK (& 37.

ARBZREBERBULEAREEY
819,000/ 7T (=% — U4 : 1,066,000/ 7T) 2 H
EEEFER -

rAREHRERBAETIIE

38. WHRMES 38.

RZTE——F+tAtH AARETAEHE
350,000,000/ 7T 2 M Al IR (F 5 T ok B
BEEBRATZEEWNBRAKEN - EF
REFREE -BHFERFBEAITRZE—RF L
A 75 B EIH8 B Al E W B IR ) S E R E T R0.44
BLT(TREBERTURAR) BEERARRRE
PR -EHREEEAEZFRONBLT (IRFE
ZRTAE-—THE) - WEFRBEER A
RZE-—RNFLtALHEASER -

%%@]‘%M B (AaERERDBM) - EEEH
BTNABREESREIZY - aEBH2
K] HERIF £8.837F ©

‘N ‘m}|

RZZE—WF=A=+—08  XEFBEFH0.11
VB TT 2 48 S B W R (B 4 7K € #8 /225,000,000
T2 BRREFERAERARLERR - BEKR
% ANEEWEEAEMKEMBEZERRTE
AR ES -

FrA AR E B TIIE -
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#F Notes to the Financial Statements
HE+=A=+—HAILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
(Continued)

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are
secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets
with the carrying amounts of approximately HK$819,000
(2014: HK$1,066,000).

All obligations under finance leases are denominated in
HKS.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 7th July 2011, the Company issued unsecured
convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$350,000,000 to Eternity Finance, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Eternity Investment Limited. The bonds
are interest bearing at 8% per annum. The holder of the
bonds may convert the bonds into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time before the maturity date on
6th July 2016 at an initial conversion price of HK$0.44
per share (subject to adjustment, if necessary). The
conversion price was subsequently adjusted to HK$0.11
per share (subject for further adjustment, if necessary).
If the bonds have not been converted, they will be
redeemed on 7th July 2016 at principal amount.

The bonds contain two components, liability and
equity elements. The equity element is presented
in equity heading “convertible bonds reserve”. The
effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 8.837%.

On 31st March 2014, Eternity Finance converted
principal amount of HK$225,000,000 convertible
bonds into ordinary shares of the Company at adjusted
conversion price of HK$0.11 per share. After the
completion of the conversion, the Group did not have
any outstanding convertible bonds due to Eternity
Finance.

All convertible bonds are denominated in HK$.

203



i g2 % Bk 2q CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

BF B #t 7 fi} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT—HE+=-A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

38. E_Hﬁﬂﬁﬁ% (/Z/éﬁ_ 38. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
FAT
HK$’ 000
RZZE—NF—-A—B2Z®#EmIM  Equity component at 1st January 2014 9,240
BRRETER Conversion into ordinary shares (9,240)
R-ZZE-NFE+=-A=+—8" Equity component at 31st December 2014,
R-ZZ-HAF-A—HR at 1st January 2015 and at 31st December 2015
R-Z2-A%+=-A=+—H
ZEEDH -
FAT
HK$’ 000
RZT—NF—A—B2Z&@&ZH Liability component at 1st January 2014 220,869
MEZE (EA10) Interest charged (see note 10) 4,600
BHRATER Conversion into ordinary shares (221,267)
BT R ERFIE Interest paid and payable (4,202)

R-ZZB-NF+=A=+—H8" Liability component at 31st December 2014,

R-ZZE—-HF-A—HRK at 1st January 2015 and 31st December 2015
R-ZE-—HF+ZA=+—H
ZEEHH -
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39. EEBIEERE 39.

NTAREERRZ TR ERRIRGEHRREES

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the major deferred tax balances
recognised by the Group and movements thereon:

WEHBARZ
AFEERE
Fair value
adjustment RRES
on acquisition Convertible @t
of subsidiaries bonds Total
FHT FHT FHT
HK$ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
RZZE—HF—-—A—H At 1st January 2014 82,065 681 82,746
EBEMHEESE (ZMT42) Arising on business combination
(see note 42) 2,393 - 2,393
A BT R B R AR LE TR Derecognised on disposal of
(R Bit43) subsidiaries (see note 43) (1,087) - (1,087)
HERABRES Conversion of convertible bonds - (622) (622)
FFABREWRAE (B F12) Credit to the consolidated income
statement (see note 12) (101) (59) (160)
RZE-—ME+-A=+—H At 31st December 2014 and
MRZZE-—RF—H—H at 1st January 2015 83,270 - 83,270
FFAGREWRAK (ZHF12) Credit to the consolidated income
statement (see note 12) (322) - (322)
R-ZE-HF+=-A=+-—H At 31st December 2015 82,948 - 82,948

ERAEEZHREYE BRUERENEDIR
EBEABEMEERNRERMERREDEM
BENBRBAIEENE (MLIFERBE) - &
EEVARKENELATEEZYEREMIEL
BiE AASEEEREEEREYELMNTMR
FRiGHt -

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

With regard to the Group’s investment properties,
as none of the investment properties is held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale, the Group has not recognised any deferred tax on
change in fair value of the investment properties as the
Group is not subject to any income tax on disposal of
its investment properties.
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39. EEREERE (2

RIS BIR - A BB 49552,063,0008 7T (= F
— VU4 : 493,705,000 70) ] LK 88 A& 5 | 2
REAEEHIBEE - ERREBEFTAEZRT
W mBEREENIELE  MARRZHEARBE
AR HAAEEE o

40. EZEMNERM
WA SR B 5 55 5O B () 1
BT - (i) B RARBE TS R AL TR -

39.

40.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$552,063,000 (2014: HK$493,705,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams and
unrecognised tax losses could be carried forward
indefinitely.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group’s trade payables arose from (i) hotel and
gaming service, (ii) film related business and (iii) Nam
Pei Hong operations for the year.

=E-1f% —TmF
2015 2014
FEx THT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

KEATHZEZESENER:  Trade payables from:

— B JE RER R — Hotel and gaming service 26,400 28,265
—BEHBEEL — Film related business 2,650 3,709
— BT EEB - Nam Pei Hong operations 10,598 7,162

39,648 39,136
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ESENRR(Z 40.

UNTREZERNERFIREZ A ZREDIT

TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables,

based on the invoice date:

0£30H 0 to 30 days

31£60H 31 to 60 days
61290H 61 to 90 days
HBiR90H Over 90 days

HERGE T2 FHRKRMA0ENATE -

BWEmES  EHEEREM 4

—E-—RF —E—E
2015 2014

Fi T FiET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
14,596 13,331
5,616 3,438

99 164

19,337 22,203
39,648 39,136

The average credit period granted by suppliers ranges

from 30 to 90 days.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND

OTHER PAYABLES

—E-—hEF —ET O
2015 2014
FB T FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BUEE S (ZHiE) Deposits received (see note) 201,214 12,516
fEETIEE Accruals 53,204 52,849
TE YRR Receipt in advance 8 8
H b fE S 588 Other payables 22,910 32,155
277,336 97,528

it Note:

BRBZE T EREY LERRXNESKERTAZ
B
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Deposits received mainly represented deposits received from

distributors prior to theatrical release and delivery of master

materials of film.
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HE-T-
42.

208

e A
3 e
BEr—FT—mFE+-_A=+—HIFE

WErEEEZHERA A ([FEHEEZ])

R-ZE-—MNE+ANB REBULEREY
8,673,000 TWEFHEET 2 E KR
B #913,501,000/8 7T © It BE ETEE R A UL EE
FEFUAR -ABREEFHEEYEUERET -

42.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

For the year ended 31st December 2014

Acaquisition of China Star Movie Limited (“CS Movie”)
On 8th October 2014, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest and a shareholder loan of approximately
HK$13,501,000 in CS Movie at a total consideration of
approximately HK$8,673,000. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. CS Movie
is engaged in film production and distribution.

FAT
e ER(E Consideration transferred HK$' 000
BENES Cash paid 8,673

WS AR £ 426,000/ T E B e @ B -
VYERBE-_Z-HNF+-_A=+t—HLFEZ
RAaBARAER/HAX

RKRBEEMAKBZEERMERZEEDT

Acquisition-related costs approximately to HK$26,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in the
consolidated income statement during the year ended
31st December 2014.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

NFEE
Fair value
FAT
HK$’ 000

FriERz BEFHE Net liabilities recognised:
BIEREY Films in progress 18,437
TE - R IE f2 E A B WK IE Prepayment and other receivables 200
Be K174 Cash and bank balances 38
FEEHIE B R H o A R IE Accruals and other payables (10,002)
Hx?fim Shareholder loan (13,501)
iRz BEFHE Net liabilities recognised (4,828)
EBETAEEBRRER Shareholder loan assigned to the Group 13,501
FreEERE Consideration transferred 8,673
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42. %i%AﬁF (& 42. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
Bz —F—MEF—A=1+—HIFE (&) For the year ended 31st December 2014 (Continued)
W 2T (F) Acquisition of CS Movie (Continued)

FAT
WHEEEEEZRe R EE Net cash outflow arising on acquisition HK$' 000
BENES Cash paid (8,673)
Friiig 2 IR & RIRTT A 84 Cash and bank balances acquired 38
WE R FE Net cash outflow (8,635)
HEZZ—HNFTA=1T—HLEFEZREMNA Included in the profit for the year ended 31st December
AARBREEYEL 2 EKEMEE 134,000 2014 is a loss of approximately HK$134,000 attributable
BT - BEZZT—NF+-_A=+—HLFE" to the business incurred by CS Movie. No revenue
THEWSELAETEESEY - was generated from CS Movie for the year ended 31st

December 2014.
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%ﬁ%éﬁ (/Z/ég 42. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
B —F—IF+ - A=+—HIFFE (&) For the year ended 31st December 2014 (Continued)
WeigAce Season Acquisition of Ace Season
RZE—NF+—A=+H AEBEZKAER On 20th November 2014, the Group completed
{890,000,0007% STt BAce Seasonz % #PALH#E K the acquisition of the entire equity interest and a
f% 3B X #992,724,000% 7T+ £ #36,000,0007% shareholder loan of approximately HK$92,724,000 in
TEE-ZT—MFNA+—HHEAce SeasonZ Ace Season at a total consideration of HK$90,000,000
RAEF A - in which HK$36,000,000 was set off against the
consideration for disposal of Ace Season on 11th June
2014.
U EE E B E AWK EE A AR - Ace Season &k H This acquisition has been accounted for using the
MBAGINEHEPEREMBEER  REE acquisition method. Ace Season and its subsidiaries are
M 2EERERTHEBLREZEEFULTPER engaged in the sales of Chinese and other medicines
KRR © pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng and
dried seafood products to wholesaler and retailer as
well as Chinese clinical services.
FHET
FrEEAE Consideration transferred HK$’ 000
H fth FE U FRIR Other receivables 36,000
BEfNES Cash paid 54,000
B Total 90,000

U BB ME R R AR 4963,000/8 T E B s E A EMIBR -
VTEREBE-_E—NF+_A=+—-HLFEZ
BRAERARANEREFAY

Acquisition-related costs approximately to HK$63,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in the
consolidated income statement during the year ended
31st December 2014.
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

B —F—IF+ - A=+—HIFFE (&) For the year ended 31st December 2014 (Continued)

Wek#Ace Season (#)

Acquisition of Ace Season (Continued)

REBEEE s EERMBRZABNAT Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition are as follows:

WEEFIEABREE
Carrying amount A {B{EHE
before Fair value NEEE
acquisition adjustment Fair value
FET TET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’' 000

FriiE 2 BEFME

M BERREBENZI7)

BV EE (AMit22)

E3

B 5 AR

EfNEZEE  BEFER
Hopth & W 3R IR

Re RRITHE

EEJANE T

2l e  EFEE X
H At R 50R

RITEE

FE A FR 4R A4 25 5O

RRE R

EEHIRRE (ZHF39)

AHEMNEERABFE

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment

(see note 17) 5,026 - 5,026
Intangible assets

(see note 22) 6,043 8,461 14,504
Inventories 66,996 - 66,996
Trade receivables 4,006 - 4,006
Deposits paid, prepayment

and other receivables 10,646 - 10,646
Cash and bank balances 17,533 - 17,533
Trade payables (7,393) - (7,393)
Deposits received, accruals and

other payables (3,805) - (3,805)
Bank borrowings (12,178) - (12,178)
Amounts due to non-controlling

interests (294) - (294)
Shareholder loan (92,724) - (92,724)
Deferred tax liabilities

(see note 39) (997) (1,396) (2,393)

Net identifiable assets and
liabilities (7,141) 7,065 (76)
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EBast (&

BE-—F—mEf -—A=1+—HIFZ (%)
Wk Ace Season (#)

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2014 (Continued)

Acquisition of Ace Season (Continued)

FAT

WHEEBEELEZEE Goodwill arising on acquisition HK$’ 000

FrEg R (& Consideration transferred 90,000
- ERmERAEaEEE Add: Fair value of identifiable net liabilities recognised

ZRFEE 76

o IEERER Less: Non-controlling interests (424)

B EBETAEEZBREER Less: Shareholder loan assigned to the Group (92,724)

REBEHPERZHEREEEMN  Bargain purchase gain recognised in a business combination (3,072)

FAT

KEEBEELAZRSRLFE Net cash outflow arising on acquisition HK$’ 000

BENES Cash paid (54,000)

FTUs B IR & R IR1T A 88 Cash and bank balances acquired 17,533

B b F Net cash outflow (36,467)

HE-_Z-—NE+_A=+—HILEEHNBE
Ace SeasonfEE 2 (L 2 #)414,000/8 T ©
KEFZ W BB FBAce SeasonZ #)27,434,000
BT e

M B 2B % MAce SeasonlEEIEN - — 1
F-—A—HEZA AIAFEREEL KB
#)/1,337,091,0007% 7T+ M AN F 2 5% Fl 5 40 B
205,132,000 7T » HE AR E(EHBRR - K&
RAMEBEER-_T—HF—A—HDZK
AEBECERRBzEEREREE  IT#H
ERRRELL 28R -

Included in the profit for the year ended 31st December
2014 is approximately HK$414,000 attributable to the
business incurred by Ace Season. Revenue for the year
includes approximately HK$27,434,000 in respect of
Ace Season.

Had the acquisition of CS Movie and Ace Season
been completed on 1st January 2014, total Group
revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$1,337,091,000, and profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$205,132,000. The pro-forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1st
January 2014, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.
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43. H:'I % Mj‘% NI 43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
BE—T—mFE+—A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2014
HEFEZE T Disposal of CS Movie
RZE—NFMNA+LEE  AEETHABRE On 17th April 2014, the Group completed the disposal
#)4,340,0008 THEFBEEF c 2 HRE K of entire equity interest of CS Movie and a shareholder
PR R E 5479,002,0008 7T - REERH B E loan of approximately HK$9,002,000 at a total
BYZEEFENOT consideration of approximately HK$4,340,000. The net
liabilities of CS Movie, at the date of disposal were as
follows:
FAET
FregE R fE - Consideration transferred: HK$’ 000
B i ERIR & Cash received 4,340
FAET
KEEHEZEERBEZDM © Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: HK$' 000
FlEaEFE Net liabilities disposed of:
B 5 REMER Trade receivables 21
Ze RIEFHIE Deposits and prepayment 6,171
W& RIRITE & Cash and bank balances 36
JEETTHE Accruals (8)
e N Shareholder loan (9,002)
JEAS B A PR RR R B FE Amount due to ultimate holding company (1,880)
FEa®EFaE Net liabilities disposed of (4,662)
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

43.

214

HEKMB AR (&

BE_E—MFFT_A=+—HIFEFE)

HEPEEE (&)

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

For the year ended 31st December 2014 (Continued)

Disposal of CS Movie (Continued)

FAEL
LEMBERATR Disposal of subsidiary HK$’ 000
BIRE Consideration received 4,340
FTHEBEFE Net liabilities disposed of 4,662
BETERZRRER Shareholder loan assigned to the purchaser (9,002)
HEMER A Disposal of subsidiary -

FAET
HEFHEEEZHESRAFE Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HK$’ 000
BE S Cash received 4,340
W THER S RIETTES Less: Cash and bank balances disposed (36)
RERANFE Net cash inflow 4,304

H &Star Hope Investments Limited ([ Star

Hope /)

RZBE—NERNARND REBTKUARED
82,282,000/ st ihi & Star Hope 2 & SF A% 4 & A% 3
B 51#782,000,000/% 7T - 1A & HHj + Star Hope

Hope”)

Disposal of Star Hope Investments Limited (“Star

On 6th June 2014, the Group completed the disposal
of entire equity interest of Star Hope and a shareholder
loan of approximately HK$82,000,000 at a total

ZEEFENAT : consideration of approximately HK$82,282,000. The net
liabilities of Star Hope, at the date of disposal were as
follows:

FET

FrEgE R (E : Consideration transferred: HK$’ 000

2GR & Cash received 82,282
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2014 (Continued)

4 &Star Hope () Disposal of Star Hope (Continued)
FAT
KEEGIE s EERBEZDH © Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: HK$' 000
i Ea@EF%E Net liabilities disposed of:
ME - MR RERE(EWE17) Property, plant and equipment (see note 17) 77,726
e~ TR FRIE K H A e R Deposits, prepayment and other receivables 219
RHIEEERE Held for trading investments 3,426
& RIRTTAE & Cash and bank balances 572
fEEHIE R Accruals (23)
RITEE Bank borrowing (1,912)
R E % Shareholder loan (82,000)
FrHE B EFE Net liabilities disposed of (1,992)
FAT
HE M B AR 2 & T Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HK$’ 000
BHRE Consideration received 82,282
it EaBEFE Net liabilities disposed of 1,992
HETERZREER Shareholder loan assigned to the purchaser (82,000)
FEERRHE A Non-controlling interests (996)
HERBRRZEH Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1,278
FAT
HEFHEEEZHESRAFE Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HK$’ 000
B UE ¢ Cash received 82,282
B TR ER S RIRITER Less: Cash and bank balances disposed (572)
WEMNFE Net cash inflow 81,710
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

43. HEMB AT (&

BE-F—MFEF+ A=+ —HIIFE (&)

4 EAce Season

MNZZE—ENE+—B AEBEZTRUERE
45,000,000/8 70 H & H ¥ Ace SeasonZ % #550%
iS4 K AR BR & 50 4946,362,0008 7T » MHE R -

Ace SeasonZ BEFEWMT :

Disposal of Ace Season

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

For the year ended 31st December 2014 (Continued)

On 11th June 2014, the Group completed the disposal
of entire 50% equity interest in Ace Season, and a
shareholder loan of approximately HK$46,362,000 at a

total consideration of HK$45,000,000. The net assets of
Ace Season, at the date of disposal were as follows:

FAT
FREBERE : Consideration transferred: HK$' 000
EWRE Cash received 9,000
FEUT AR (B Consideration receivable 36,000
FrEg@enE Total consideration transferred 45,000
FAET
KEEHEZEERBEZDM © Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: HK$' 000
i EEE$ME: Net assets disposed of:
M M RERE (A7) Property, plant and equipment (see note 17) 4,287
B (LM 21) Goodwill (see note 21) 3,030
mEE (ERit22) Intangible assets (see note 22) 6,587
3 Inventories 60,011
B 5 e W iR X Trade receivables 3,893
Z& - TERRIE R E b WK Deposits, prepayment and other receivables 11,514
e RIBITHEER Cash and bank balances 26,561
2 5 IR Trade payables (6,729)
FEEHIE B R H fth BT R IE Accruals and other payables (3,477)
RITEE Bank borrowings (11,353)
&R E R Shareholder loan (46,362)
JE A5 JE TR BR M 2 3R Amounts due to non-controlling interests (46,586)
EREBIERE(EHH39) Deferred tax liabilities (see note 39) (1,087)
FHEEEFE Net assets disposed of 289
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2014 (Continued)

i EAce Season (%) Disposal of Ace Season (Continued)

FAT
LEHRBARZEE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HK$’ 000
Bl KRR E Consideration received and receivables 45,000
Tt EEEFE Net assets disposed of (289)
EBETERZIRRER Shareholder loan assigned to the purchaser (46,362)
IR E R Non-controlling interests (94)
R ER B QR R E S EE Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries 79
LEMBARZEBE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (1,666)

FAT
HEFHEEEAZHESRLFE Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HK$’ 000
BE S Cash received 9,000
B TR ER S RIRITER Less: Cash and bank balances disposed (26,561)
WE R FE Net cash outflow (17,561)
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HEFERERETEARS

BE-F—mMFF+-A=+—HIFEZF
#J?,ﬁ,%’Smart Value Developments Limited ([ Smart
Value ) R B 1118 2 712 50% % ##

RZZE—MESARNA AEEE-FTWE
Smart Value }& H [ff & 2 8 2 50%% 4 A & J& 5=
B #77,992,000% 7T - 41X {8 /80,000,000
7 JL © Smart Value®) £ E & & AWell Star
Investments Limited % Big Century LimitedZ &
Ak MEAARHINREMERE -BRIKESE
1B - A& B Smart Value R I E A B 2 B HENE
50%3% 1 Z=100% ° 7~ &8 [ &% 37 IF 58 A% 4 25 42
#9770,0007 7T A R AR A1 HE B A FE G BRIE R 2
#9770,0007%8 7t °

HERE

45.

AFE+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2015

44.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTION WITH NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

For the year ended 31st December 2014

Acquisition of 50% equity interests in Smart Value
Developments Limited (“Smart Value”) and its
subsidiaries

On 6th June 2014, the Group further acquired 50%
equity interest of the issued share capital in Smart
Value and its subsidiaries and a shareholder loan of
approximately HK$77,992,000 at total consideration
of HK$80,000,000. The major assets of Smart Value
are the entire equity interests in Well Star Investments
Limited and Big Century Limited which both companies
are engaged in property investment. As a results of the
acquisition, the Group’s shareholding in Smart Value
and its subsidiaries increased from 50% to 100%.
The Group recognised an increase in non-controlling
interests of approximately HK$770,000 and a decrease
in equity attributable to owners of the Company of

approximately HK$770,000.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

AEBEBEREBEA The Group as lessee

—E-AfF —T-WEF
2015 2014
FET AT
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

HARBLEENST N2 Minimum lease payments paid under

HEEERIA operating leases during the period:
LES Premises 21,975 13,068
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45. HERE (&

FEBEREEAN(E)
RB|EMR - AEBERER TR ER 2 7]
MOgeHONEEEENEZ ARREHRESA

45.

LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

SN non-cancellable operating leases in respect of leased
premises which fall due as follows:

—E-fF —E—MEF

2015 2014

THET FET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

—F R Within one year 20,517 18,401

FE_EZFERF (BREEEWT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 8,922 18,344

29,439 36,745

REBORBERAEEVERNZEE - HOT
ER—ERF (ZF-NOF: —EMNF) BEERD -
AEEYERHMERSBEEEME &% -

o ETYENKEHERSRBERBEER
FEABER GG REEES RIRZEWENE
ERATENIATEEMETRSENE - ARNE
FARHEEZENENRARBEER LRUER
FERxAEE  REBERKEBSAE-

FEBEEDBEHBA

FRATHRRZMERS KA B180,0008 L (ZF
— VU4 : 173,000 7T) - REEZ R EMENF
EHERS RFELEEE BHREELMR
U 0.16% (ZZF —UF : 2.79%) - AEEHE
AR ZMERRRRNF (ZE—NF : —F)9F
HEAFEHEE -

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

Operating lease payments represented rentals payable
by the Group for its premises. Leases are mainly
negotiated for term ranging from 1 to 5 years (2014:
1 to 4 years). The Group does not have an option to
purchase the leased premises at the expiry of the lease
period.

In addition, the operating lease rentals for certain
premises are based on the higher of a fixed rental
and a contingent rent depending on the sales in these
premises pursuant to the terms and conditions as
set out in the respective rental agreements. As the
future sales in these premises could not be reliably
determined, the relevant contingent rent has not been
included above and only the minimum lease payments
have been included in the above commitments.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$180,000 (2014: HK$173,000). All of the Group’s
investment properties are held for rental purposes.
They are expected to generate rental yields of 0.16%
(2014: 2.79%) on an ongoing basis. The Group’s rented
property has committed tenants for the next 2 years
(2014: 1 year).
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45. *ﬂgﬁ}% (/ég 45. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)
AEBERERA(E) The Group as lessor (Continued)
RREAR AEBDHBERITLN  ARKEM At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
ESREIOT - contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:
=E-1f% —TmF
2015 2014
FTHExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—FR Within one year 180 142
FEERAF (REEEMSE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 142 -
322 142
46. ?ﬁ jﬁ ﬁE 46. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

BENIIGEEZEECIFER  RAKEZR
TTEEER (M BEHRRMES)

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been
pledged to secure bank borrowings (see note 36 to the
financial statement) of the Group:

—E-8fF —E—UF

2015 2014

FERT FiET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

B Buildings 218,946 229,997
AELiER Interests in leasehold land 359,424 380,709
578,370 610,706

poh  REBMEREER (R KRR In addition, the Group’s obligations under finance

AT IUHBEAHEEEERANEER  Z
SEEZERMEEARS19,0008 T (ZF—HF :
1,066,000/ 7T.) °

220

leases (see note 37 to the financial statements) are
secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets,
which have carrying amounts of HK$819,000 (2014:
HK$1,066,000).
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47. FE¥E
AEBMPREMRZ RBITEENT ¢

47.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following outstanding commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

—E-HF —ZT—F
2015 2014
FTHERT THET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

ERERCEHN  BEEREE: Authorised and contracted, but not
provided for:

—WEEYI R MR REE — Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 5,526 5,000
—URRFZYMETEZ - Development expenditure for stock
S of properties located in Macau 29,737 28,615
— B BIERERY — Film rights, films in progress and
rMEFEE film deposits 56,542 -
— W HEREHE2EERE - Renovation expenses for property,
plant and equipment 572 4,201
92,377 37,816

48. TEFRERXH
AEBERETATEERGARSRERDRR
ZEBHARLRARAEED

(@) RZZE—WF=ZA=+-—8 FBAXEFHK
B AEERESROIBLEBERSHE
#$225,000,0007 7T 2 7] # % (& % i e 8
N %172,045,454 54588 B 17 »

(b) RZE—MFAA+T—B AEENUHER
E45,000,0007% 7 il & H 7 Ace Season
Z 2 #B50% % % - H 736,000,000/ 7T I
RABEERS -

(c) RIZE—ME+—AZ+H KEHENUR
X {890,000,000% 7t # #EAce Seasonz
23Rk 4E - E#36,000,0007% 7T J5 4K §H(b)
BRTRERI RN AEE ZKE -
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48.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following major non-cash
investing and financing activities which are not reflected
in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

(a) On 31st March 2014, 2,045,454,545 shares
were allotted and issued upon the conversion
of convertible bonds in the principal amount
of HK$225,000,000 at the adjusted conversion
price of HK$0.11 per share by Eternity Finance.

(b) On 11th June 2014, the Group disposed of
entire 50% equity interest in Ace Season at a
total consideration of HK$45,000,000 in which
HK$36,000,000 had not been received in cash.

(c) On 20th November 2014, the Group acquired
the entire equity interests of Ace Season at a
total consideration of HK$90,000,000 in which
HK$36,000,000 was set off against the previous
consideration due to the Group as set out in (b).
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48.

49.

222

TEFRREXRH (&

(d REE-Z-—NF+-_A=+—HLESFE
N AEEREREHEREKELLEE
#91,154,0008 7L 2 ¥ ~ B2 R 1E -

IRt 2X5

BER-_T—ZFAAZ+N\BRITZAXARK
RENAG BB —HRER  ARARMAT
—EF B ([FBkEsE ) -

HRALNE SR BRERT 8 ([EERERTE])
ERZE—ZFRAZT A AER HitEEE
MR IR R E M AR IR B AR L - MEPRB R Lt
EmATRERERESEIEEL M HRITEZER
RERIMAAR - WA R IREBRET B 2GR T
PATTE ©

MBS 2 T2 HFERET

(i) AEEESARBRARNLHKESERS
BEFHBRE UERREAAKEL
REEFERAER 2 AE IR E E R
(BB EE D EL 2 BRI RERZ
REN R -

48.

49.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(d) During the year ended 31st December 2014, the
Group acquired property, plant and equipment
with the amount of approximately HK$1,154,000
under obligations under finance leases.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 28th June 2012, a new
share option scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company.

The previous share option scheme of the Company (the
“Old Option Scheme”) was expired on 26th May 2012,
no further options can be granted under the Old Option
Scheme thereafter. However, all outstanding share
option granted under the Old Option Scheme prior
to the said expiry shall remain valid and exercisable
in accordance with the provisions of the Old Option
Scheme.

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(1) The purpose is to enable the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group or any
invested entity in which the Group held an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”).
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49. URGB XN 2R 5 (&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RERZEERREASELEAREERE
B2RIFRER (BRARRNEN
MTJ%‘T‘JZEH%&&%WI g2 EMES
BRATHFATRERBLES) A
SEMBTEME %Z{Eﬂhﬁ/\ SN
SEFIEMRRERBZENEBLEE
m%%ﬁt ERERE - RESAE - ER
BN HER L{Fﬁﬁiﬁﬁé/\ =
B wEANBRBREFNDIFEA) LD H
BoEXIFEF(BREEMSERP)HES
EERBBRR/C A E REE AR
HEEERBELERMZEMAL -

REFERE B ARER L 2 BRIEER
HRIE A1 =) E By (T ) 2 At 8 AR BB AT 81 7T BE
Rz BRERMS R ZBNEE LRTE
BRADBNMEREREFIARZ
BEITIRA210% + i IR A B AR R AR AR
RAE LE#H - AITEREHEREN S
RAEMEMERER S (REEBRES
FeREMEARTEZBREREITZ
Bty EREB NSBBENHEEHTRNZ
30% °

BRIEBE R FALE - R+ =8 A Wi
TEREERSEEZBRE (BRECT
1 AR R R TT (BB AR 4E) 21T (R B
EETEBETZRNAB T FEETE
BEITRDZ1% -
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49. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

The eligible participants include full time or part
time employees of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including any directors, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or
not, of the Company or any subsidiary or any
Invested Entity); any holder of any securities
issued by the Group; and any business or
joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
producers or licensors, customers, licensees
(including any sub-licensee) or distributors,
landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants)
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
person who, in the sole discretion of the board
of directors, has contributed or may contribute to

the Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted under the
New Option Scheme together with options which
may be granted under any other share option
scheme for the time being of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of
the New Option Scheme and such limit might
be refreshed by the shareholders in general
meeting. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme (including the Old Option
Scheme) must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each eligible participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time
to time unless the same is approved by the
shareholders.
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49.

49. U F2RB (&
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v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

REBEZEBEEEAH (BE%ZA) L2
TZEARRARARIEREERR (TE
RETHRANSEAMNSEHEALRE
VR TERTREFCMBEATER Y
ERE(BREETE BHEEREARITE
ERE BTERERTRETEATZR
MBYH (A HTBBBARABENT
[ 20.1% i R(b)R#E & XEH A A
REIRMD 2T EFE  BEETSER
5,000,000/ 7T  BrIFES AR SR HL /& o

TEHRESERNELBRERRAT B
RE[BRT  AREBARELAHET
o

BREEGRERNREABBEREZZL
RETEASN - 3 S AR E BB AR I AT AT (R AT
WAR B EA&ERE -

A% AAR B B HI30R i MR
1 (EH)  BERAREZHETZ
FARBHE -

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
or any of its respective associates or an
independent non-executive director or any of
his associates (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding share options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such
grant: (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1 per
cent. of the shares in issue; and (b) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5 million, unless the same is approved by
the shareholders.

The exercisable period should be determined by
the board of directors upon grant of the share
option but in any event should not exceed 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

Save as determined by the board of directors
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
share options, there is no general requirement
that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,
must be made within 30 days from the date of
grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
from the grantee to the Company.
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49. U2 (&

(ix) BREZITEELARUATREZED

a. REL A AR A — BB E
R W E

b. ERENAHIAELER(RL
MARR A 2R %) RN R A — B
Mz FHWHE: &

C. REHBBRARA R 2B
18 o

(x)  FBBCER IR IRA A HRI0FABRR -

REHR REFTBRES S REBREST
EERERERITEZEREEITE %A 43
T2 B D& E 565,949,087 (= — W F -
206,386,443[%) - HERARARZAZE
BTN 28.76% (ZF— D4 : 1.29%) B

 E-E-AFEt+-_A=+-BLEERN B
1,443,000,00017 ik (R E R EHE R BAE
7357,720,00017 BE AR 1) 1R R ¥ M AR RE ST B I -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(ix) The exercise price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. the closing price of a share of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer;

b. the average closing price of a share of
the Company from the 5 business days
(has the meaning stated in the Listing
Rules) immediately preceding the date of
offer; and

C. the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer.

(x) The New Option Scheme is effective for 10 years
from the date of adoption.

At the end of the reporting period, the number of shares
in respect of which may be issued upon exercise of
share options granted and remain outstanding under
the New Option Scheme and the Old Option Scheme
was 65,949,087 (2014: 206,386,443), representing
8.76% (2014: 1.29%) of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date. During the year ended 31st
December 2015, 1,443,000,000 share options (adjusted
to 57,720,000 share options upon the effective of the
Capital Reorganisation) was granted under the New
Option Scheme.
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i ——
49. LB HIZNZRE (& 49. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
TEREBARBDEBRHE -ARAEF  4AE The following table discloses details of the Company’s
EEREMBEEMBARAEREZFBERE share options held by the Company’s substantial
g - shareholders, directors of the Company, employees of
the Group and other participants and movements in
such holdings:
BREHE
Number of share options
RZZ-RF B
t=A=t-8 -%-1f
B R B R-Z-1F ) R )3 t=h
ZE-@mE CZE2-[F CB-RF -B-8 ZB-n% C-B2-1f CB-1f =t-H
SHERH HHER TRER SRTHEE -A-H L i AT L] il i LESHS
HARTE Outstanding
Exercise Outstanding Expired  Adjustment at 31.12.2014 Expired  Adjustment Granted
Category Exercisable price at during during and during during during  Outstanding
of participants Name of scheme period* per share* 01.01.2014 2014 2014 at 01.01.2015 2015 2015 2015  at 31.12.2015
V-24
HKS
FEEES ERRETE 13.12.2004 - 12.12.2014 38.441 206,979 (201,962) (5,017) - - - - -
Employees of 0ld Option Scheme ~ 04.02.2005 - 03.02.2015 39.794 332,928 - (8,071) 324,857 (324,857) - - -
the Group 30.12.2005-29.12.2015  447.200° 119,433 - (2,894) 116,539 (4,660) (111,879) - -
21.11.2006 - 20.11.2016 511.926* 207,948 - (5,042) 202,906 - (194,790) - 8,116
25.05.2007 - 24.05.2017 776.575° 520,845 - (12,626) 508,219 - (487,890) - 20,329
27.06.2007 - 26.06.2017 772,675 342,282 - (8,298) 333,984 - (320,625) - 13,359
23.10.2007 - 22.10.2017 367.050" 1,195,899 - (28,991) 1,166,908 - (1,120,233) - 46,675
21.08.2008 - 20.08.2018 47.350 4,473,087 - (108,439) 4,364,648 - (4,190,063) - 174,585
HERESE 14.01.2013 - 13.01.2016 4.175° 125,000,000 - (3,030,303) 121,969,697 - (117,090,909) - 4,878,788
New Option Scheme ~ 04.05.2015 - 03.05.2018 3.150" - - - - - (984,000,000) 1,025,000,000 41,000,000
132,399,401 (201,962) (3,209,681) 128,987,758 (329,517) (1,107,516,389) 1,025,000,000 46,141,852
Efe28%E ERREH T 13.12.2004 - 12.12.2014 38.441 40,082 (39,090) (972) - - - - -
Other participants  Old Option Scheme  04.02.2005 - 03.02.2015 39.794 79,020 - (1,916) 77,104 (77,104) - - -
30.12.2005-29.12.2015  447.200° 144,174 - (3,496) 140,678 (5,628) (135,050 - -
21112006 -20.11.2016  511.925* 83,181 - (2,016) 81,165 - (77.919) - 3,246
25.05.2007 - 24.05.2017 776,675 205,038 - (4,071) 200,067 - (192,065) - 8,002
23.10.0007 - 22.10.2017  367.050% 243,64 - (5,898) 237,366 - (227.871) - 9,495
21.08.2008 - 20.08.2018 47.350° 566,958 - (13,744) 553,214 - (531,085) - 22,129
HMEREE 14.01.2013 - 13.01.2016 4.1475* 78,000,000 - (1,890,909) 76,109,091 - (73,064,728) - 3,044,363
New Option Scheme ~ 04.05.2015 - 03.05.2018 3.150" - - - - - (401,280,000) 418,000,000 16,720,000
79,361,697 (39,090) (1,923,922) 77,398,685 (82,732)  (475,508,718) 418,000,000 19,807,235
211,761,098 (241,052) (5,133,603) 206,386,443 (412,249) (1,583,025,107) 1,443,000,000 65,949,087
NEFHTERE
Weighted average exercise price 0619 38.441 0.590 49,961 0.126 4.291
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49. U2 (& 49.

* TREMEEREEEEE T -AF+-AN
ARREERSHEMELAE -

# TEREERERER LB BREE -

. REBEZ-_T—RAF+-_A=+—HLEFELE
BREETR KYIEH REE-_FT—0O
FHZA=+t-RLFELERREERD
1T~ R -

REBEE-ZT-—AF+-_A=+—HIFEAR B

BERN_ZE-RAFAAMABRE - RZAKREZ
R 2 AT ATEER0.036E T

WAFEEDRAB-BEAMBEEERAGE %

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

*

The exercise prices and numbers of share options have
been adjusted with effect from 9th November 2015 due

to the capital reorganisation.

# The exercisable period commenced on the date of

grant of the relevant share options.

B No share option was exercised, lapsed or cancelled for
the year ended 31st December 2015. No share option
was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled for the
year ended 31st December 2014.

During the year ended 31st December 2015, share
options were granted on 4th May 2015. The estimated
fair values of the share options granted on this date is
HK$0.036.

This fair value was calculated using the Binomial Option

Bz ASEET : Pricing Model. The inputs in the model were as follows:
R-ZE-HAFHAMNAH

BHzERE

Options grant on

04.05.2015

F i HBRE BT Grant date share price (HK$) 0.126
1B CETT) Exercise price (HK$) 0.126
T8 R R 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 66.75%
BRES A (F) Expected life (years) 3 years
a2 B 1) 2R (%) Risk-free rate (%) 0.710%
TAEA R Bk Expected dividend yield -

FHIRE IR B E3F AR BRE 2 E LK iR
TUEE - ZRARA BRI ERFHERIE
BEEEzRERFRAAERE  TERS RIT
RREZFEFLRE -

ZEREBRERH _Z-—AFAANBRIAR
Ay 2 T B R EA0.1248 7T
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Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 3 years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural consideration.

The closing prices of the Company’s shares

immediately before the dates of grant of share options
on 4th May 2015 was HK$0.124 per share.
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HE-T-
49.

228

IR N2R5 (&)

REE-F-RF+-A=+-BLFE &
S5 70 21 7 R 2 R R0 2R
51,986,000/ T °

FLEEB NI T 2 A RBEARD A E
AEBERBREZRE 2 A FEEA A FEHE
FZBE REERRMRB 2 AFEBETERA
FEE Bt AEE2ZURLBREZA
FEEAB-AAHEEERAFERNZEAL
AASER‘BBRBEZAETAZFALZR
% o

ERA-EASECEREAGHEREZQFE
B-FEEREAFEBEMRKBZEHRRERT
EREREZREMG - BREZEERETIEH
Rz #LmEL -

o

49.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Group recognised the total expense of
approximately HK$51,986,000 for the year ended 31st
December 2015 in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

For equity-settled share-based payments with parties
other than employees, the Group has rebutted the
presumption that the fair values of the services
received can be estimated reliably as in the opinion of
the directors, the fair value of the services cannot be
reliably measured. Accordingly, the Group measured
the services received from these parties, with reference
to the fair values of the share options granted using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model, at the date these parties

rendered related services to the Group.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to
estimate the fair value of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.
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50. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

B BHRRSAMEZREIN AEEEBEAL Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial

FLTHERRS

statements, the Group entered into the following
material transactions with related parties:

following material transactions with its related

—F-1F —T-lF
2015 2014
TER FAET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

Rental income 180 173

(a) RERN AEEEEREEALTIIZTIE (a) During the year, the Group entered into the
AR
parties:

REME Nature of transactions
RKEETERRERAQT Income received from family member

BERKKEZWA : of the substantial shareholders and

directors of the Company:
AU A

KEEEREZRA Income received from a joint venture:

EEERA

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015
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Ej{%ﬁﬁkifﬁ% (/{é’f 50. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) RIEHR - BEBALZRFEHBFE (b) Details of the balances with related parties at the
B B 75 R T EE33 o end of the reporting period are set out in note 33

to the financial statements.

(c) B RR M 15T IHE TEEIEAEB (c) Compensation for key management personnel,
e (REENARRESENETES including amount paid to the Company’s
FHES 2FBE)MAT directors and certain of the highest paid

employees, as disclosed in note 15 to the
financial statements, is as follow:
—E-8EF —E—OF
2015 2014
FET FHEIT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
e &k HEAMER Salaries and other allowances 22,672 21,753
LARR D 2+ 2 B 2 Share-based payment expenses 12,933 -
RIKTE MIEH S K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 156 135

ESRTREBEABZTFM I ETFHEZEEKE
BREARBRTISBEMETE -

35,761 21,888

The remuneration of directors and key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.
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50. EXRBEALTRS (& 50. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

RZTE—NFNA+MA - WfER%E
SEARAR (TRF]) (FEIHEE
NtEEXEEEBRQAAD 22EHRBR
alDance Star Group Limited ([ Dance
Star]) - ARG ZE2EAWBEAGREE
IREERBERAD ([PEERLE]) T
&M AWEPEEEY 2 2 RE
R E &R 2 IR R E 5 499,002,000 7T -
BB 4 A4,340,0008 7T - Z R 5 W
RARBIZEENTRS - IR ZE
P-—EZEERZBNAERRAZES %
RPZHABERARTBRAEZZT—NF
MA+MEBAZAHA -

R-ZZ—ME+A+B (BRAXHEE
%) PEEKREEDance Stars] L B &
ek WRETBEEEY 2 20RERE
%R 2 B R E 5K 413,501,000/ 0 - 4838
S REXAE8,673,0008TT - ZRXH KR
BEARRZBEALRS  HRNGEZE
FREENZANALRBZES - %
REZHABERNEALEIBHA-T—F
+TAERZAMKA -
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(d)

On 14th April 2014, Dance Star Group Limited
(“Dance Star”),

Lajin Entertainment Network Group Limited

a wholly-owned subsidiary of

(formerly known as “China Star Cultural Media
Group Limited”) (“Lajin”) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with China Star
Entertainment Holding Limited (“CSEHL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
to acquire the entire equity interest and a
shareholder loan of approximately HK$9,002,000
due by CS Movie at a total consideration of
approximately HK$4,340,000. The transaction
was considered as related party transaction of
the Company as one of the director of Lajin is a
director of the Company at that date. Particulars
of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 14th April 2014.

On 7th October 2014, CSEHL entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Dance
Star to acquire the entire equity interest
and a shareholder loan of approximately
HK$13,501,000 due by CS Movie at a total
consideration of approximately HK$8,673,000.
The transaction was considered as related party
transaction of the Company as one of director of
Lajin is a director of the Company at that date.
Particulars of the transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 7th October
2014.
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51. BB A TXE 51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AEFENB ARG FEHY WM T - Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are listed

as follows:
/BT RRAFRHAR BRATRAR
WEBLARER B%/ 1% Frss R A2 850 BERRZEL Ry /2RER TEEH
Proportion of
Countrylplace of ownership interest Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ Class of and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation shares held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-1fF  ZEZ-[RF
2015 2014
% %
Ace Season Holdings Limited EBRNES LER 100 100 1,000%7T REER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1,000 Investment holding
BRARAA B EAR 100 100 1ET ifenirA RS
Art Lord Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Art piece investment
and rental
Asiatop Data Limited 3 LER 100 100 1087 RERIEARE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 Provision of nominee
services
Best Combo Limited ABRARE LER 100 100 1% REHR
British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS1 Investment holding
HEBRAA B LER 100 100 121 RERR
Best Joyful Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Investment holding
Best Mind International Inc. RERARE LAk 100 100 100%7 RENBEVEERS
(ZHip) British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$100 WHE R 2 £
(see note b) Investing in operations
which receive profit
streams from the gaming
promotion business
Bestjump Holdings Limited EBRNES LER 100 100 1% REER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Big Century Limited & LAk 100 100 1% BEDE
Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$ 1 Property holding
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51. MBRAFHE (& 51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
/AL KRAFRHER BRTRMR
HEARER 8%/ 1% Fris R4 &l BHERREEL RE/SRER TEREH
Proportion of
Country/place of ownership interest Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ Class of and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation shares held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-1F CZI-IF
2015 2014
% %

Business First RERAES LEk 100 100 %1 KERRENE
Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Holding of cable

right

Charm Faith Holdings RERAHES LRk 100 100 100X RERR
Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$100 Investment holding

Charming Era ARRLES LEk 100 100 1% REER
Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS1 Investment holding

HEEEAEEERLA & ERR 100 100 i BAER

China Star Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Artist management
Artist Management
Limited

THEAHER 2R FEER 100 100 100,000 % TPEXRNKE
BIRAR (BHi2b) Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 Immovable property

China Star Creative development and
Development Limited Investment
(See note b)

China Star XBRANS LRk 100 100 200%7T RERR
Entertainment British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$200 Investment holding
(BVI) Limited

RE2RERR Bk tak/ 100 100 BT ERRR REZR
BRAH Hong Kong ERZRELTR 1,000,000%7T2 Investment holding

China Star Ordinary/ ERBRETR (EH2a)

Entertainment Non-voting deferred HK$2 for ordinary share

Holding Limited

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015

and HK$1,000,000 for
non-voting deferred share
(see note q))
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51. MBRAFHE (& 51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
/8L RRAMEHEE BREARER
HEARER B%/1% FEsRHER RERREELS A/ ERER TEXR
Proportion of
Country/place of ownership interest Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ Class of and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation shares held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-1f ZZ-QF
2015 2014
% %
hEEERRTERAT 3 Ligh 100 100 10000077 EYREREERRT
China Star HK Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 Distribution of films
Distribution Limited and television drama
series
HEEFAREERAA B LRk 100 100 1,000,000 BERERTRRELR
China Star HK Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 Distribution of video
Entertainment rights and
Company Limited investment holding
THESRBERLA & Thk 100 100 28T RtETAELE
China Star i-Content Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 BERIK AR
Provision of film
production controller,
director and
producer services
China Star International ABRAEE Lk 100 100 8001%T SYRBREREET
Distribution Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$8,001 Distribution of films
(Zlita) and television drama
(see note &) series
China Star International RERAES LEk 100 100 1% EFMIE
Movie Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS1 Film production
hEEESYRERAT B Lk 100 100 1,500,000% 7 REEERBRRALR
China Star Laser Disc Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000 Provision of

Company Limited

234

management
services and
investment holding

ANNUAL REPORT £F#k 2015



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

b EEBEAGRADQ

Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—RE+=-A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

51. MB ARG (& 51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
/AL KRAFRHER BRTRMR
HEARER 8%/ 1% Fris R4 &l BHERREEL RE/SRER TEREH
Proportion of
Country/place of ownership interest Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ Class of and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation shares held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-1F CZI-IF
2015 2014
% %
hEEREERERAT 3 Lak 100 - 147 BAER
China Star Management Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Artist management
HEEERERAR (EHH)  AM THER 100 100 100,000 2% WEBRERRELEEEE
China Star Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 Property project
Management management and
Company construction project
Limited (see note b) management
THESYARAT B LAk 100 100 2T EYRIERET
China Star Movie Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Film production and
Limited distribution
HHEYEERAT Bk LR 100 100 2% HEEYME
China Star Pictures Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Holding of film rights
Limited
HEESLHRERAT B LRk 100 100 BT RESERRTHRE
China Star Publishing Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Provision of holding
Limited and licensing
of song rights
China Star Trademark RERLES TAk 100 100 ES RBAERRE
Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS1 Holding of trademark
and copyrights
China Star Worldwide o eyl 100 100 18,151B0T EYREREERAS
Distribution B.V. Netherlands Ordinary EUR18,151 Distribution of films
(Rfida) and television drama
(see note a) series
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51. MBRAFHE (& 51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
/8L KRAFRAER BRTRMR
HEARER B%/1% Fris R4 &l BERREEL A/ ERER TREH
Proportion of
Country/place of ownership interest Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ Class of and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation shares held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-1F CZI-IF
2015 2014
% %
Classic Champion EBRNES LEk 100 100 E RERR
Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
(i)
(see note b)
BREBRBERAF (2H2L) B ERER 100 100 10000075 RERESERRK
Classic Management Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 Provision of casino
& Services Company management
Limited (see note b) service
Empowered Century RERUHE Lk 100 100 1% RERR
Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Exceptional Gain EBRRES Lk 100 100 1% REER
Profits Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
First-Up Investments AERAEE LRk 100 100 %1 BAERRRHERIEARE
Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS1 Artist management and
provision of agency
services
HET (BE)ERAT & ERR 100 100 1A 2%
Geumsamwon (Korea) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Trading
Company Limited
BRARERAT & LR 100 100 187 YR
Gold Choice Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Film production
International
Limited
High Productive ABRAEE Lk 100 100 1%ET RABR
Trading Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US§1 Investment holding
RFMESBEEERLE (2HHy) A THER 100 100 500,000%F5% REFREAE RS
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau Quota capital MOP500,000 RiXAER

(Macau) Limited
(see note b)
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Provision of hotel
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HE-_Z—RE+=-A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

51. MBRAFHE (& 51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
/AL KRAFRHER BRTRMR
HEARER 8%/ 1% Fris R4 &l BHERREEL RE/SRER TEREH
Proportion of
Country/place of ownership interest Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ Class of and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation shares held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-1F CZI-IF
2015 2014
% %
Intrinsic Value RERAES LEk 100 100 1% REER
Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Islands
WERRLR (Ehitn) 2P TEER 100 100 30,0001279% REERRE
Merit Noble Macau Quota capital MOP30,000 Provision of catering
Company Limited services
(see note b)
Most Famous RERAHES LEk 100 100 eI REER
Enterprises Limited British Virgin Ordinary USs$2 Investment holding
Islands
BELEERAT B Tak 70 70 20,0007 SEERERES
Most Trade Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000 Trading of ginseng and
Enterprises Limited dried seafood
products
HITERARAR B LAk 100 100 18T RERER
Nam Pei Hong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Investment holding
Holdings Limited
BLTRERRAA Bk LR 100 100 A7 REZR
Nam Pei Hong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Investment holding
Investments Limited
Bt T2 BRI ER AT B Tk 100 100 1,200,000%7 SEERESRTE
Nam Pei Hong Sum Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,200,000 Ginseng & dried
Yung Drugs seafood food
Company Limited trading and retail
AL T2EEHERLA 2R ERER 100 100 25,0002F3% 2ERK KEEHRZE
(Elith) Macau Quota capital MOP25,000 Ginseng, dried
Nam Pei Hong Sum seafood, drugs
Yung Drugs trading and retail
Company Limited
(see note b)
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BE-_ZE—FRF+-_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2015

51. MBRAFHE (& 51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
/8L KRAFRAER BRTRMR
HEARER B%/1% Fris R4 &l BERREEL A/ ERER TREH
Proportion of
Country/place of ownership interest Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ Class of and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation shares held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-1F CZI-IF
2015 2014
% %
2% (%) BRAA (3 Bk 100 100 25T GEEIES
Newrich (HK.) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Property holding
Limited
BRARAA &k Lk 100 100 100AT KERR
Noble Million Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding
Limited
NPH Holdings ABRAES LR 100 100 50,0007 RERR
Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$50,000 Investment holding
[slands
BLTPBRARLT (2 3R 100 100 25T RERR
NP H Sino-Meditech Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding
Limited
—BEEYARAT £ BB 100 100 3,000,007 BRI
One Hundred Years Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,000,000 Film production
of Film Company
Limited
REEARAA (EHHr) 3 EER 100 100 3500007 U
Poo Yuk Loong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$350,000 Provision of
Limited (see note f) administration
services
REERR (RI) ARAA hE i 100 100 3,000,000AR% S2HEREZREE
(Efidcke) PRC Registered RMB3,000,000 Ginseng & dried
Poo Yuk Loong Food seafood food
(Shenzhen) Company trading and retail
Limited
(see nofes ¢ and ¢)
TEERAR 3 Lk 100 100 i EEERIES
Rainbow Profit Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 Property holding
Limited
BEREARAA (3 LaR 100 100 287 MFEYRERESH
S & W Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Production of films and
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51. MBRAFHE (& 51. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
/AL KRAFRHER BRTRMR
HEARER 8%/ 1% Fris R4 &l BHERREEL RE/SRER TEREH
Proportion of
Country/place of ownership interest Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ Class of and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation shares held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-1F CZI-IF
2015 2014
% %

Smart Value ABRLEE LR 100 100 I REZR
Developments British Virgin Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Limited Islands

RYREERAA (3 LR 100 100 1B REER

Star Choice Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Investment holding
Limited

SERRERRR B EAR 100 100 1B RERER

Star Joy International Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$ 1 Investment holding
Limited

Superb Glory RERAHEE LEk 100 100 E REER
Investments British Virgin Ordinary USS1 Investment holding
Limited Islands

Triumph Top BERIES Liak 100 100 e RERR
Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 Investment holding

Islands

Turbo International ABRAKE LER 60 60 50,000% T BRERREsmE

Company Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$50,000 Holding TV drama
Islands series licensing
right

HEREERAR B TER 100 100 i EEEERES

Well Star Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Property holding
Limited
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51.

240

B A RIEFAE (&
Bt

() ERREEEE-

()  EmPEEET -

(0  ERREERE-

(d) | ZREER D BRI EERN D ZZ AR
BBRRZAABRRAGZESE HEZEX
EHEGLREZERN EBRERIAZE
ERDIK °

(e) REBRB(RINBERRARBIEDLE -

Best Combo Limited * Best Mind * China Star
Entertainment (BVI) Limited ([ CSBVI]) *
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.V. »
Classic Champion Holdings Limited M Turbo
International Company Limited®J @ AR 7 &H#&
A MAEEMIMEBRATHEARRRERSE -

BRBREAEIN WEBARZIZEENHAT

e
P BT 2 B R 4F A B 3R 4 o A fo] B R 451 8 R P
[ 2 B EH o

EEZRA REBEE-_T—RF+-A=+—H1It
FERHE_Z-—NF+_A=+—HILFE"
M Turbo International Company Limited &zMost
Trade Enterprises LimitedZ JEZ RS H A £ E
METER - Bt TERZEVBREANEL
20 ki WEZEFRZEWMB AR 2B
BEREATIAZET] -

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) Operating internationally.
(b) Operating in Macau.

(c) Operating in PRC.

(d) The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no
rights to dividends nor receive notice of nor to attend
or vote at any general meeting of the company nor to

participate in any distribution on winding up.

(e) Poo Yuk Loong Food (Shenzhen) Company Limited is a

wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

Best Combo Limited, Best Mind, China Star
Entertainment (BVI) Limited (“CSBVI"), China Star
Worldwide Distribution B.V., Classic Champion Holdings
Limited and Turbo International Company Limited are
directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries are
indirectly held by the Company.

Except otherwise stated, the principal place of
operation of the subsidiaries is Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The directors consider that the non-controlling interests
of Turbo International Company Limited and Most
Trade Enterprises Limited during the years ended
31st December 2015 and 31st December 2014 were
insignificant to the Group and thus are not separately
presented in these financial statements. In addition,
no separate financial information of these non-wholly
owned subsidiaries is required to be presented.
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BE—ZT—

52, BEL¥vHEE 52.

AEERBELENBEMRIFBRINT

HE+=A=+—HAILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

PARTICULARS OF JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Group’s joint ventures at the end of the
reporting period are set out below:

it/ FEEFBEREER
RELEER BERR RYER/ %  FERHER REE LA TEEH
Country/
Form of place of Proportion of ownership
business incorporation/ Class of interest and voting
Name of joint venture structure formation shares held power held by the Group Principal activities
ZE2-Rf  —ER-mF
2015 2014
% %
HEEEYEEARAA BalAE RERTES LEK 50 50 RERR
China Star Film Group Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary Investment holding
Islands
YEEBYRERRDA(ENGE) HRRI Bk AR 50 50 BIFER
China Star Film Production Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Ceased business
Limited (see note)
REREFRAA Bai{y A BA il 50 50 RUBATERE R
Sparkle Star Entertainment Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary BREEEIRE
Limited Provision of artist
management service
and production of
television drama
series
Bt Note:
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China Star Film Production Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiaries of China Star Film Group Limited.
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(a) AXAFBMRRE

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

ERBEE
iINIEPNGIE: £

RBEE
JE M P /B8 2 B IR
BE - AN R RE M EUEOR

Y& & b ERIA
Re RIRITHEH

HEE
BERKREE
i

8 5
HRER

FRBEE
JEAHBRS /B8 2 B SR IR

REEE

Sl A - BFHIER
H Al A 5R

BEAE

REREEAE

RBEEFE

HEERRBAR

Heung Wah Keung

53. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the
Company
—E-fF —E—MEF
2015 2014
FERT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Non-current asset
Interests in subsidiaries 2,152,355 1,968,581
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,052,443 1,246,409
Deposits, prepayment and other
receivables 469 1,668
Amount due from a joint venture 12 -
Cash and bank balances 183,047 54,290
1,235,971 1,302,367
Total assets 3,388,326 3,270,948
Capital and reserves
Share capital 7,531 159,397
Reserves 2,752,630 2,308,778
Total equity 2,760,161 2,468,175
Non-current liability
Amounts due to subsidiaries 614,201 786,340
Current liability
Deposits received, accruals and other
payables 13,964 16,433
Total liabilities 628,165 802,773
Total equity and liabilities 3,388,326 3,270,948
Net current assets 1,222,007 1,285,934
Total assets less current liability 3,374,362 3,254,515

o
Director

EZ

PR B &
Director

EZ

Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
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(b) ARRRESD

b EEBEAGRADQ

Bt % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—RE+=-A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserve of the Company

WRHEHZ 78R Ex

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE

BBEE  BABR  RERR  BEEE  WERE  ZHES g
Share-based ~ Convertible Capital
Share  Contributed payment bonds reduction Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
Tian T Tin T Fin ThEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Jiita) (i) (Hiite) (i) (Hiite)
(note a) (note b) (note c) (note d) (note &)
RZ5-RE-A-A At 1st January 2014 112,929 1,765,618 61,881 7905 316,008 (903.869) 1,360,472
FEEEERZEARSLE  Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - (36614) (36,614
ENTERES Conversion of convertible bonds 209,150 - - (8,338) - - 200812
BREER Expiry of share options - - (7841) - - 7841 -
BRI RRES Issue of bonus convertible bonds - - - 943 - - 043
RAESEEAHRS Issue of new shares by subscription 120,000 - - - - - 120,000
RARREREARRG Issue of new shares upon apen offer 302,096 - - - - - 302,096
RERS Placement of shares 368,000 - - - - - 368,000
NERTERESR Released of deferred tax upon conversion
ERELNE of convertible bonds - - - 622 - - 622
DUETET Share issuing expenses (7.559) - - - - - (7,559)
RZE-WE+ZA=+-A At 31t December 2014 and
RR-E-1%5-A-H at st January 2015 1,104,622 1,765,618 54,040 1132 316,008 (932,642) 2,308,778
FEREBRZAAASEE  Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - (9,182) (96,182
ERHE Capital reduction - 18074 - - - S N
BREER Expiry of share opfions - - (17,192) - - 17,192 -
RER(H Placement of shares 317,669 - - - - - 317,669
BRNEREE Recognition of equity-setfled
R fi 2z share-based payments - - 51986 - - - 51986
L OESE Share issuing expenses (10,366) - - - - - (10,366)
RZE-EE+ZA=T-R At 31st December 2015 1,411,925 1,946,363 86,834 1,132 316,008  (1,011,632) 2,752,630
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0. XAFHBRRERGER

/I'/éij
(b) AATRERE(E)

et -

(a) BEBRE-AN-FREEEE
1) ARELZBMEER BERRA
REZRBETED  (ERBURARE

TFARDFMRRE -

(b) ARBZANPBABRBTIERAR -F
ZoFARATBRERZBRAEIRRE

4

BEBERE-AN-FREDE (KE
) —HARZBABSBRAIHIIR -
KW RUATER ARETEEH

ABHPELDIK :

(i) ARBAEHIBRIKNZEN
BEINSMEEZZER X

(i) ARTEEZAL
R -

(c) AR X 2 RARE R BERE D
HREERERAT IR EEEBHE
NREZRBZ AT EE EERT
WEHERERBREZATEEA
AR -ZNFRAMCEE AEE
FRBREZATEEERRSE D
(A REDFE  WHEREME
BXHEA AR YHEERES KD

X2 RIE R -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

(b)

Movement of reserve of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the share premium of the Company
can be used in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to members of the

Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Company
brought forward represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th
September 2002 and various capital reduction

subsequently.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus of a
company is available for distribution. However,
the Company cannot make a distribution out of

contributed surplus if:

(i it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities.

Share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of services estimated to be received
in exchange for the grant of the relevant share
options over the relevant vesting periods, the
total of which is based on the fair value of the
share options at grant date. The amount for
each period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting periods (if any) and is recognised in
other operating expenses with a corresponding

increase in the share-based payment reserve.
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53. %Qﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬂ%&ﬁﬁ%

ARERERY ()

Htet - (%)

(d)

BEBBGTERENRRLHTA -
25 BT ZABRKRESRTRIIR
BREDARBEDD RERIH - F
XBEAFEERRBEEND (AFE
BTy RER DA AR B 2 ™5 A
REF)  MBTABRBEEEFBRHG
ZRAFEBEMEZEZBAG NS
7o AEIHERZIRE & HK AT
BoamibHmemRR AT RRES
# HEEUARGEFHER(EREE
BERMDRE) kAT RRESHER (E
K EREZE 25 ER) ALE -

BRERABAR_E—ZF+A=TH
BRTZREAFIAG LRAEHEE
TR AR 1 (AR R 7 4 3% 12 R R AT FI| AT
BREHFARBLRRG) 2 TRAE
AR RNRYFBRREFTROONE
(A FHRB)BTIERALTBR Y
AT R TR R 1B 5 o 4T FI ] AR 1 5 A
RERERW R [TRRESEE] 27 -
AFIPTRREH IR LT RAAED -
MRS REERFAEAERR
Bt BEHSRESFBTEARIEL
FETABITRERZAFBEDEE -
T 0 AR BRI SR 3 4B U IR AT F) AT 4 AR 1R
% o KLF AR H I EmAD BEMA
BRERGZIRER - RIBBALF A
BREHFZERATFEREZ KRR
o EHBFAAREETARATRR
B 1% BE S 17 (0 IR AR 42 -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserve of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) Under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation, convertible bonds issued are
split into their liability and equity components
at initial recognition by recognising the liability
component at its fair value which is determined
using a market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts and attributing to the
equity component the difference between the
proceeds from issue and the fair value of the
liability component. The liability component
is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The equity component is recognised in the
convertible bonds reserve until the convertible
bonds are either converted (in which case
it is transferred to share premium) or the
convertible bonds are redeemed (in which case
it is released directly to accumulated losses).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at
the special general meeting of the Company
held on 25th October 2012 in relation to
the bonus issue of shares (with a right for
shareholders to elect to receive Bonus CBs in
lieu of bonus shares), Bonus CBs convertible
into ordinary shares at initial conversion price
of HK$0.01 per share (subject to adjustment)
were issued by the Company. The Bonus CBs
are recognised as equity and are presented
in “convertible bonds reserve”. The Bonus
CBs are unlisted and irredeemable but have
conversion rights entitling the bondholders to
convert into an equivalent number of shares
as the number of bonus shares which the
bondholders would otherwise be entitled
to receive under the bonus issue had the
shareholder not elected for the Bonus CBs.
The Bonus CBs do not carry voting rights at
any general meeting of shareholders of the
Company. The bondholders can exercise the
conversion rights at any time after the issue of
Bonus CBs, subject to the terms and conditions
of the applicable deed polls constituting the
Bonus CBs.
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0. XAFHBRRERGER
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(b) AATRERE(E)

Htet - (%)

(e) ARBZERHBFHEBER LN
F 1% 78 X 5]332,640,000% B # 1T 5
ZHEEHSREEIETHRES
BEEC.OSB TAMEL L/ - &
ERBEADFZABARE12006 TR
Bz —ARBZR  BABRFEETH
EXNARBEREZSE AFE -
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HOAE BRI T EE o
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54.

55.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b)

Movement of reserve of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

The capital reduction reserve of the Company
represents the amount arising in relation to the
reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00
each to HK$0.05 each in 1998. Pursuant to a
resolution passed by the directors pursuant to
Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
capital reduction reserve shall be applicable
for meeting claims on or liabilities of the
Company or contingencies or for paying off
any loan capital or for equalising dividends or
for any other purpose to which the profits of the

Company may be properly applied.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

There is no significant event took place subsequent to

end of the reporting period.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29th March 2016.
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BE+Z=

B=+t—-HLEEE

For the year ended 31st December

=t —T-NF —F-=-fF —T--fF ZT——F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
FTHET FAL FHET FHETL FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
EF Results
W= Revenue 1,044,506 1,283,597 1,404,629 1,464,979 1,096,762
BREAEF (BE) Profit/(loss) before tax 107,715 209,851 90,784 93,991 (661,525)
FTisRiEE Income tax credit 149 160 555 535 7,419
FEHEF,/ (FE) Profit/(loss) for the year 107,864 210,011 91,339 94,526 (654,106)
IATATRERN Profit/(loss) for the year
FEEEF (BB attributable to:
KAEHA A Owners of the Company 107,871 209,665 93,817 53,360 (683,234)
R = Non-controlling interests (7) 346 (2,478) 41,166 29,128
107,864 210,011 91,339 94,526 (654,106)
EERERE Assets and liabilities
R+=ZA=+-AH
At 31st December
R - —T—-=F —T——F —T——%F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
FHET FAEL FHET FAT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BEMBE Total assets 4,791,461 3,458,795 2,619,573 2,780,606 3,407,540
BELEE Total liabilities (1,325,704)  (537,138)  (987,087) (1,193,396) (1,132,631)
BEFE Net assets 3,465,757 2,921,657 1,632,486 1,587,210 2,274,909
RAEHA A Equity attributable to
fEE R owners of the Company 3,466,190 2922083 1,634,714 1587401 1,968,592
TR Non-controlling interests (433) (426) (2,228) (191) 306,317
Bl Total equity 3,465,757 2,921,657 1,632,486 1,587,210 2,274,909
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A 4 [ 3 % YY) 3 The Group's Major Properties

HE-_ZT—HE+=-A=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2015

1. TERRDY% 1. MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT
BH ft &t
fti &t BEEE ALEEE
it 2 R R TIR R BIBH (FFER) (FHFER) B2 rEEES
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area
Stage of completion (square (square Group’s
Location Lot number completion date feet) feet) Usage interest
R Quarteirao 6 3PS B —E-NEF 57,000 730,000 UN=RREEESE 100%
Zona de ZHEB BERFES
Aterros do C DKE
Porto Exterior
(ZAPE)
Zona de Lot B, C, Development 2019 57,000 730,000 Apartment, 100%
Aterros do DandEin stage residential,
Porto Quarteirdo 6 commercial,
Exterior, and carparking
Macau (ZAPE)
2. FEREYE 2. MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
i 24 A HEE R
Location Type Category of lease term
HE [EES =
20 ~ 222455
BER—12
Cockloft and First Floor, Commercial Long-term

Kam Tak Building,
20, 22 and 24 Mercer Street,
Hong Kong
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